
 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/15/2022 - Page 1 

 

 

 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1 

Anne Weir, Place 2 

Maria Amezcua, Place 3 

Sonia Wallace, Place 4 

Aaron Moreno, Place 5 

Vacant, Place 6 

City Council Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, June 15, 2022 at 7:00 PM 

Manor City Hall, Council Chambers, 105 E. Eggleston St. 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER AND ANNOUNCE A QUORUM IS PRESENT 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

PROCLAMATIONS 

A. Declaring Sunday, June 19, 2022, as “Juneteenth Day” 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Comments will be taken from the audience on non-agenda related topics for a length of time, not to exceed three 

(3) minutes per person. Comments on specific agenda items must be made when the item comes before the Council. 

To address the City Council, please complete the white card and present it to the City Secretary prior to the meeting. 

No Action May be Taken by the City Council During Public Comments. 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1. Conduct a Public Hearing on an ordinance annexing 62.84 acres, more or less, located 

in Travis County, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way into the 

corporate limits of the City, at the request of the property owner; approving an 

Agreement for the Provision of Services for the annexed area; making findings of fact; 

providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings 

and other related matters. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

2. Conduct a Public Hearing on an ordinance rezoning 62.84 acres, more or less, out of 

the A.C. Caldwell Survey No. 52, Abstract No. 154, and being located near the 

intersection of US Hwy 290 and Old Kimbro Road, Manor, TX to Townhome (TH) and 

Medium Commercial (C-2) 

Applicant: Kimley-Horn and Associates 

Owner: Millcreek Residential 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

1



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/15/2022 - Page 2 

 

 

3. Conduct a Public Hearing on a revised Concept Plan for the Butler - Manor 

Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located near the 

intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 
Applicant: LJA Engineering  

Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

CONSENT AGENDA 

All of the following items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be self-explanatory by the Council and will be 

enacted with one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless requested by the Mayor or a 

Council Member; in which event, the item will be removed from the consent agenda and considered separately. 

4. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes. 
Submitted by: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

 

    •  June 1, 2022, City Council Workshop – Charter Review; and 

    •  June 1, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting 

5. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the May 2022 

Departmental Reports.    

Submitted by: Scott Moore, City Manager 

 

    •  Economic Development – Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 

    •  Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

    •  Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager 

    •  Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police     

    •  Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 

    •  Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 

    •  Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

    •  Human Resources – Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 

    •  IT – Phil Green, IT Director 
    •  Administration – Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary  

6. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 26.30 acres, more or less, out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 

63 and James Manor Survey No. 40, and being located near the intersection of N. FM 

973 and Shadowglen Trace, Manor, TX from Medium Commercial (C-2) to Multi-

Family 25 (MF-2). 
Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP 

Owner: Edward Butler 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

  

2



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/15/2022 - Page 3 

 

 

7. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 13.224 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, 

Abstract No. 546, and being located near the intersection of East Parsons Street and 

Bastrop Street, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 
Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP 

Owner: Dwyer Realty Companies 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

8. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 

Financial Audit Report. 
Submitted by: Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

The City Council will now Convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 

Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in: 

-  Sections 551.071, and 551.087, Texas Government Code, and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary 

Rules of Professional Conduct to consult with legal counsel regarding the Butler FM 973/Hwy 

290 mixed use development; 

 

-  Section 551.071, Texas Government Code and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 

Professional Conduct (Consultation with Attorney) to consult with legal counsel regarding 

Development Agreement with Building Hope; and 

 

-  Section 551.071, Texas Government Code and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of 

Professional Conduct (Consultation with Attorney) to consult with legal counsel regarding 

Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority 

OPEN SESSION 

The City Council will now reconvene into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 Texas 

Government Code and take action, if any, on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session. 

REGULAR AGENDA 

9. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Development Agreement (Butler/ 

East Hwy 290 & 13100 N. FM 973). 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

10. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Chapter 380 Grant Agreement 

Butler Commercial Project. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

  

3



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/15/2022 - Page 4 

 

11. Consideration, discussion and possible action on a revised Concept Plan for the Butler 

- Manor Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located 

near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 
Applicant: LJA Engineering  

Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the First Amendment to Development 

Agreement (EntradaGlen). 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Third Amendment to 

Development Agreement (Manor Heights). 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on Amendment One to the Interlocal 

Agreement by and Between Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority and City 

of Manor, Texas for Build Central Texas. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

15. First Reading: Consideration, discussion and possible action on an ordinance annexing 

62.84 acres, , more or less, located in Travis County, including the abutting streets, 

roadways, and rights-of-way into the corporate limits of the City, at the request of the 

property owner; approving an Agreement for the Provision of Services for the annexed 

area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and 

providing for open meetings and other related matters. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

16. First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 

62.84 acres, more or less, out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey No. 52, Abstract No. 154, and 

being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and Old Kimbro Road, Manor, TX 

to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2). 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn and Associates 

Owner: Millcreek Residential 

Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

17. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Water Service Area Transfer 

Agreement between the City of Manor, Texas and Manville Water Supply Corporation 

for a 13.189 acre tract. 
Submitted by: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

18. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Compensation Consulting Firm 

regarding a Payscale study. 
Submitted by: Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

4



 

Manor City Council Regular Meeting Agenda 6/15/2022 - Page 5 

 

 

In addition to any executive session already listed above, the City Council reserves the right to adjourn into 

executive session at any time during the course of this meeting to discuss any of the matters listed above, as 

authorized by Texas Government Code Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney), §551.072 (Deliberations 

regarding Real Property), §551.073 (Deliberations regarding Gifts and Donations), §551.074 (Personnel Matters), 

§551.076 (Deliberations regarding Security Devices) and §551.087 (Deliberations regarding Economic 

Development Negotiations). 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST 

In accordance with Section 12.04 (Conflict of Interest) of the City Charter, “No elected or appointed officer or employee of 

the city shall participate in the deliberation or decision on any issue, subject or matter before the council or any board or 

commission, if the officer or employee has a personal financial or property interest, direct or indirect, in the issue, subject or 

matter that is different from that of the public at large. An interest arising from job duties, compensation or benefits payable 

by the city shall not constitute a personal financial interest.” 

Further, in accordance with Chapter 171, Texas Local Government Code (Chapter 171), no City Council member and no City 

officer may vote or participate in discussion of a matter involving a business entity or real property in which the City Council 

member or City officer has a substantial interest (as defined by Chapter 171) and action on the matter will have a special 

economic effect on the business entity or real property that is distinguishable from the effect on the general public. An affidavit 

disclosing the conflict of interest must be filled out and filed with the City Secretary before the matter is discussed. 

 

POSTING CERTIFICATION 
I, the undersigned authority do hereby certify that this Notice of Meeting was posted on the bulletin board, at the City Hall of 

the City of Manor, Texas, a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public at all times and said Notice was posted 

on the following date and time: Friday, June 10, 2022, by 5:00 PM and remained so posted continuously for at least 72 hours 

preceding the scheduled time of said meeting. 

 

  

/s/ Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 

City Secretary for the City of Manor, Texas 

 

NOTICE OF ASSISTANCE AT PUBLIC MEETINGS: 

The City of Manor is committed to compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act. Manor City Hall and the Council 

Chambers are wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests for accommodations or interpretive 

services must be made 48 hours prior to this meeting. Please contact the City Secretary at 512.272.5555 or e-mail 

lalmaraz@cityofmanor.org . 

5

mailto:lalmaraz@cityofmanor.org


 

                                                             
 

PROCLAMATION 
WHEREAS, On January 1st, 1863, President Abraham Lincoln issued the Emancipation 
Proclamation which made known that all enslaved people in confederate states rebelling 
against the Union “shall be then, thenceforward, and forever free”; and  

 
WHEREAS, it was not until June 19th, 1865, when Union Major General Gordon Granger 
arrived in Galveston, Texas, and announced both the end of the Civil War and General Order 
Number 3 which declared – “The People Of Texas Are Informed That, In Accordance With A 
Proclamation From The Executive Of The United States, All Slaves Are Free..”; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 6th, 1865, President Lincoln approved the Joint Resolution of 
Congress enacting the 13th Amendment as a final constitutional solution to the issue of slavery; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the Emancipation Proclamation also led to the expansion of civil rights for all 
Americans with the enactment of the 14th Amendment guaranteeing all citizens “equal 
protection of the laws” and the 15th Amendment which prohibited states from disenfranchising 
voters “on account of race, color, or previous condition of servitude”; and 
 
WHEREAS, in 1979, Texas became the first state to make Juneteenth also known as Freedom 
Day, Jubilee Day, and Cel-Liberation Day an official holiday commemorating June 19th as the 
abolishment of slavery in the United States; and 

 
WHEREAS, on a larger scale, celebration of Juneteenth reminds each of us of the precious 
promises of freedom, equality, and opportunity which are at the core of the American Dream.  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, I, Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, and on 
behalf of the Manor City Council, do hereby proclaim Sunday, June 19th, 2022, as:  

 

“Juneteenth Day” 
 
in the City of Manor and urge all citizens to become more aware of the significance of this 
celebration in African American History and in the heritage of our Nation and City.  

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the seal of the City of Manor 
to be affixed this 15th day of June 2022.   

 
_______________________________ 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

       City of Manor 
 

6

Item A.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 1 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on an ordinance annexing 62.84 acres, more or less, located in Travis 
County, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way into the corporate limits of the City, at the 
request of the property owner; approving an Agreement for the Provision of Services for the annexed area; 
making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings and 
other related matters. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is at the SE corner of US 290 and Old Kimbro Road. A non-annexation development agreement was 
approved for it in 2017. Since the property has filed for a rezoning application and intends to change the current 
use, they are required to annex into the city limits per that non-annexation development agreement. The property 
owner also worked with the City to locate a lift station on the property as part of the Cottonwood WWTP 
development to provide wastewater service to the tract when it develops.  

This Public Hearing is requested to be postponed until July 20th. Notices will be resent out. Since the zoning is also 
requested to be postponed due to P&Z lack of quorum/action, the applicant would like the annexation to coincide 
with the zoning request. The new dates for this annexation would be:  

Public Hearing and First Reading – 7/20, Second Reading 8/3 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Ordinance  
• Post Annexation Provision of Services 

Agreement 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council postpone public hearing to the July 20, 2022, Regular 
Council Meeting.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 
POSTPONED 

 

7

Item 1.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Conduct a Public Hearing on an Ordinance rezoning 62.84 acres, more or less, out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey 
No. 52, Abstract No. 154, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and Old Kimbro Road, Manor, 
TX to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2). 
Applicant: Kimley-Horn and Associates 
Owner: Millcreek Residential 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is currently being annexed at the request of the property owner. They are proposing approximately 
52 acres of Townhome and 10 acres of Medium Commercial at the intersection. The current proposal is for 331 
townhome units. 

This item is requested to be postponed until July 20th. P&Z did not take up this item at the June 8th meeting due 
to a lack of quorum so it has been moved to P&Z’s July 13th meeting for consideration, then it will come before 
the Council on July 20th. Second reading will be on August 3rd.  
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Ordinance 
• Letter of Intent  
• Zoning Map  
• Area Map 

• Notice  
• Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council postpone public hearing to the July 20, 2022, Regular 
Council Meeting. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

8

Item 2.



 

 ORDINANCE NO.         
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND TO 
TOWNHOME (TH) AND MEDIUM COMMERCIAL (C-2); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 WHEREAS, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  

 WHEREAS, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred 
feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   WHEREAS, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 SECTION 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 SECTION 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the 
Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 SECTION 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing 
the zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibits “A-1” and “A-2”  (the 
“Property”), to zoning district Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2).  The Property is 
accordingly hereby rezoned to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2). 

 SECTION 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 
551, Texas Gov't. Code. 

9

Item 2.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2 
 

 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the ___ day of June 2022. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the ___ day of ___2022. 

  

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
  
 
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 

10

Item 2.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 3 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A-1” 
 

 
Property Legal Description Townhome (TH): 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11

Item 2.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 4 
 

 

 
 

 

 

12

Item 2.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 5 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13

Item 2.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 6 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A-2” 
 

 
Property Legal Description Medium Commercial (C-2): 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14

Item 2.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 7 
 

 

 
 

 

15

Item 2.



 

 

10814 Jollyville Road, Avallon IV, Suite 200Austin, TX 78759 
Contact: Amanda Brown. 214-695-9219  

Amanda.Brown@Kimley-Horn.com 

 
March 24, 2022 

 
 
 
Mr. Scott Dunlop  
City of Manor           Via Electronic Submittal 
Planning Department 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
Manor, TX 78653  
 

Re: Application for Rezoning; ±62 acres located east of Old Kimbro Rd, south of US Hwy 290, 
Manor, TX 78653 (the “Property”) 

 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 

As representatives of the owner of the above stated Property we respectfully submit the attached 
application for rezoning.  The Property is located east of Old Kimbro Rd, south of US Hwy 290, Manor, TX 
78653 (see Location Map attached) and is currently unzoned and in the City of Manor Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ). The proposed zoning is a combination of Townhome (TH) on the ±53 acre tract 
(description attached) and Medium Commercial (C-2) zoning on the ±9 acre tract (description attached).  
The purpose of the rezoning is to allow for a townhome development with associated commercial zoning to 
allow for a future, neighborhood serving commercial development along the Hwy 290 corridor that will 
meet the needs of Manor’s growing population.  An annexation application is being submitting concurrently 
with the zoning application.     

Surrounding zoning is commercial to the north, agriculture to the west, and no zoning to the south and 
east. Surrounding land uses include agriculture and single family residential to east, south, and west, and 
commercial to the north.  
 

If you have any questions about this application for rezoning or need additional information, please 
do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your time and attention to this project. 
 

 
 
Amanda Couch Brown 
 
 

 
 

16

Item 2.



 
10090 W Highway 29  |  Liberty Hill, Texas 78642 

TBPELS Firm No. 10001800  |  512-238-7901 office 
 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 9.38ac ALTA.docx Page 1 of 2 

 

EXHIBIT "      " 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
 

BEING 9.38 ACRES OF LAND, SURVEYED BY LANDESIGN SERVICES, 
INC., SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52, ABSTRACT 
154 IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 
62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN GENERAL WARRANTY 
DEED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 
2008096315 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS (O.P.R.T.C.T.), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

BEGINNING at a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “4WARD BOUDARY” found for the Northwest 
corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common West corner of a called 4.382 acre tract of land 
described in a Warranty Deed With Vendor’s Lien to Auspro Enterprises, L.P., recorded in 
Document No. 2019013915 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also at the intersection of the existing Easterly 
right-of-way line of Kimbro Road (Old State Hwy 20 - 80’ R.O.W.) and the existing Southerly 
right-of-way line of U.S. 290 (R.O.W. Varies); 
 
THENCE South 62°55’16” East with the North line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
South line of said 4.382 acre tract, a distance of 600.03 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set, from which a 1/2” rebar found for the Southeast corner of a called 1.00 acre tract 
of land described in a Warranty Deed to Francisco Ruiz and Sindy Silva, recorded in Document 
No. 2018008520 of said O.P.R.T.C.T. and the common Southwest corner of a called 5.565 acre 
tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Tani Investments, LLC, recorded in 
Document No. 2021257244 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also being the common Northwest corner of a 
called 0.112 acre tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to City of Manor, recorded in 
Document No. 2021052804 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., bears South 62°55’16” East a distance of  280.09 
feet; 
 
THENCE over and across said 62.8431 acre tract, the following two (2) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 27°21’49” West a distance of 638.36 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 

 
  

17

Item 2.



 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 9.38ac ALTA.docx Page 2 of 2 

 

2. North 72°21’49” West a distance of 597.01 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set in the West line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common existing Easterly 
right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, from which a 1/2” rebar found for the Southwest 
corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common Northwest corner of a called 56.652 acre 
tract described in a General Warranty Deed to Horsefeathers Farm, Inc., recorded in 
Document No. 2002187747 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also being in the common existing 
Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, bears South 26°27’38” West a distance of 
667.27 feet; 

 
THENCE North 26°27’38” East with the West line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
existing Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, a distance of 736.34 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING and containing 9.38 acres of land, more or less. 
 
This project is referenced for all bearing and coordinate basis to the Texas State Plane Coordinate 
System, North American Datum of 1983 (NAD83 – 2011 Adjustment), Central Zone (4203). All 
distances shown hereon are surface values represented in U.S. Survey Feet based on a grid-to-
surface combined adjustment factor of 1.00005359. 
 
This property description was prepared from an on-the-ground survey performed under my 
supervision and is accompanied by a separate plat of even date. The field work was completed on 
May 19, 2021. 
 
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED 
FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR 
RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT. 
 

______________________________________ 
Frank. W. Funk 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6803 
 
Job Number: 21-021 
Attachments: K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\CAD\DWGs\Old Kimbro Road 9.38ac ALTA.dwg 
 

18

Item 2.



 
10090 W Highway 29  |  Liberty Hill, Texas 78642 

TBPELS Firm No. 10001800  |  512-238-7901 office 
 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.docx Page 1 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT "      " 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
 

BEING 53.42 ACRES OF LAND, SURVEYED BY LANDESIGN SERVICES, 
INC., SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52, ABSTRACT 
154 IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 
62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN GENERAL WARRANTY 
DEED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 
2008096315 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS (O.P.R.T.C.T.), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

BEGINNING at a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI SURVEY” set in the North line of said 
62.8431 acre tract and the common South line of a called 4.382 acre tract of land described in a 
Warranty Deed With Vendor’s Lien to Auspro Enterprises, L.P., recorded in Document No. 
2019013915 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., from which a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “4WARD 
BOUNDARY” found for the Northwest corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common West 
corner of said  4.382 acre tract, also at the intersection of the existing Easterly right-of-way line of 
Kimbro Road (Old State Hwy 20 - 80’ R.O.W.) and the existing Southerly right-of-way line of 
U.S. 290 (R.O.W. Varies), bears North 62°55’16” West a distance of 600.03 feet; 
 
THENCE South 62°55’16” East with the North line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
South line of said 4.382 acre tract, and continuing with the common South line of a called 1.00 
acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Francisco Ruiz and Sindy Silva, recorded in 
Document No. 2018008520 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., a distance of 280.09 feet to a 1/2” rebar found 
for the Southeast corner of said 1.00 acre tract and the common Southwest corner of a called 5.565 
acre tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Tani Investments, LLC, recorded in 
Document No. 2021257244 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also being the Northwest corner of a called 0.112 
acre tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to City of Manor, recorded in Document 
No. 2021052804 of said O.P.R.T.C.T. and a common corner of said 62.8431 acre tract; 
 
THENCE with a Northerly line of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common line of said 0.112 acre 
tract, the following three (3) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 27°04’44” West a distance of 65.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; 

 
  

19

Item 2.



 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.docx Page 2 of 3 

 

2. South 62°55’16” East a distance of 75.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 
 

3. North 27°04’44” East a distance of 65.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set for the Northeast corner of said 0.112 acre tract and a common corner of 
said 62.8431 acre tract, also being in the South line of said 5.565 acre tract; 
 

THENCE South 62°55’16” East with the North line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
South line of said 5.565 acre tract, and continuing with the common South line of a called 15.71 
acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Klatt Properties, LP, recorded in Document No. 
2008204941 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., a distance of 998.89 feet to a 1/2” rebar found for the Northeast 
corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common Southeast corner of said 15.71 acre tract, also 
being in the West line of a called 20.235 acre tract of land described as Tract 1 in a General 
Warranty Deed to Austin 21 LLC, recorded in Document No. 2021136691 of said O.P.R.T.C.T.; 
 
THENCE with the East line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common West line of said 20.235 
acre tract, the following two (2) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 29°25’27” West a distance of 12.49 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 
 

2. South 26°40’55” West a distance of 304.61 feet to a 60d Nail found in a Mesquite tree for 
the Southwest corner of said 20.235 acre tract and the Northwest corner of a called 45.838 
acre tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed With Vendor’s Lien to Austin 21 
LLC, recorded in Document No. 2021248160 of said O.P.R.T.C.T.; 

 
THENCE with the East line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common West line of said 45.838 
acre tract, the following four (4) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 27°38’12” West a distance of 377.29 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped 
“BURRIS&ASSOC” found; 

 
2. South 26°43’45” West a distance of 143.94 feet to a 1/2” rebar found; 

 
3. South 26°58’00” West a distance of 243.98 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped 

“BURRIS&ASSOC” found; and 
 

4. South 26°59’10” West a distance of 330.89 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped 
“CHAPARRAL BOUNDARY” found for the Southeast corner of said 62.8431 acre tract 
and the common Southwest corner of said 45.838 acre tract, also being in the North line of 
a called 56.652 acre tract described in a General Warranty Deed to Horsefeathers Farm, 
Inc., recorded in Document No. 2002187747 of said O.P.R.T.C.T.; 
 

THENCE North 62°38’11” West with the South line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
North line of said 56.652 acre tract, a distance of 1,938.72 feet to a 1/2” rebar found for the 
Southwest corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common Northwest corner of said 56.652 acre 
tract, and being in the existing Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road; 
 

20

Item 2.



 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.docx Page 3 of 3 

 

THENCE North 26°27’38” East with the West line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
existing Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, a distance of 667.27 feet to a 1/2” rebar 
with cap stamped “LSI SURVEY” set, from which a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “4WARD 
BOUDARY” found for the Northwest corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common West corner 
of said 4.382 acre tract, also at the intersection of the existing Easterly right-of-way line of Kimbro 
Road (Old State Hwy 20 - 80’ R.O.W.) and the existing Southerly right-of-way line of U.S. 290 
(R.O.W. Varies), bears North 26°27’38” East a distance of 736.34 feet; 
 
THENCE over and across said 62.8431 acre tract, the following two (2) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 72°21’49” East a distance of 597.01 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 
 

2. North 27°21’49” East a distance of 638.36 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 
containing 53.42 acres of land, more or less. 

 
This project is referenced for all bearing and coordinate basis to the Texas State Plane Coordinate 
System, North American Datum of 1983 (NAD83 – 2011 Adjustment), Central Zone (4203). All 
distances shown hereon are surface values represented in U.S. Survey Feet based on a grid-to-
surface combined adjustment factor of 1.00005359. 
 
This property description was prepared from an on-the-ground survey performed under my 
supervision and is accompanied by a separate plat of even date. The field work was completed on 
May 19, 2021. 
 
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR 
ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR 
RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT. 
______________________________________ 
Frank. W. Funk 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6803 
 
Job Number: 21-021 
Attachments: K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\CAD\DWGs\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.dwg 
 

21

Item 2.



JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P.,

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

62.805 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2008096315

O.P.R.T.C.T.

U

.

S

.

 

2

9

0

(

R

.

O

.

W

.

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

)

K
I
M

B
R
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
O

L
D

 
S
T
A
T
E
 
H

W
Y
 
2
0
)

(
8
0
'
 
R
.
O

.
W

.
)

(
V
O

L
.
 
4
8
2
,
 
P
G

.
 
4
1
9
)

HORSEFEATHERS FARM, INC

(56.652 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2002187747

O.P.R.T.C.T.

FRANCISCO RUIZ AND

SINDY SILVA

(1.00 ACRE)

DOC. NO. 2018009520

O.P.R.T.C.T.

DAVIS RICE

(5.565 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2013207877

O.P.R.T.C.T.

KLATT PROPERTIES, LP

(15.71 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2008204941

O.P.R.T.C.T.

ROBERTO M. MONROY,

GONZALO C. MONROY AND

FIDEL M. TINAJERO

(45.838 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2011066143

O.P.R.T.C.T.

MATHEN MATHEN AND

ANNAMMA MATHEN

(20.235 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2012006009

O.P.R.T.C.T.

REAL PEOPLE HOMES, INC

(4.382 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2003038912

O.P.R.T.C.T.

CITY OF MANOR

(0.112 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 202105204

O.P.R.T.C.T.

S62°55'16"E  880.13'
S62°55'16"E  880.13'

L
1

L2

L
3

S62°55'16"E  998.89'

S29°25'27"W

12.49'

S
2
6
°
4
0
'
5
5
"
W

 
 
3
0
4
.
6
1
'

S
2
7
°
3
8
'
1
2
"
W

 
 
3
7
7
.
2
9
'

S
2
6
°
4
3
'
4
5
"
W

1
4
3
.
9
4
'

S
2
6
°
5
8
'
0
0
"
W

 
 
2
4
3
.
9
8
'

S
2
6
°
5
9
'
1
0
"
W

 
 
3
3
0
.
8
9
'

N62°38'11"W  1938.72'

N
2
6
°
2
7
'
3
8
"
E
 
 
1
4
0
3
.
6
1
'

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
P

A
T

H
:
 
K

:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

D
\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
2
0
-
0
2
1
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
.
D

W
G

 
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
P

L
O

T
 
S

I
Z

E
:
 
A

R
C

H
 
F

U
L
L
 
B

L
E

E
D

 
D

 
(
2
4
.
0
0
 
X

 
3
6
.
0
0
 
I
N

C
H

E
S

)
 
 
L
A

S
T

 
S

A
V

E
D

:
 
6
/
2
/
2
0
2
1
 
9
:
2
0
 
A

M
 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
:
 
6
/
2
/
2
0
2
1
 
9
:
2
2
 
A

M

10
09

0 
W

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 2
9,

  L
IB

ER
TY

 H
IL

L,
 T

EX
A

S 
78

64
2

TB
PE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
O

. 1
00

01
80

0
51

2-
23

8-
79

01

K
:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O

R
D

\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
2
0
-
0
2
1
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
.
D

W
G

22

Item 2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP FL=482.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP FL=483.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN POST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE JUNCTION BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARB WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSES FROM RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP SET (STAMPED "LSI SURVEY")

AutoCAD SHX Text
60D NAIL FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE CORNER POST FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED POINT NOT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S11°22'30"E 34.56')

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4WARD BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.E.GARON RPLS 4303

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURRIS& ASSOC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURRIS& ASSOC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPARRAL BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUBBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW PAINT STRIPE

Chris DEZEVALLOS
GENERAL NOTES: THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE SYSTEM,  SYSTEM, SYSTEM, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83 - 2011 ADJUSTMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203).  DISTANCES AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  SURVEY FEET BASED ON A SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  FEET BASED ON A FEET BASED ON A  BASED ON A BASED ON A  ON A ON A  A A GRID-TO-SURFACE COMBINED ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 1.00005359 ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON GPS OBSERVATIONS (GEOID 12B).  SOME FEATURES SHOWN HEREON MAY BE OUT OF SCALE FOR CLARITY. DIMENSIONS AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND LEVEL. UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  OF UNDERGROUND OF UNDERGROUND  UNDERGROUND UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UTILITIES UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  811 PRIOR TO 811 PRIOR TO  PRIOR TO PRIOR TO  TO TO EXCAVATION. EXISTING TREES WERE NOT LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY OR SHOWN FOR THIS DESIGN SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD NOTE: THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  "X" AND ZONE "A" NO "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  AND ZONE "A" NO AND ZONE "A" NO  ZONE "A" NO ZONE "A" NO  "A" NO "A" NO  NO NO BASE ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  FEDERAL EMERGENCY FEDERAL EMERGENCY  EMERGENCY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  SHOWN ON MAP NO. SHOWN ON MAP NO.  ON MAP NO. ON MAP NO.  MAP NO. MAP NO.  NO. NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  NO. 48453C0485J DATED NO. 48453C0485J DATED  48453C0485J DATED 48453C0485J DATED  DATED DATED AUGUST 18, 2014 FOR TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS. THIS FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  AND/OR STRUCTURES AND/OR STRUCTURES  STRUCTURES STRUCTURES THEREON WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  THIS FLOOD STATEMENT THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FLOOD STATEMENT FLOOD STATEMENT  STATEMENT STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON THE PART OF THE SURVEYOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPO CERTIFICATION THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  MAP WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY MAP WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  THE FIELD WORK THE FIELD WORK  FIELD WORK FIELD WORK  WORK WORK WAS COMPLETED ON MAY 19, 2021. ______________________________ RAY D. WEGER REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR STATE OF TEXAS NO. 4711

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION  EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2018009520 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION   EASEMENT DOC. NO. 202105198 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.R.A. EASEMENT VOL. 634, PG. 286 CITED IN TITLE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECT  .

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN AND BOUNDARY VERIFICATION SURVEY OF 62.805 ACRES (2,735,807 SQUARE FEET)  OF LAND SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52 ABSTRACT 154, TRAVIS COUNTY,  TEXAS AND BEING ALL OF CALLED 62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315  OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME: JTM Old Kimbro Rd. JTM Old Kimbro Rd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER: 21-021 21-021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 06/02/2021 06/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING FILE PATH: K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO  K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDNOTE FILE PATH:  XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPLS: RDW RDW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: RDW RDW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH: JCA JCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTYCHIEF: JE JE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK: 362 362

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=100' 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NAME:  20-021 Old Kimbro Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  01 of 01of 01 01

rdweger
RPLS Seal

Michael.Lee
Cloud



JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P.,

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

62.8431 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2008096315

O.P.R.T.C.T.

U

.

S

.

 

2

9

0

(

R

.

O

.

W

.

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

)

K
I
M

B
R
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
O

L
D

 
S
T
A
T
E
 
H

W
Y
 
2
0
)

(
8
0
'
 
R
.
O

.
W

.
)

(
V
O

L
.
 
4
8
2
,
 
P
G

.
 
4
1
9
)

HORSEFEATHERS FARM, INC

(56.652 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2002187747

O.P.R.T.C.T.

FRANCISCO RUIZ AND

SINDY SILVA

(1.00 ACRE)

DOC. NO. 2018009520

O.P.R.T.C.T.

TANI INVESTMENTS, LLC

(5.565 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021257244

O.P.R.T.C.T.

KLATT PROPERTIES, LP

(15.71 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2008204941

O.P.R.T.C.T.

AUSTIN 21 LLC

(45.838 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021248160

O.P.R.T.C.T.

AUSTIN 21 LLC

TRACT 1 (20.235 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021136691

O.P.R.T.C.T.

D

I

R

T

 
T

R

A

I

L

D

I

R

T

 

T

R

A

I

L

POND

POND

POND

AUSPRO ENTERPRISES LP

(4.382 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2019013915

O.P.R.T.C.T.

CITY OF MANOR

(0.112 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021052804

O.P.R.T.C.T.

24" CMP

24" CMP

24" CMP

24" CMP

4WARD BOUNDARY

2" CONDUIT

30" RCP

30" RCP

J.E. GARON

RPLS 4303

CONCRETE PAD

RUBBLE

CHAPARRAL

BOUNDARY

BURRIS&

ASSOC

BURRIS&

ASSOC

JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P.,

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

62.8431 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2008096315

O.P.R.T.C.T.

N

7

2

°

2

1

'
4

9

"

W

 
 
5

9

7

.
0

1

'

N
2
6
°
2
7
'
3
8
"
E
 
 
7
3
6
.
3
4
'

S62°55'16"E  600.03'

S
2
7
°
2
1
'
4
9
"
W

 
 
6
3
8
.
3
6
'

POINT OF BEGINNING

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
P

A
T

H
:
 
K

:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

D
\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
 
9
.
3
8
A

C
 
A

L
T

A
.
D

W
G

 
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
P

L
O

T
 
S

I
Z

E
:
 
A

R
C

H
 
F

U
L
L
 
B

L
E

E
D

 
D

 
(
2
4
.
0
0
 
X

 
3
6
.
0
0
 
I
N

C
H

E
S

)
 
 
L
A

S
T

 
S

A
V

E
D

:
 
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
2
 
4
:
0
9
 
P

M
 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
:
 
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
2
:
4
7
 
P

M

10
09

0 
W

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 2
9,

  L
IB

ER
TY

 H
IL

L,
 T

EX
A

S 
78

64
2

TB
PE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
O

. 1
00

01
80

0
51

2-
23

8-
79

01

K
:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O

R
D

\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
 
9
.
3
8
A

C
 
A

L
T

A
.
D

W
G

23

Item 2.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52 ABSTRACT 154

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN POST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE JUNCTION BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARB WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSES FROM RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP SET (STAMPED "LSI SURVEY")

AutoCAD SHX Text
60D NAIL FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE CORNER POST FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED POINT NOT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S11°22'30"E 34.56')

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.R.A. EASEMENT VOL. 634, PG. 286 D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2018009520 NO. 2018009520 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION   EASEMENT DOC. NO. 202105198 NO. 202105198 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.38 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.R.A. EASEMENT VOL. 634, PG. 286 D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 2020071567 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY AGREEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 2001007355 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION  EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA SURVEY OF 9.38 ACRES OF LAND  SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52 ABSTRACT 154, TRAVIS COUNTY,  TEXAS AND BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315  OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME: JTM OLD KIMBRO RD JTM OLD KIMBRO RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER: 21-021 21-021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 06/02/2021 06/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING FILE PATH: K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO  K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDNOTE FILE PATH: K:\21021 - JTM OLD  K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO RD\DESCRIPTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPLS: FWF FWF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: HAS HAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH: JRM JRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTYCHIEF: JE JE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK: 362 362

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=100' 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NAME:  OLD KIMBRO ROAD 9.38AC ALTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  01 of 01of 01 01

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE SYSTEM,  SYSTEM, SYSTEM, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83 - 2011 ADJUSTMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203).  DISTANCES AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  SURVEY FEET BASED ON SURVEY FEET BASED ON  FEET BASED ON FEET BASED ON  BASED ON BASED ON  ON ON A GRID-TO-SURFACE COMBINED ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 1.00005359. SOME FEATURES SHOWN HEREON MAY BE OUT OF SCALE FOR CLARITY. DIMENSIONS AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  FOOTPRINT AT GROUND FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  AT GROUND AT GROUND  GROUND GROUND LEVEL. UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  OF UNDERGROUND OF UNDERGROUND  UNDERGROUND UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UTILITIES UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  811 PRIOR TO 811 PRIOR TO  PRIOR TO PRIOR TO  TO TO EXCAVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE PROVIDED BY: CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT NO. 8000362100979  8000362100979 ISSUE DATE: SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 EFFECTIVE DATE: SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 ONLY THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  WERE REVIEWED FOR THE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  REVIEWED FOR THE REVIEWED FOR THE  FOR THE FOR THE  THE THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  OF THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, OF THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  EASEMENTS, EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS, OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES WHICH AFFECT THIS SURVEY THAT ARE NOT KNOWN TO THIS SURVEYOR. SCHEDULE B EXCEPTIONS: a. RIGHTS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) RIGHTS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) b. THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  OWNER POLICY OF TITLE OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  POLICY OF TITLE POLICY OF TITLE  OF TITLE OF TITLE  TITLE TITLE INSURANCE AND THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  AND THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE AND THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  A SURVEY OF THE A SURVEY OF THE  SURVEY OF THE SURVEY OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE LAND, ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, FOR REVIEW AT OR PRIOR TO CLOSING: ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  TITLE THAT WOULD BE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  THAT WOULD BE THAT WOULD BE  WOULD BE WOULD BE  BE BE DISCLOSED BY AN ACCURATE AND COMPLETE LAND SURVEY OF THE LAND. NOTE: UPON RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  UPON RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY UPON RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  BE DELETED. THE COMPANY BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  DELETED. THE COMPANY DELETED. THE COMPANY  THE COMPANY THE COMPANY  COMPANY COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  REVIEWING SAID SURVEY REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  SAID SURVEY SAID SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) c. THOSE LIENS CREATED AT CLOSING, IF ANY, PURSUANT TO LENDER INSTRUCTIONS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) THOSE LIENS CREATED AT CLOSING, IF ANY, PURSUANT TO LENDER INSTRUCTIONS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) d. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT   MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT   ENTITLED:   BOUNDARY AGREEMENT BOUNDARY AGREEMENT DATED:   DECEMBER 18, 2000 DECEMBER 18, 2000 EXECUTED BY:   JUDDIE MAE JONES AND ANN WEAVER RECORDING DATE: JANUARY 16, 2001 JUDDIE MAE JONES AND ANN WEAVER RECORDING DATE: JANUARY 16, 2001 RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2001007355, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     DOCUMENT NO. 2001007355, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS. (SHOWN ON SURVEY) e. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT: EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT: : GRANTED TO:  BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. PURPOSE:   EASEMENT EASEMENT    RECORDING NO: VOLUME 12728, PAGE 351, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS RECORDING NO: VOLUME 12728, PAGE 351, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS VOLUME 12728, PAGE 351, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     (NO DESCRIPTION PROVIDED IN RECORD DOCUMENT - NOTED HEREON) f. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  GRANTED TO:  LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY PURPOSE:   ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION RECORDING NO: VOLUME 634, PAGE 286, DEED RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS VOLUME 634, PAGE 286, DEED RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) g. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  ENTITLED:   DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DATED:   SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 EXECUTED BY:  JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. AND CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. AND CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS RECORDING DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2017  DECEMBER 15, 2017  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST DOCUMENT NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  AS AFFECTED BY FIRST AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  AFFECTED BY FIRST AFFECTED BY FIRST  BY FIRST BY FIRST  FIRST FIRST AMENDMENT FILED DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  FILED DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, FILED DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  TRAVIS COUNTY, TRAVIS COUNTY,  COUNTY, COUNTY, TEXAS REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) h. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  ENTITLED:   EASEMENT AGREEMENT EASEMENT AGREEMENT DATED:   MARCH 25, 2020 MARCH 25, 2020 EXECUTED BY:  BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC AND JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC AND JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP RECORDING DATE:  MAY 4, 2020  MAY 4, 2020  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2020071567, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 2020071567, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) i. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  ENTITLED:   TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT DATED:   FEBRUARY 5, 2021 FEBRUARY 5, 2021 EXECUTED BY:  JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. TO CITY OF MANOR JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. TO CITY OF MANOR RECORDING DATE:  JANUARY 1, 2021  JANUARY 1, 2021  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2021052198, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 2021052198, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) j. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  GRANTED TO:  CITY OF MANOR CITY OF MANOR PURPOSE:   LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT RECORDING DATE:  MARCH 11, 2021  MARCH 11, 2021  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2021052201, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 2021052201, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) k. RIGHTS OF TENANTS IN POSSESSION, AS TENANTS ONLY, UNDER UNRECORDED LEASE AGREEMENTS (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) RIGHTS OF TENANTS IN POSSESSION, AS TENANTS ONLY, UNDER UNRECORDED LEASE AGREEMENTS (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) l. IF ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR IF ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  INCLUDES FUNDS FOR INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  FUNDS FOR FUNDS FOR  FOR FOR IMMEDIATELY CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  ANY POLICY ISSUED AS ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  POLICY ISSUED AS POLICY ISSUED AS  ISSUED AS ISSUED AS  AS AS INDICATED: OWNER AND LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  AND LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR AND LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  FOR WORK PERFORMED OR FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  WORK PERFORMED OR WORK PERFORMED OR  PERFORMED OR PERFORMED OR  OR OR MATERIALS FURNISHED IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  FURNISHED IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE FURNISHED IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  LAND. HOWEVER, THE LAND. HOWEVER, THE  HOWEVER, THE HOWEVER, THE  THE THE COMPANY DOES INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  DOES INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS DOES INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  POLICY IF SUCH LIENS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  IF SUCH LIENS IF SUCH LIENS  SUCH LIENS SUCH LIENS  LIENS LIENS HAVE BEEN FILED WITH THE COUNTY CLERK OF COUNTY, TEXAS, PRIOR TO THE DATE HEREOF. OWNER POLICY(IES) ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  POLICY(IES) ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS POLICY(IES) ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  SHALL INCREASE AS SHALL INCREASE AS  INCREASE AS INCREASE AS  AS AS CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  IMPROVEMENTS ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE IMPROVEMENTS ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  TO SAID SUM PLUS THE TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  SAID SUM PLUS THE SAID SUM PLUS THE  SUM PLUS THE SUM PLUS THE  PLUS THE PLUS THE  THE THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  ACTUALLY EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR ACTUALLY EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  EXPENDITURES MADE FOR EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  MADE FOR MADE FOR  FOR FOR IMPROVEMENTS, SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  OF THIS POLICY. IN NO OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THIS POLICY. IN NO THIS POLICY. IN NO  POLICY. IN NO POLICY. IN NO  IN NO IN NO  NO NO EVENT SHALL THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  SHALL THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN SHALL THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  NOTHING CONTAINED IN NOTHING CONTAINED IN  CONTAINED IN CONTAINED IN  IN IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS LIMITING ANY EXCEPTION OR ANY PRINTED PROVISION OF THIS POLICY. LOAN POLICY(IES) ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  POLICY(IES) ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET POLICY(IES) ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  LIEN INSTRUMENT SET LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  INSTRUMENT SET INSTRUMENT SET  SET SET FORTH UNDER SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  UNDER SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT UNDER SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  DISBURSED, BUT DISBURSED, BUT  BUT BUT INCREASE AS EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  AS EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, AS EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  OR OBJECTIONS TO, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  OBJECTIONS TO, OBJECTIONS TO,  TO, TO, THE TITLE UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  TITLE UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS TITLE UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  BE CONSTRUED AS BE CONSTRUED AS  CONSTRUED AS CONSTRUED AS  AS AS LIMITING ANY EXCEPTION UNDER SCHEDULE B, OR ANY PRINTED PROVISION OF THIS POLICY. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) m. ALL LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL ALL LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  TOGETHER WITH ALL TOGETHER WITH ALL  WITH ALL WITH ALL  ALL ALL RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES, AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  PRIVILEGES, AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR PRIVILEGES, AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  IN SCHEDULE B OR IN SCHEDULE B OR  SCHEDULE B OR SCHEDULE B OR  B OR B OR  OR OR NOT. THERE MAY BE LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF MINERAL INTEREST THAT ARE NOT LISTED.  (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: IMPORTANT NOTE: THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  NOTE: THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOTE: THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  OF PROPERTY, OF PROPERTY,  PROPERTY, PROPERTY, NOR SHOULD SAME BE CONSIDERED FOR LEGAL DOCUMENTATION. (SUBJECT TO REQUIREMENT ON SCHEDULE C) BEING 26.4 ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  26.4 ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN 26.4 ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  PART OF THAT CERTAIN PART OF THAT CERTAIN  OF THAT CERTAIN OF THAT CERTAIN  THAT CERTAIN THAT CERTAIN  CERTAIN CERTAIN 62.8431 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  NO. 2008096315, NO. 2008096315,  2008096315, 2008096315, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. NOTE: THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  ANY STATEMENT IN THE ANY STATEMENT IN THE  STATEMENT IN THE STATEMENT IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE ABOVE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  AREA OR QUANTITY IS AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OR QUANTITY IS OR QUANTITY IS  QUANTITY IS QUANTITY IS  IS IS CORRECT, BUT IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  BUT IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B BUT IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  2 OF SCHEDULE B 2 OF SCHEDULE B  OF SCHEDULE B OF SCHEDULE B  SCHEDULE B SCHEDULE B  B B HEREOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2021 ALTA/NSPS TABLE A NOTES: ITEM 1: MONUMENTS FOUND OR SET AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY. MONUMENTS FOUND OR SET AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY. ITEM 2: NO ADDRESS DISCLOSED OR OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. NO ADDRESS DISCLOSED OR OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. ITEM 3: THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS : THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  NO BASE ELEVATIONS NO BASE ELEVATIONS  BASE ELEVATIONS BASE ELEVATIONS  ELEVATIONS ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  FEDERAL INSURANCE FEDERAL INSURANCE  INSURANCE INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  2008 AND MAP NO. 2008 AND MAP NO.  AND MAP NO. AND MAP NO.  MAP NO. MAP NO.  NO. NO. 48453C0485J DATED AUGUST 18, 2014 FOR TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS. THIS FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  STRUCTURES THEREON WILL STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  THEREON WILL THEREON WILL  WILL WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  CREATE LIABILITY ON CREATE LIABILITY ON  LIABILITY ON LIABILITY ON  ON ON THE PART OF THE SURVEYOR. ITEM 4: THE TOTAL AREA OF THE COMMITMENT PARCEL IS 9.38 ACRES MORE OR LESS. THE TOTAL AREA OF THE COMMITMENT PARCEL IS 9.38 ACRES MORE OR LESS. ITEM 7a. NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. ITEM 8: SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  ARE AS SHOWN ON ARE AS SHOWN ON  AS SHOWN ON AS SHOWN ON  SHOWN ON SHOWN ON  ON ON THE SURVEY. ITEM 9.  NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. ITEM 13. NAMES OF ADJOINING OWNERS ACCORDING TO PUBLIC RECORDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY.NAMES OF ADJOINING OWNERS ACCORDING TO PUBLIC RECORDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY CERTIFICATION: TO JCI RESIDENTIAL, LLC AND FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  IS BASED WERE MADE IN IS BASED WERE MADE IN  BASED WERE MADE IN BASED WERE MADE IN  WERE MADE IN WERE MADE IN  MADE IN MADE IN  IN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  LAND TITLE SURVEYS, LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  TITLE SURVEYS, TITLE SURVEYS,  SURVEYS, SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  8, 9 & 13 OF 8, 9 & 13 OF  9 & 13 OF 9 & 13 OF  & 13 OF & 13 OF  13 OF 13 OF  OF OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON MAY 19, 2021. DATE OF PLAT OR MAP: MARCH 8, 2022 ______________________________ FRANK W. FUNK REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR STATE OF TEXAS NO. 6803

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT.



E US 290 HWY EB
E US 290 HWY WB

KIM
BR

O 
RD

OLD KIMBRO RD

BE
LT

EX
 DR

BO
IS 

D A
RC

 RD

FM
 11

00
 RD

VOELKER LN

WT GALLAWAY ST

CL
AR

A M
AR

TIN
 RD

SMITH GIN ST

JAMES MANOR ST

GU
NN

 LN

NELSON HOUSER ST

WOODROW WILSON ST

EASY JET ST

ELLARY LN

RACIN PATTY ST

TAYSHAS ST

CA
BIN

ET
 DR

FM
 11

00
 R

D

Subject Property:
62.80 Acres ¹

0 1,300 2,600650
Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family
Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family
15
MF-2 - Multi-Family
25

MH-1 - Manufactured
Home
I-1 - Institutional
Small
I-2 - Institutional
Large
GO - General Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial
C-3 - Heavy
Commercial

NB - Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit
Development
ETJ

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :
T o w n h o m e  ( T H )T o w n h o m e  ( T H )

M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )
24

Item 2.



 

 

 

25

Item 2.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 

(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 

 

April 27, 2022 

 

City of Manor Development Services 

 

Notification for a Rezoning Application 
 

 

Case Number: 2022-P-1428-ZO 

Case Manager: Scott Dunlop 

Contact: sdunlop@cityofmanor.org - 512-215-8262 

  

 

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting regularly 

scheduled meetings for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning Application for 62.84 

acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 E and Old Kimbro Rd., Manor, 

TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 

 

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for 62.84 acres, more or less, 

out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey No. 52, Abstract No. 154, and being located near the intersection of 

US Hwy 290 E and Old Kimbro Rd., Manor, TX to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-

2). 

Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates   

Owner: Millcreek Residential 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on May 11, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street 

in the City Hall Council Chambers.   

 

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on May 18, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this Rezoning 

Application has been filed. Comments may also be addressed to the email address or phone number above. 

Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and Council Members during 

the discussion of this item. 
 

 

 

26

Item 2.



PHAN HOAN VAN & THU THI HUYNH  
5701 LONG CT 

AUSTIN TX 78730-5056 
 

PHAN HOAN VAN & THU THI HUYNH  
5701 LONG CT 

AUSTIN TX 78730-5056 
 

TAPIA TOMAS  
12908 OLD KIMBRO RD 
MANOR TX 78653-4519 

CYPRESS BLUFF LLC  
12822 KIMBRO RD 
MANOR TX 78653 

 
CYPRESS BLUFF LLC 
12822 KIMBRO RD 
MANOR TX 78653 

 
JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE LP  

9225 KATY FRWY 
HOUSTON TX 77024-1521 

AUSTIN27 LLC  
117 Fort Hood Ln 

Georgetown TX 78628-6007 
 

AUSTIN 21 LLC  
117 FORT HOOD LN 

GEORGETOWN TX 78628-6007 
 

AUSTIN 21 LLC  
117 FORT HOOD LN 

GEORGETOWN TX 78628-6007 

KLATT PROPERTIES LP  
2001 PICADILLY DR 

ROUND ROCK TX 78664-9511 
 

TANI INVESTMENTS LLC ETAL  
7606 Brae Acres Ct 

Houston TX 77074-4123 
 

RUIZ FRANCISCO & SINDY SILVA  
13232 HIGH SIERRA ST 

MANOR TX 78653-5378 

 
CITY OF MANOR  

105 E EGGLESTON ST 
MANOR TX 78653-3463 

 
RUIZ FRANCISCO & SINDY SILVA  

13232 HIGH SIERRA ST 
MANOR TX 78653-5378 

 
AUSPRO ENTERPRISES LP  

PO BOX 13549 
AUSTIN TX 78711-3549 

TIMMERMAN COMMERCIAL 
INVESTMENTS LP (1729480) 

501 VALE ST 
AUSTIN TX 78746-5732 

    

     

     

     

     

27

Item 2.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 3 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Conduct a Public Hearing on a revised Concept Plan for the Butler - Manor Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 
acres more or less, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 
Applicant: LJA Engineering  
Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This concept plan was originally approved on January 19th, 2022. This revision adds 5 additional pads sites, turns 1 
large tract into 4 tracts, and modifies the land use of “Phase 2” from commercial to multi-family to be consistent 
with the zoning. 

This item was not taken up for action by the P&Z due to a lack of quorum. However, in our Subdivision Code Section 
20(a) since this Concept Plan was approved by our engineer then it is automatically approved:  
Section 20. - General Procedure 
In the event that a Municipal Authority subject to quorum requirements fails to act due to lack of a quorum at the 
meeting at which an application is posted for action, then: (i) the application will be deemed approved if the City 
Staff review letter for the application states that the application meets the requirements of this Chapter and 
applicable state law and recommends approval of the application 
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Plat 
• Engineer Conformance Letter 
• Notice  
• Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City Staff’s recommendation that the City Council conduct a public hearing on a revised Concept Plan for 
the Butler - Manor Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located near the 
intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 
X 

 

28

Item 3.



29

Item 3.



30

Item 3.



Date: Friday, May 27, 2022

Don Sansom
LJA Engineering
7500 Rialto Blvd #2-100
Austin TX 78735
dsansom@LJA.com

Permit Number 2022-P-1438-CP
Job Address: 13100 N. FM Rd 973, Manor 78653

Dear Don Sansom,

We have conducted a review of the concept plan for the above-referenced project, submitted by Don 
Sansom and received by our office on May 18, 2022, for conformance with the City of Manor Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B.  The Plans appear to 
be in general compliance with City Ordinance requirements and we therefore take no exception to 
their approval as presented. 

Please submit a hard copy of the Concept Plan to Scott Dunlop at the City of Manor for 
signatures.  A copy of the signed Concept Plan will be uploaded under project files on the my 
permit now website.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations 
supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete or adequate for the intended purpose. The 
engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy and adequacy of his/her 
submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance. Please 
call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Senior Engineer
Jay Engineering, a Division of GBA

31

Item 3.



5/27/2022 3:16:54 PM
Butler Manor Concept Plan Revised
2022-P-1438-CP
Page 2

32

Item 3.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 

(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 

 

May 26, 2022 

 

City of Manor Development Services 

 

Notification for a Subdivision Concept Plan 
 

 

Case Number: 2021-P-1438-CP 

Case Manager: Scott Dunlop 

Contact: sdunlop@cityofmanor.org - 512-215-8262 

  

 

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting regularly 

scheduled meetings for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Revised Subdivision Concept 

Plan for the Butler - Manor Subdivision located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, 

Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 

 

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a revised Concept Plan for the Butler - Manor 

Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located near the intersection 

of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 

Applicant: LJA Engineering  

Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on June 8, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street 

in the City Hall Council Chambers.   

 

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on June 15, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this Concept 

Plan has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone number above. Any 

communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and Council Members during the 

discussion of this item. 
 

 

 

33

Item 3.



 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MANOR ISD  
TCAD PID 951281 
C/O BUTLER FAMILY PARTNERSHIP 
P.O. BOX 9190 
AUSTIN, TX 78766-9190 

  
OZIE MONROE SR FAMILY TRUST  
TCAD PID 236853 
C/O MARILYN MONROE HALL 
P.O. BOX 254 
MANOR, TX 78653-0254 

  
TIMMERMAN COMMERCIAL INVESTMENTS 
LP 
TCAD PID 236854 
501 VALE ST 
AUSTIN, TX 78746-5732 

 
GREENVIEW MANOR COMMONS SW, LP 
TCAD PID 874848 & 874849 
P.O. BOX 162304  
AUSTIN, TX 78716-2304 

  
SURFVIEW MANOR, LLC  
TCAD PID 860814 
19 BAY VISTA DR 
MILL VALLEY, CA 94941-1604 

  
HAZA REALTY, LP  
TCAD PID 860813 
4415 HIGHWAY 6 
SUGAR LAND, TX 77478-4476 

 
CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS, LLC  
TCAD PID 860812 
1683 WALNUT GROVE AVE 
ROSEMOND, CA 91770-3711 

  
WAL-MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS 
TRUST MS 0555 
TCAD PID 830450 & 830451 
P.O. BOX 8050 
BENTONVILLE, AR 72712-8055 

  
SCF RC FUNDING IV, LLC 
TCAD PID 830449 
902 CARNEGIE CENTER BLVD #520 
PRINCETON, NJ 08540-6531 

 
COTTONWOOD HOLDINGS, LTD 
TCAD PID 725370 
C/O DWYER REALTY COMPANIES 
9900 US HWY 290 E. 
MANOR, TX 78653-9720 

  
ASC MEDICAL 8 HOLDINGS, LLC 
TCAD PID 710219 
885 WOODSTOCK RD #430-330 
ROSWELL, GA 30075-2277 

  
SHADOWGLEN GOLF, LP 
TCAD PID 568065 
12801 LEXINGTON ST 
MANOR, TX 78653-3333 

 
SHERMAN & SYLVIA M WHITE JR 
TCAD PID 697020 
13720 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

  
MICKEY JONATHAN & RACHEL MOLAD 
TCAD PID 697021 
13724 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

  
SONNY & APRIL ANN WILLIS 
TCAD PID 697022 
13728 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

 
REALTRON, INC 
TCAD PID 697023 
13276 RESEARCH BLVD #105 
AUSTIN, TX 78750-3225 

  
PHILLIP P & IRMA EWING 
TCAD PID 697024 
13721 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

  
ARTURO SANCHEZ &  
SAN JUANA PEREZ SANCHEZ 
TCAD PID 697025 
13717 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

 
TRAVIS CO MUD #2 
TCAD PID 724199 
C/O SUE BROOKS LITTLEFIELD 
100 CONGRESS AVE #1300 
AUSTIN, TX 78701-2744 

  
LAMONT & SHARLA M. RANDLE 
TCAD PID 697026 
11709 PILLOW PL 
MANOR, TX 78653 

  
THOMAS & AMANDA MULLEN 
TCAD PID 697027 
11713 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

 
HUMBERTO SUAREZ 
TCAD PID 697028 
11717 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
MICHAEL & LAUREN MANKER 
TCAD PID 697029 
11721 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
MARILYN D. MCARTHUR 
TCAD PID 697030 
11725 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

 
GARY L. STIGGERS 
TCAD PID 697031 
11729 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
WILLIAMS WESLEY TAYLOR JR & 
JERY ANN TAYLOR 
TCAD PID 697032 
11733 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
MAURA & TERRENCE HAYS III 
TCAD PID 697033 
11737 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

 
DAFFNEY A HENRY 
TCAD PID 697034 
13745 SHADY RIDGE 
MANOR, TX 78653-3770 

  
BENJAMIN & MARISA DEL LA GARZA 
TCAD PID 697054 
11708 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
ALLEN C AMBUHL & DEBRA K YOUNG 
TCAD PID 697055 
11712 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

34

Item 3.



 
GEORGE BROWN JR 
TCAD PID 697056 
P.O. BOX 1158 
MANOR, TX 78653-1158 

  
ANTHONY & VICTORIA HUNT 
TCAD PID 697057 
11720 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
SEAN & SUMMER CURTIS 
TCAD PID 700577 
913 N. INYO ST 
RIDGECREST, CA 93555-3000 

  

 
CARMEN & RODOLFO ACOSTA 
TCAD PID 700578 
13820 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

  
BRETT R. BENEDETTI 
TCAD PID 700579 
13824 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

  
DAISY PRIETO & SALVADOR U FLORES 
TCAD PID 700580 
13828 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

 
ASPAZIA BITA 
TCAD PID 700581 
13832 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

  
TODD CURTIS PHILLIPS &  
SAMANTHA ANNETTE PHILLIPS 
TCAD PID 700582 
11501 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

  
AKINYEMI P. AJAI & PRISCILLA O AJAI 
TCAD PID 700616 
11505 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

 
JENNIFER & MICHAEL WHITE 
TCAD PID 700648 
11509 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

  
MAYRA HERNANDEZ 
TCAD PID 700621 
11513 GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653 

  
GLADYS & JEFFREY LEWIS 
TCAD PID 700622 
11517 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

 
CORETTA BELL-SEXTON &  
JOHNNY F SEXTON JR 
TCAD PID 700623 
11601 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

  
KRISTIN L & SCOTT P VANDENBERG 
TCAD PID 700624 
11605 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

  
CHARLIE HOLMES &  
MARK BURGESSPORTER 
TCAD PID 700625 
C/O STEPHENS LAMB 
P.O. BOX 27626 
MACON, GA 31221-7626 

 
BRENT WILLIAM SPEAD &  
SHYLA ANAHITA SPEAD 
TCAD PID 700626 
11613 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

  
STEPHEN C & SANDRA L ITNYRE 
TCAD PID 700627 
11617 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

 

  
CHARLES L & AURSHA R WALDON 
TCAD PID 700628 
11621 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

 
AGATA GRUZA & ERIC MICHAEL DALEY 
TCAD PID 700620 
13824 LONG SHADOW DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3883 

  
DAVID L & JOSIE U HANEY 
TCAD PID 700649 
13825 TERCEL TRACE 
MANOR, TX 78653-3879 

  
PROPERTY OWNER 
TCAD PID 700650 
13821 TERCEL TRACE 
MANOR, TX 78653 

 
TORVALD TOMAS VALENTIJ HESSEL &  
RYAN ELISABETH FLEMING 
TCAD PID 700670 
16408 CHRISTINA GARZA DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-2162 

  
WILLIE & CARMEN MARIA KENDRICK 
TCAD PID 700671 
13824 TERCEL TRACE 
MANOR, TX 78653-3879 

  
CHAE KYUNG KIM & CHOONG N CHANG 
TCAD PID 700591 
13817 FIELD SPAR DR  
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

 
MIHCAEL & LINDSAY JONES 
TCAD PID 700590 
13821 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

    

     

 
35

Item 3.



   4 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 

PREPARED BY: Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes.      

              •  June 1, 2022, City Council Workshop – Charter Review; and 

              •  June 1, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting 

               
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 

FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 

PRESENTATION:  No 

ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

              •  June 1, 2022, City Council Workshop – Charter Review; and 

              •  June 1, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the City Council Minutes of the June 1, 2022, 
City Council Workshop – Charter Review; and June 1, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting.     

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

36

Item 4.



CITY COUNCIL  
WORKSHOP SESSION MINUTES 

CHARTER REVIEW 
JUNE 1, 2022 

City of Manor Page 1 

PRESENT: 

Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor 

COUNCIL MEMBERS: 

Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1 
Anne Weir, Place 2 
Maria Amezcua, Place 3  
Sonia Wallace, Place 4 
Aaron Moreno, Place 5  
Vacant, Place 6 

CITY STAFF: 

Scott Moore, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 
Sarah Friberg, Court Administrator 

WORKSHOP SESSION – 5:00 P.M. 

 With a quorum of the Council Members present, the workshop session of the Manor City 
Council was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 5:09 p.m. on Wednesday, June 1, 2022, in the 
Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.  

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

Mayor Harvey let the Pledge of Allegiance. 

37

Item 4.



City Council Workshop – Charter Review Session Minutes 
June 1, 2022 

City of Manor Page 2 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 No one appeared to speak at this time. 

REGULAR AGENDA  

1. Discussion of Home Rule Charter and Recommendations

The discussion was held regarding the proposed amendments.  

• Article III. The City Council – Section 3.05 Vacancies in Office

The City Council concur that the following would be considered for amendment.  

(c) If a vacancy occurs for an unexpired term of 12 months or less for a position other than
the mayor when there are less than two place [s] on council filled by appointment, then the 
vacancy may be filled by either special election called for such purpose or by the majority of 
the remaining council members appointing a qualified person to fill the vacancy.  Vacancies 
filled by appointment must be filled within 45 days from the date the vacancy occurs. 

• Article III. The City Council – Section 3.06 Quorum and Attendance.

The City Council concur that the following would be considered for amendment.  

 Four members of the council shall constitute a quorum for transacting business and no 
action of the council shall be valid or binding unless taken in an open meeting with a quorum 
present. Less than a quorum may adjourn any meeting, or order and compel the attendance of 
absent members. It shall be the duty of each member of the council to attend each regular and 
special council meeting and each committee meeting to which council member is assigned, 
and the failure of any member to attend three consecutive, regular meetings, without good and 
sufficient cause, shall constitute misconduct in office.  The council shall adopt a policy for 
determining whether an absence is without good and sufficient cause and may be excused. 
In the event that a council member is absent from thirty percent (30%) of all regular 
meetings, special meetings, and committee meetings to which the council member is 
assigned, the council may revoke its approval of prior excused absences and deem such 
absences to be without good and sufficient cause for the purposes of Sections 3.04 of the city 
charter.  A council member may not have excused absences revoked until they have been in 
office at least six months.  

38

Item 4.



City Council Workshop – Charter Review Session Minutes 
June 1, 2022 

City of Manor Page 3 

• Article IV. The Authority and Limitations of the City Council – Section 4.01
Mayor.

The City Council concur that the following would be considered for amendment. 

The mayor serves as the ceremonial head of the city, and shall preside at all meetings of 
the council and provide the leadership necessary to good government. He or she shall work 
with the council to obtain legislation in the public interest and with the city manager to ensure 
the same is enforced, and participate in the discussion and vote on all legislative and other 
matters coming before the council. The mayor shall have signatory authority for all legal 
contracts and commitments of the city, sign all ordinances and resolutions, work and 
coordinate with the city manager and the council, but may not bind or obligate the city in 
any way without prior authorization from the council and to the extent provided by state law 
in time of declared emergency,  may take command of the police and govern the city by 
proclamation, maintain order and enforce all laws; provided that the mayor must 
immediately call for an emergency meeting of the city council to consider the appropriate 
actions for the city during the emergency; and perform ceremonial duties. 

The discussion was held regarding the reasons for language to be added back to the Charter. 

Chief of Police Phipps expressed his concerns regarding the proposed language.  

• Article IV. The Authority and Limitations of the City Council – Section 4.02 Mayor
Pro-Tem.

The City Council concur that the following would be considered for amendment. 

At its first regular meeting after all the members of the council elected at a general 
election have taken office, or after a vacancy in the office of mayor pro-tem, the council shall 
elect one of its members to be mayor pro-tem for a one two-year term, or to fill the unexpired 
term resulting from the vacancy. The mayor pro-tem shall be the council member who 
receives a majority of the votes cast but not less than four votes. In the absence of the mayor, 
the mayor pro-tem shall perform the duties of the mayor and in such capacity shall be vested 
with all powers conferred on such office. In the event of the failure, inability or refusal of 
the mayor to act in respect to any matter or duty, the mayor pro-tem shall act. In the event 
the office of mayor becomes vacant, the mayor pro-tem shall serve as mayor until the office 
is filled. 

• Article III. The City Council – Section 3.09 Compensation.

The City Council concur that the following would be considered for amendment. 

 The discussion was held regarding the clarification of removing the entire section from 
the charter.  

39

Item 4.



City Council Workshop – Charter Review Session Minutes 
June 1, 2022 

City of Manor Page 4 

The mayor shall not be paid and each other council member shall not be paid. They shall 
be entitled to reimbursement for actual and necessary expenses incurred in the performance 
of official duties, as budgeted and duly authorized. No staff or assistant shall be provided for 
any member of the council. 

• Article VII. Administrative Services - Section 7.07. City Secretary

 City Secretary Almaraz discussed the attached samples of other cities charters 
regarding the City Secretary Section.  

 City Secretary Almaraz discussed the attached Ordinance No. 296 and Ordinance No. 
501.  

The discussion was held regarding the organizational chart.  

The discussion was held regarding the appointment of the City Secretary. 

 The discussion was held regarding the clarification of the working relationship between 
the City Secretary and the City Council.  

 The discussion was held regarding the clarification of the City Secretary’s level of 
position.    

The City Council concur that the following would be considered for amendment. 

The office and department of City Secretary shall be established and maintained. The 
City Manager shall appoint, subject to confirmation by the City Council, an officer of the 
City and such assistants as deemed necessary, who shall have the title of City Secretary. 
The City Secretary shall keep the records of the council and shall have such other duties 
and responsibilities as may be assigned by this Charter, the Council and the city manager.  

Mayor Harvey requested for proposed language to be emailed to all council for review. 

• Article VII. Administrative Services - Section 7.10. Municipal Court

The discussion was held regarding the Court proposed amendments.  

The discussion was held regarding the hiring process of the Municipal Judge.     

 Director of Finance Collins stated she would provide a final redline version of Charter 
recommendations at the next workshop.  

40

Item 4.



 
 
City Council Workshop – Charter Review Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

• Article III. The City Council – Section 3.10 Automatic Resignation.    

The discussion was held regarding adding additional language to state that if council 
did not maintain requirements of qualifications regarding residency, they would 
automatically be removed.    

The discussion was held adding temporarily housing incase of emergencies.  

The discussion was held regarding the clarification of Section 3.03. Qualifications (c).    

The City Council concur that the section will stay the same.  

2. Discussion of Future Topics. 

  Mayor Harvey suggested for the following Sections to be review and finalized on 
the next workshop.  

•  Article IV. The Authority and Limitations of the City Council – Section 4.01 
Mayor.  

• Article VII. Administrative Services - Section 7.07. City Secretary  

• Article VII. Administrative Services - Section 7.10. Municipal Court 

3. Set Workshop Schedule  

  Charter Review Workshop was set for July 6, 2022, at 5:00 p.m.  
   

 There was no further discussion.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
 The Workshop Session of the Manor City Council Adjourned at 7:02 p.m. on Wednesday, June 
1, 2022.   
  
 These minutes approved by the Manor City Council on the 15th day of June 2022. (Audio 
recording archived) 
 
APPROVED:  
__________________________________ 
Dr. Christopher Harvey 
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
__________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

41

Item 4.



 
SAMPLES OF OTHER CITIES CHARTERS – CITY SECRETARY 

 

CENTRAL TEXAS CITIES 

City of Georgetown 
The Council shall appoint the City Secretary, who shall serve at the pleasure of the Council. 
The City Secretary shall keep the records of the Council and shall have such other duties and 
responsibilities as may be assigned by this Charter and the Council. The City Secretary shall 
appoint such assistants as may be authorized by the Council. 

City of Austin 
 
The council shall appoint the city clerk who shall serve at the pleasure of the council. The city 
clerk shall keep the records of the council, and shall have such other duties and responsibilities 
as may be assigned by this Charter and the council. 

City of Leander (same as Manor)  
The office and department of city secretary shall be established and maintained. The city secretary 
may appoint such assistant city secretaries as are authorized. The duties of the city secretary shall 
be as set forth in this charter and as established by ordinance. Such duties shall include, but not be 
limited to, the giving notice of all council meetings; keeping the minutes of the proceedings of 
council meetings and the archives of the city; authenticating by his or her signature, and recording 
in full in books kept and indexed for the purpose, all ordinances and resolutions; performing such 
other duties as shall be assigned to the position by state law; maintaining appropriate files of all 
contracts and other legal documents resulting from and/or having a bearing on actions of the 
council; and assisting the city  manager in gathering of appropriate records, files and resources 
which pertain to city  business or specific council meeting agenda items. 

City of Bastrop  
 
The City  Manager shall appoint, subject to confirmation by the City Council, an officer of the 
City  and such assistants as deemed necessary, who shall have the title of City Secretary The 
City Secretary and assistants shall give notice of Council meetings, shall keep minutes of its 
proceedings, shall authenticate by signature and shall record in full in a book kept for that 
purpose all ordinances and resolutions, shall preserve and keep in order all books, papers, 
records and files of the Council, shall have custody of the seal of the City and shall affix same 
to such documents and obligations as legally authorized. The City Secretary and assistants 
shall perform such other duties as shall be required by this Charter, the Council or the City 
Manager. 

  
42

Item 4.



 
SAMPLES OF OTHER CITIES CHARTERS – CITY SECRETARY 

 
City of Elgin 
 
The city manager, with the consent of council, shall appoint the city secretary and such assistant 
city secretaries as may be necessary and advisable. The duties of the city secretary, or an assistant 
city secretary, shall include, but not be limited to, the following: 
1.He shall give notice of council meetings. 
2.Record the minutes of all official meetings of the council; provided, however, only the captions 
of duly enacted ordinances and resolutions shall be recorded in the minutes; 
3.Be the custodian of all official records of the council; 
4.Recommend to the council rules and regulations to be adopted by ordinances to protect the safety 
and security of the municipal records; 
5. Hold and maintain the city seal and affix to all instruments requiring such seal; and 
6.He shall perform such other duties as the city manager shall assign and those elsewhere provided 
for in this Charter. 
 

City of Pflugerville 
 
The city manager shall appoint the city secretary and may appoint assistant city secretaries, as 
needed. The city secretary shall serve at the will of the city manager and shall perform the 
following duties: 
 
1.     Post or cause to be posted notice of city council and city board or commission meetings, as 
required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, Government Code. 
 
2.     Keep or cause to be kept minutes of city council meetings and ensure that minutes of city 
board or commission meetings are kept. 
 
3.     Authenticate by personal signature and record or cause to be recorded in full, in a book 
indexed for this purpose, all ordinances and resolutions. 
 
4.     Serve as an agent of the officer of public records in accordance with the requirements of the 
Texas Open Records Act, Chapter 552, Government Code, and the records management officer 
under the Local Government Records Act, Subtitle C, Title 6, Local Government Code. 
 
5.     Perform all duties prescribed by this charter. 
 
6.     Perform other duties as required by the city council or assigned by the city manager. 
 
  

43

Item 4.



 
SAMPLES OF OTHER CITIES CHARTERS – CITY SECRETARY 

 
City of Round Rock 
 
The City Manager shall appoint the City Clerk and such Assistant City Clerks as the City Council 
shall deem advisable. The duties of the City Clerk, and Assistant City Clerks, shall be as follows:  
 

(a)to give notice of City Council meetings;(b)to keep the minutes of the proceedings of such 
meetings;(c)to authenticate by his or her signature and record in full a book kept and indexed for 
the purpose, all ordinances and resolutions; and(d)to perform such other duties as the City Council 
shall assign, and those elsewhere provided for in this Charter. 

 
NORTH TEXAS CITIES 

City of Lewisville 
The city council shall appoint the city secretary. The city secretary shall give notice of council 
meetings, shall keep the minutes of the proceedings of such meetings, shall authenticate by his 
signature and record in full in a book kept and indexed for the purpose, all ordinances, and 
resolutions, and shall perform such other duties as the city council shall assign to him, and those 
elsewhere provided in this charter. 

Town of Flower Mound 
The Council shall appoint a Town Secretary who shall act as the Secretary to the Council and shall 
hold office at the pleasure of the Council. 

The duties of the Town Secretary shall be as follows: 

(1)Record the minutes of all official meetings of the Council; provided, however, only the captions 
of duly enacted ordinances and resolutions shall be recorded in the minutes;(2)Be the custodian of 
all municipal records and provide for the safety and security thereof; and maintain the Town seal 
and affix to all instruments requiring the seal. 

- Compensation of Town Secretary.  

The Council shall set the compensation of the Town Secretary according to the person's 
experience, education, and training. 

  

44

Item 4.



 
SAMPLES OF OTHER CITIES CHARTERS – CITY SECRETARY 

 

North Richland Hills  
The mayor shall appoint and remove the city secretary and such assistant city secretaries as deemed 
advisable with approval of two-thirds (2/3) majority of the council. The city secretary, or an 
assistant city secretary, shall give notice of council meetings, shall keep the minutes of the 
proceedings of such meetings, shall authenticate by his signature and record in full in a book kept 
and indexed for the purpose, all ordinances and resolutions, and shall perform such other duties as 
the city manager shall assign to him, and those elsewhere provided for in this chapter [Charter]. 

***There is no ordinance regarding duties.  The duties of the position is in the job description.   

***In 2020, the City Council approved a functional title of Chief Governance Officer and my 
official title is City Secretary/Chief Governance Officer. 

 

City of Grapevine 
The City Manager shall appoint the City Secretary, and such assistant City Secretaries as the City 
Council shall deem advisable. The City Secretary, or an Assistant City Secretary, shall give notice 
of Council meetings, shall keep the minutes of the proceedings of such meetings, shall authenticate 
by his signature and record in full a book kept and indexed for the purpose, all ordinances and 
resolutions, and shall perform such other duties as the City Manager shall assign to him, and those 
elsewhere provided for in this charter. 

***There is no ordinance regarding duties.  The duties of the position is in the job description.   

City of Azle 
The, City Manager shall appoint the City Secretary and such assistant City Secretaries as the City 
Council shall deem advisable. The City Secretary or Assistant City Secretary, shall give notice of 
Council meetings, shall keep the minutes of the proceedings of such meetings, shall authenticate 
by signature and record in full in a book kept and indexed for the purpose, all ordinances and 
resolutions, and shall perform such other duties as the City Manager shall assign and those 
elsewhere provided for in this charter. 

City of Coppell 
The city manager shall appoint an officer of the city who shall have the title of city secretary. The 
city secretary shall give notice of the council meetings, shall keep minutes of its proceedings, shall 
authenticate by signature and record in full, all ordinances and resolutions in a book kept for that 
purpose, and shall perform such other duties as shall be required by this Charter or by the city 
manager. The city secretary may be removed from office by the city manager. 

 

45

Item 4.



46

Item 4.



47

Item 4.



48

Item 4.



49

Item 4.



50

Item 4.



51

Item 4.



 
 

CITY COUNCIL  
REGULAR SESSION MINUTES 

JUNE 1, 2022 
 

City of Manor  Page 1 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor  
 
COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
 
Emily Hill, Mayor Pro Tem, Place 1  
Anne Weir, Place 2  
Maria Amezcua, Place 3 
Sonia Wallace, Place 4  
Aaron Moreno, Place 5  
Vacant, Place 6  
 
CITY STAFF: 
 
Scott Moore, City Manager 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police 
Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 
Phil Green, IT Director 
Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
Frank T. Phelan, P.E., City Engineer 
Veronica Rivera, Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 P.M.  
 
 With a quorum of the Council Members present, the regular session of the Manor City Council 
was called to order by Mayor Harvey at 7:24 p.m. on Wednesday, June 1, 2022, in the Council 
Chambers of the Manor City Hall, 105 E. Eggleston St., Manor, Texas.  
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
 Mayor Harvey led the Pledge of Allegiance.   
 
 

52

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 2 
 
 
 
 
 

PROCLAMATIONS  

A. Declaring the month of June 2022, as “LGBTQ+Month”  

 Mayor Harvey read and presented proclamation to Chief Phipps.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS     
 

No one appeared at this time.  
 
At the request of Mayor Harvey Consent Item No. 6 and Item No. 7 were pulled and postponed 

to the June 15, 2022, Regular Council Meeting; and Item No. 10 was postponed to the July 6, 2022, 
Regular Council Meeting.    
  
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
1. Consideration, discussion, and possible action to approve the City Council Minutes. 
 
      •  May 18, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting; and 
      •  May 23, 2022, City Council Called Special Session 
 
2. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 0.198 acres, more or less, Lot 5 and West ½ of Lot 4, Block 9, A.E. 
Lane Addition, and being located at 109 West Lane Avenue, Manor, TX from Single 
Family Suburban (SF-1) to Neighborhood Business (NB).  Applicant: Wenkai Chen; 
Owner: Wenkai Chen 

 
  Ordinance No. 651: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to 
Neighborhood Business (NB): Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters.  

 
3. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 10.945 acres, more or less, out of the AC Caldwell Survey No. 52, 
Abstract No. 154, and being located at 15001 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX from 
Agricultural (A) to Medium Commercial (C-2). Applicant: Duque States, LLC; Owner: 
Duque States, LLC 

 
  Ordinance No. 652: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Agricultural (A) to Medium Commercial (C-
2): Making Findings of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters. 

  

53

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 3 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 6.533 acres, more or less, Town of Manor, Block 15, Lots 6-10, Block 
17, Lots 1-10, Block 18, Lots 1-10, Block 19, Lots 1-10, Block 20, Lots 1-5, Block 74, Lots 
1-5, and 0.397 acres out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract 546, and being 
located near the intersection of N. LaGrange Street and East Lane Avenue, Manor, TX 
from Manufactured Home (MH-1), Light Commercial (C-1), and Single Family 
Suburban (SF-1) to Townhome (TH). Applicant: BGE, Inc.; Owner: Lane Ave Development, 
LLC 

 
  Ordinance No. 653: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Manufactured Home (MH-1), Light 
Commercial (C-1), and Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to Townhome (TH); Making Findings 
of Fact; and Providing for Related Matters. 

 
5. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 86.05 acres, more or less, out of the AC Caldwell Survey No. 52, 
Abstract 154, and being located at 13301 US Hwy 290 E, Manor, TX from Single Family 
Suburban (SF-1) to Medium Commercial (C-2), Multi-Family 25 (MF-2), and Townhome 
(TH).  Applicant: SEC Planning, LLC; Owner: Manor 290 OZ Real Estate, LP 

 
  Ordinance No. 654: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to Medium 
Commercial (C-2), Multi-Family 25 (MF-2), and Townhome (TH); Making Findings of Fact; 
and Providing for Related Matters.  

 
6. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 13.224 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, 
Abstract No. 546, and being located near the intersection of East Parsons Street and 
Bastrop Steet, Manor TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 
Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP; Owner: Dwyer Realty Companies 

 
7.   Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 26.30 acres, more or less, out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 
and James Manor Survey No. 40, and being located near the intersection of N. FM 973 
and Shadowglen Trace, Manor, TX from Medium Commercial (C-2) to Multi-Family 25 
(MF-2). Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP; Owner: Edward Butler 

 
8. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Zoning 

Ordinance Amendment to amend the definitions, residential land use conditions, general 
development regulations for Multi-Family districts, non-residential uses in non-
residential and mixed-use zoning districts; non-residential and mixed-use land use 
conditions, non-residential and mixed-use development standards, Single Family 
Attached and Multi-Family and mixed-use architectural standards, and nonconforming 
structures.  

 

54

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 4 
 
 
 
 
 

  Ordinance No. 657: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Amending Chapter 14, Zoning, 
of the Code of Ordinances of The City of Manor, Texas, by Providing for the Amendment of 
Definitions and Residential Land Use Conditions; Modifying General Development 
Regulations for Multi-Family Districts; Amending Non-Residential Uses in Non-Residential 
and Mixed-Use Zoning Districts; Amending Non-Residential and Mixed-Use Land Use 
Conditions; Amending Non-Residential And Mixed-Use Development Standards; Amending 
Single Family Attached and Multi-Family and Mixed-Use Architectural Standards; and 
Amending Nonconforming Structures; Providing for a Severability Clause, Providing Savings, 
Open Meetings and Effective Date Clauses; and Providing For Related Matters. 

 
9. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 0.66 acres, more or less, being Lots 6-10, Block 62, Town of Manor, 
and being located at 409 N. Lexington St., Manor, TX from Single Family Suburban (SF-
1) to Neighborhood Business (NB) and Townhome (TH). Applicant: Lexington Manor LLC  
Owner: Lexington Manor LLC 

 
  Ordinance No. 658: An Ordinance of The City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning 

Ordinance by Rezoning a Parcel of Land From Single Family Suburban (SF-1) to 
Neighborhood Business (NB) And Townhome (TH); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing 
for Related Matters. 

 
10. Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas annexing 14.55 acres of land, more or less, located 
in Travis County, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way into the 
corporate limits of the City, at the request of the property owner; approving an 
Agreement for the Provision of Services for the annexed area; making findings of fact; 
providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for open meetings 
and other related matters. 

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hill 

to approve and accept the Consent Agenda, postponing Item No. 6 and Item No. 7 to 
the June 15, 2022, Regular Council Meeting; and Item No. 10 to the July 6, 2022, 
Regular Council Meeting.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     

 Mayor Harvey adjourned the regular session of the Manor City Council into Executive Session 
at 7:30 p.m. on Wednesday, June 1, 2022, in accordance with the requirements of the Open 
Meetings Law.     
  

55

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 5 
 
 
 
 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
 The Manor City Council convene into executive session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 
551 Texas Government Code, in accordance with the authority contained in Section 551.071, 
Texas Government Code and Section 1.05, Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct 
(Consultation with Attorney) to consult with legal counsel regarding Capital Metropolitan 
Transportation Authority; Section 551.072, Texas Government Code to deliberate the value and 
conveyance of the City’s interest in real property; and Section 551.074 (Personnel Matters) to 
discuss duties of the City Manager at 7:30 p.m. on Wednesday, June 1, 2022.   

 The Executive Session was adjourned at 8:44 p.m. on Wednesday, June 1, 2022 
 
OPEN SESSION   
 

The City Council reconvened into Open Session pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 551 
Texas Government Code and took action on item(s) discussed during Closed Executive Session at 
8:44 p.m. on Wednesday, June 1, 2022. 
  

Mayor Harvey opened the floor for action to be taken on the items discussed in the Executive 
Session.  

 
There was no action was taken.  

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
11. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a resolution denying the proposed 

change in rates of Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2022-10 to deny 

the Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC’s application for approval of a distribution cost 
recovery factor pursuant to Texas Administrative Code 23.243 to increase distribution rates 
within the city.  

 
  Armando Perez with Oncor Electric Delivery discussed the proposed Resolution.   
 
  City Manager Moore stated that the proposed resolution is requested every four (4) years.  
 
  Resolution No. 2022-10: A Resolution of The City Council of The City Of Manor, Texas 

Denying the Proposed Change in Rates of Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC, Finding 
and Determining That the Meeting at Which This Resolution is Passed is Open to the Public 
as Required by Law, and Declaring an Emergency. 

 
  

56

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 6 
 
 
 
 
 

MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Amezcua and seconded by Council Member 
Moreno, to approve Resolution No. 2022-10 to deny the Oncor Electric Delivery 
Company LLC’s application for approval of a distribution cost recovery factor 
pursuant to Texas Administrative Code 23.243 to increase distribution rates within 
the city. 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     
 
12. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Change Order to the construction   

contract for the 2020 Wastewater Collection System Improvements, CIP S-32 project. 
 
  The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Change Order No. 2 to the 

construction contract for the 2020 Wastewater Collection System Improvements, CIP S-32 
project with Guerra Underground, LLC in the amount of $57,190.67.  
 

  City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed change order to the construction contract for 
the 2020 Wastewater Collection System Improvements.  

 
MOTION:   Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem 

Hill, to approve Change Order No. 2 to the construction contract for the 2020 
Wastewater Collection System Improvements, CIP S-32 project with Guerra 
Underground, LLC in the amount of $57,190.67. 

 
 Discussion was held regarding the clarification of preventing additional costs for future 
projects.   

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     
 
13. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Statement of Work No. 13 to the 

Master Services Agreement dated October 7, 2020, with George Butler Associates, Inc. 
for Fire Code Compliance Review services and rates.  
  
 The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Statement of Work No. 13 under 
the existing Master Services Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc.  

 
 City Engineer Phelan discussed the proposed Statement of Work with GBA for the services 
of Fire Code Compliance Review services and rates.  

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace, to approve Statement of Work No. 13 under the existing Master Services 
Agreement with George Butler Associates, Inc. 

 

57

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 7 
 
 
 
 
 

There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     

 
14. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on Amendment One to the Interlocal 

Agreement by and Between Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority and City of 
Manor, Texas for Build Central Texas. 
  
 The city staff recommended that the City Council postpone item to the June 15, 2022, 
Regular Council Meeting.   

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Wallace and seconded by Council Member 

Weir, to postpone item to the June 15, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.  
 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to postpone carried 6-0     
 
15. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a tree mitigation fee-in-lieu for Manor 

Independent School District for 243 caliper inches and located at the Manor ISD Senior 
High School Athletic Complex at 14832 N. FM 973, Manor, Texas. 

 
 The city staff recommended that the City Council approve a tree mitigation fee-in-lieu of 
$75 per caliper inch for Manor Independent School District for 243 caliper inches and located 
at the Manor ISD Senior High School Athletic Complex at 14832 N. FM 973, Manor, Texas.   

 
 Development Services Director Dunlop discussed the proposed request for the tree 
mitigation fee-in-lieu for Manor ISD.  
 
 Cody Holt with Claycomb Associates submitted a speaker card but did not wish to speak, 
however; he was available to answer any questions posed by the City Council.  

 
MOTION:  Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace, to approve a tree mitigation fee-in-lieu of $75 per caliper inch for Manor 
Independent School District for 243 caliper inches and located at the Manor ISD 
Senior High School Athletic Complex at 14832 N. FM 973, Manor, Texas.   

 
 Development Services Director Dunlop explained how fees are allocated within the Public 
Works Department for parks and other city’s facilities.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     
  

58

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 8 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
16. Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Resolution accepting the petition for 

annexation of 62.8431 acres of land, more or less, being located in Travis County, Texas 
and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and setting a date for a public hearing. 

  
 The city staff recommended that the City Council approve Resolution No. 2022-09 
accepting the petition for annexation of 62.8431 acres of land, more or less, being located in 
Travis County, Texas and adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and setting a date for the 
public hearing.  

 
  Development Services Director Dunlop discussed proposed resolution.  
 

 Ethan Harwell with Kimley-Horn and Associates Inc. submitted a speaker card in support 
of this item but did not wish to speak, however; he was available to answer any questions posed 
by the City Council. 

 
 Resolution No. 2022-09: A Resolution of The City of Manor, Texas, Accepting the Petition 
for Annexation of 62.8431 Acres of Land, More or Less; Being Located in Travis County, 
Texas and Adjacent and Contiguous to the City Limits; and Providing for Open Meetings and 
Other Related Matters. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Council Member   

Moreno, to approve Resolution No. 2022-09 accepting the petition for annexation of 
62.8431 acres of land, more or less, being located in Travis County, Texas and 
adjacent and contiguous to the city limits and setting a date for the public hearing on 
June 15, 2022.  

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     
 
17. Reconsidered – First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 

ordinance rezoning 14.55 acres, more or less, being Lot 1, Manor Villa Estates, and being 
located at 13518 Old Hwy 20, Manor, TX to Townhome (TH). 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Weir and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hill 

to reconsider first reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an 
ordinance rezoning 14.55 acres, more or less, being Lot 1, Manor Villa Estates, and 
being located at 13518 Old Hwy 20, Manor, TX to Townhome (TH). 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     
  

59

Item 4.



 
City Council Regular Session Minutes  
June 1, 2022 
 
 

City of Manor  Page 9 
 
 
 
 
 

  Mayor Harvey read reconsideration item.   
 

 The city staff recommended that the City Council approve the first reading of an ordinance 
rezoning 14.55 acres, more or less, being Lot 1, Manor Villa Estates, and being located at 
13518 Old Hwy 20, Manor, TX to Townhome (TH).    

  
  David Pikoff developer for the project discussed the proposed rezoning request and traffic 

concerns.  
 
  Discussion was held regarding the clarification of modest price homes and the proposed 

development.   
 
  Discussion was held regarding the maintenance on landscaping of the proposed 

Townhomes.  
 
  Ordinance: An Ordinance of the City of Manor, Texas, Amending the Zoning Ordinance 

by Rezoning a Parcel of Land to Townhome (TH); Making Findings of Fact; and Providing 
for Related Matters. 

 
MOTION: Upon a motion made by Council Member Moreno and seconded by Council Member 

Wallace to approve the first reading of an ordinance rezoning 14.55 acres, more or 
less, being Lot 1, Manor Villa Estates, and being located at 13518 Old Hwy 20, Manor, 
TX to Townhome (TH). 

 
There was no further discussion.  
 
Motion to approve carried 6-0     
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
 The Regular Session of the Manor City Council Adjourned at 9:11 p.m. on Wednesday, June 
1, 2022.   
 
 These minutes approved by the Manor City Council on the 15th day of June 2022. (Audio 
recording archived) 
 
APPROVED:  
________________________________ 
Dr. Christopher Harvey  
Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

60

Item 4.



   5 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 

PREPARED BY: Scott Moore, City Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Administration 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the acceptance of the May 2022 Departmental Reports.  

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

• Economic Development – Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 

• Development Services – Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 

• Community Development – Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage and Tourism Manager 

• Police – Ryan Phipps, Chief of Police     

• Municipal Court – Sarah Friberg, Court Clerk 

• Public Works – Michael Tuley, Director of Public Works 

• Finance – Lydia Collins, Director of Finance 

• Human Resources, Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 

• IT – Phil Green, IT Director 

• Administration – Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 
 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: Not Applicable 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes  

• May 2022 Department Monthly Reports 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve and accept the May 2022 Departmental 
Reports.    

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

61

Item 5.



    MEMO 
To: Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Scott Jones, Economic Development Director 

Date:  June 15, 2022 

 RE:  May 11 to June 7 

 
• Discussed Federal Grant Opportunities through Bipartisan Infrastructure Bill with Robin 

Ayers of TxDot  
• Discussed ECF partnership funding with John Bratcher of T-Mobile 
• Attended Chamber of Commerce meeting, Small Business Coffee, 4 City staff meetings 

and evening welcome event for City Manager Scott Moore 
• Attended DQ ribbon cutting, Leadership Manor graduation, and Austin Regional Chamber 

Regional Partners Meeting downtown  
• Hosted virtual and in-person meetings with property developers Okafor Group and Butler 

Developmen, as well as virtual meetings with Golden Shovel and EDOIQ website/software 
developers  

• Completed Manor Economic Development Strategic Assessment 
• Attended City Council Meetings 5/18 and 6/1 
• Attended ICSC Vegas International Shopping Center Convention 2 days and met a dozen 

plus retailers and vendors interested in Manor, distributed city marketing materials 
• Met with OneGas rep for Manor Casey Benjamin and workforce development prospect 

with AUTM Michael Ward 
• Attended TxBiz Talks with Chair Rep. Angie Chen Button 
• City budget draft meeting with Budget Committee, 
• Researching consultants for analysis of competitive incentives and strategic policy 

recommendations to implement 
• Virtual meeting with SBCD Director Joe Harper: invited him to speak at Manor Chamber 

ASAP 
• Attended CAPCOG public hearing in Austin for TxCDBG funding opportunities for rural 

communities 
• Appointment to Texas Economic Development Council’s Economic Development Sales 

Tax, Forward Planning, Political Action, and Legislative Committees for the State of 
Texas: 4 of 4; assures Manor of a voice in all statewide economic development activities 

• Appointment to the International Economic Development Council’s Strategic Planning 
Committee 

62

Item 5.



 Description Projects Valuation Fees Detail

Commercial Electrical 1 $10,000.00 $252.00

Commercial Sign 3 $11,969.00 $426.00

Commercial Foundation 1 $100,000.00 $35.00

Educational Addition 1 $24,700,000.00 $51,239.60 Early College

Educational Remodel/Repair 4 $3,400,000.00 $7,279.00 Kitchen Remodels and Roof Repairs

Residential Deck/Patio 2 $6,832.00 $584.00

Residential Driveway 1 $9,500.00 $97.00

Residential Electrical 11 $247,102.14 $1,177.00

Residential Fence 2 $1,912.00 $214.00

Residential Foundation Repair 3 $14,580.00 $291.00

Residential Irrigation 56 $21,700.00 $6,066.00

Residential Mechanical/HVAC 6 $53,872.00 $642.00

Residential New 52 $19,532,547.15 $247,938.60

Residential  Plumbing 3 $0.00 $398.00

Residential Swimming Pool/Spa 2 $115,000.00 $734.00

Right of Way 1 $0.00 $302.00

Totals 148 $48,225,014.29 $317,675.20

Total Certificate of Occupancies Issued: 40

Total Inspections(Comm & Res): 2,215

Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director

May 1-31, 2022

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES DEPARTMENT REPORT

PROJECT VALUATION AND FEE REPORT

63

Item 5.



DEPARTMENT OF DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

SCOTT DUNLOP, DIRECTOR

*Charts displayed at different scales

May 2022

84

148

0 50 100 150 200 250

ALL PERMITS ISSUED

2022

2021

1047

2215

0 300 600 900 1200 1500 1800 2100 2400

INSPECTIONS

2022

2021

53

40

0 20 40 60 80 100

COs ISSUED

2022

2021

24

52

0 50 100 150 200

RESIDENTIAL NEW PERMITS

2022

2021

64

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 1 of 4 
 

To: Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Debbie Charbonneau, Heritage & Tourism Manager 

Date:  June 15, 2022 

 RE:  May & June 2022  

 
COMMUNITY MEETINGS 
 
Chamber of Commerce May Board of Directors Meeting – Monday, May 2, 2022 
Chamber of Commerce June Board of Directors Meeting – Tuesday, May 31, 2022 
Chamber of Commerce Board of Directors Special Meeting – Thursday, May 12, 2022 
Chamber of Commerce Events Committee Meeting – Monday, June 6, 2022 
Chamber of Commerce May Monthly Membership Lunch – May 12, 2022 
Chamber of Commerce June Monthly Membership Lunch – June 9, 2022 
2022 Sesquicentennial Monthly Meeting – Tuesday, May 10, 2022 
ManorPalooza After Event Meeting – Thursday, May 19, 2022 
4th of July Logistics Meeting – Tuesday, June 7, 2022 
Sesquicentennial June Event hosted by the Lions Club honoring our many Non-Profit 
Organizations – Wednesday, June 8, 2022 
Small Business Coffee – Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
Small Business Coffee – Wednesday, June 15, 2022 
City Council Meeting – Wednesday, May 18, 2022 
City Council Meeting – Wednesday, June 15, 2022 
City of Manor Tree & Parks Committee Meeting – Thursday, May 19, 2022 
City Meet & Greet New City Manager – Friday, May 20, 2022 
Travis County Historical in Partnership with the City of Manor – Oral History for the People – this 
project is part of a study to document a former African American Freedom Community in rural 
Travis County known as Hayden Springs – Saturday, May 21, 2022 
 
BUSINESS CONTACTS/VISITS 
 
I made twenty 35 business contacts/visits for the months of May & June 
 
 
 
 

65

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 2 of 4 
 

EVENTS 
 
LEADERSHIP MANOR – CLASS #2 – THE SESQUICENTENNIAL CLASS 
 
Leadership Graduation – May 11, 2022, was graduation day for Leadership Manor Class #2.   
There was a graduation lunch, and the class presented their project.  Congratulations  
Leadership Manor Class #2 – The Sesquicentennial Class – Job Well Done!  
Leadership Manor Class #3 is scheduled to begin with Orientation on Saturday, August 20, 2022. 
 
SESQUICENTENNIAL 2022 
 
The Steering committee has been meeting monthly.  
 
The Steering Committee Members are:  
Lluvia Almaraz (City Secretary) 
Michelle Anderson, (Dwyer Realty) 
 Debbie Charbonneau (Heritage & Tourism Manager and Chair, City of Manor) 
 Lydia Collins (Finance Director, City of Manor) 
 Sean Donnelly (Vice-President, Frontier Bank) 
Scott Dunlop (Development Services Director, City of Manor) 
Phil Green (IT Manager, City of Manor) 
Michelle Glaze (Director, Public Relations, Principal Professional Communications & 
Community Affairs/SAS, Samsung Electronics) 
Grant Hutchison (Owner, Shadow Glen Golf Club) 
Chief Ryan Phipps (Chief of Police and Co-Chair, City of Manor) 
Mike Tuley (Public Works Director, City of Manor) 
Tim Schultz (Community & Economic Development Representative, Bluebonnet Electric Co-Op) 
Tracey Vasquez (Human Resources Manager, City of Manor) 
Anne Weir (Councilwoman Place 2, City of Manor) 
Lance Zeplin (Public Works Superintendent, City of Manor) 
 
The Sponsorship Committee is actively seeking sponsors for this event.  We are pleased to  
announce and welcome the following sponsors: 
 
Samsung Austin Semiconductor Water Tower Sponsor  $25,000.00 
Frontier Bank James Manor Sponsor  $10,000.00 
Applied Materials James Manor Sponsor  $10,000.00 
Bluebonnet Timmerman Park Sponsor $ 5,000.00 

66

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Greater Texas Federal Credit Union Jennie Lane Sponsor  $ 2,500.00 
Whiskey Girls Jennie Lane Sponsor  $ 2,500.00 
Cap Metro Jennie Lane Sponsor  $ 2,500.00 
Thomas Bolt & Dr, Dustin Welch Marnos Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
AustiNuts Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
Modisett & Sons Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
Southside Market Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
Good Luck Grill Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
American Contractors Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
Thomas Bolt & Dr. Dustin Welch Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
Café 290 Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
Compass Rose Manor Art Park Sponsor $ 1,000.00 
 
 
MANORPALOOZA 2022 – MAY 6 & 7, 2022 
 
ManorPalooza was held on May 6 & 7, 2022 and was a huge success.  A big shout out to all of the 
team for all of their hard work, support and time they gave during the event to make sure it would 
be a success. 
 
MOVIES IN THE PARK – JUNE 10, 17 & 24, 2022 
 
The movies will be shown in Timmermann Park beginning at 8:30pm.  There is no admission fee 
and popcorn, and water will be provided.  The movies are: June 10 – Turning Red- June 17 – Space 
Jam II and June 24 – Coco. 
 
JUNETEENTH CELEBRATION – JUNE 17, 2022 
 
The celebration will take place at Timmermann Park and will be from 6:00pm – 8:00pm.  There 
will be a peace walk, music, food and more.   
 
“SHOP SMALL” “SHOP LOCAL” SUMMER FUN – The promotion will begin July 1 and 
end on July 31, 2022.  
 
 
 
 
 

67

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 4 of 4 
 

OTHER DUTIES 
 
Qwally Meeting – Monday, May 9, 2022 – We continue our bi-weekly meetings to keep 
improving the biz101. 
 
Qwally Meeting – Monday, June 6, 2022 – Our bi-weekly meeting. 
 
Banners - We have banners with our Sesquicentennial logo, 4th of July event, Manor Night in the 
Park and Holidays in the Parks. 
 
Billboard – Our billboard vinyl was changed to show our 4th of July event.  We will be changing 
out the vinyl throughout the year. 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   
 
 
 
 

68

Item 5.



CITYOFMANOR.ORG

facebook.com/cityofmanor
dcharbonneau@cityofmanor.org

BRING YOUR LAWN CHAIR!

Friday, June 17th
6pm – 8pm

A Peace Walk will begin  
at 6pm at Timmermann Park 

where everyone will enjoy food, 
music and much more!

69

Item 5.



oviesMANOR

in thePark

June 24, 2022 
Coco

Timmermann Park
Movies will begin at 8:30pm

Free popcorn and water

facebook.com/cityofmanor

dcharbonneau@cityofmanor.org

facebook.com/cityofmanor

CITYOFMANOR.ORG

Friday, June 10, 2022  
Turning Red

Friday, June 17, 2022 
Space Jam II

C
ou

rt
es

y 
m

ov
ie

la
b.

co
m

C
ou

rt
es

y 
de

rd
ly

.c
o.

uk

C
ou

rt
es

y 
ci

ne
lin

ks
.c

om

Manor Parks
friends of

70

Item 5.



Manor Police Department
Monthly Council Report

Date of Meeting: 6/15/2022

May 2022

Activity Reported Month Same month Prior year Percentage difference
Calls for Service 1745 1708 2.16↑
Average CFS per day 56 55 1.8↑ $2,978
Open Cases 118 21 461.9↑ $8,411
Charges Filed 60 36 66.7↑
Alarm Responses 73 46 58.7↑
Drug Cases 11 12 8.3↓
Family Violence 4 12 66.7↓
Arrests FEL/MISD 19 Fel/41 Misd 10 Fel/26 Misd 90%↑ Fel chg/ 57.7% ↑Misd
Animal Control 54 11 390.9↑
Traffic Accidents 62 49 26.5↑
Impounds 53 53 No change
DWI Arrests 8 16 50↓
Traffic  Violations 484 543 10.9↓
Ordinance Violations 123 13 846.2↑
Victim cases 37 22 68.2↑
Total Victims served 66 13 407.7↑
Laboratory Submissions 10 7 42.9↑

Notes: 

*DNA- DATA NOT AVAILABLE

Patrol Car Rental
Last Month

YTD

Ryan S. Phipps - Chief of Police

71

Item 5.



72

Item 5.



    MEMO 
 

 
 
 

To: Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Mike Tuley, Director of Public Works  

Date:  June 15, 2022 

RE:  May Monthly Report 
 

Public Works Department 
 
 

Street and Public, Parks, and Maintenance Department 
 
In May, the Public Parks and Maintenance Department mowed all city facilities, alleys, and right 
of ways. They cleaned and maintained all city’s facilities and parks. They performed all 
maintenance on city vehicles and heavy equipment and the Street Department repaired streets, 
curbs, and signs.  
                                  

 
Water and Wastewater Department 

 
In May, the Water Department performed daily maintenance on the water system, repaired water 
mains, set water meters and tested the water daily and the Wastewater Department performed 
daily maintenance on the wastewater plant.  They cleaned and unstopped wastewater mains.   
                                       

 
Water Production & Purchase 

In May, 49 % of the water we supplied to our residents was from our wells, and we purchased 51 
% 
from EPCOR and Manville WSC.  

      
 

Subdivision Inspections 
 

• Street Inspections- 36 
• MS4 – 20 Inspections per working day.  
• Water Inspections- 12 
• Wastewater Inspections- 11 

73

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 2 of 10 
 
 
 

      
 

CITY OF MANOR 
CAPITAL PROJECT STATUS REPORT 

PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
June 2022 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PROJECT NAME  PROJECT DESCRIPTION  MONTHLY ACTIVITY  PERCENT CONSTRUCTION 
COMPLETE/PHASE  

Wilbarger Creek 
Wastewater Treatment and 
Collection System 
Improvements, Phase 1  

Wilbarger WWTP, Onsite LS, 
Public Works Bldg.  

Project closeout  100%  

Wilbarger Creek 
Wastewater Treatment and 
Collection System 
Improvements, Phase 2  

Creekside Lift Station 
improvements, Carrie 
Manor Lift Station  

Carrie Manor Lift Station - 
Station energized, startup 
has taken place; contractor 
working on punch list items. 
The lift station is online.  

99%  

Cottonwood Creek 
Wastewater Treatment 
Plant  

200,000 GPD wastewater 
treatment plant and lift 
station  

Lift station start up 
complete; contractor 
working on punch list; 
WWTP plant startups took 
place on May 18th and May 
25th . Contractor working on 
punch list items.  

99%  

Cottonwood Creek 
Wastewater Collection 
System Improvements 
Project  

Gravity wastewater lines 
and lift station to serve 
Cottonwood Creek Basin 
and Cottonwood Creek 
Tributary Basin  

Construction is at 
approximately 95%. 
Contractor has been 
delayed by shortages of lift 
station equipment. The 
contract completion date of 
January 8 is expected to be 
extended into May.  

99%  

74

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 3 of 10 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

FM973 Water & WW Lines  12” water line and 12”/15” 
gravity wastewater line in 
FM 973  

Water installation and 
testing have been 
completed; installation of 
wastewater is complete. 
Contractor is in process of 
testing wastewater lines 
and manholes.  

Construction Phase – 
Construction approx. 99% 
complete.  

Bastrop/Parsons Gravity 
Main  

12” gravity wastewater 
main  

Change order was 
approved on June 1st 

council meeting.  
Final change order will be 
needed to closeout 
project.  

99%  

CIP W-15 FM973 WL  12” Water Line from 
downtown to Manor 
Commons area  

Construction has been 
stopped due to missing 
easement. Contractor will 
start back up once 
easement is in place. City 
Manager is working on 
obtaining easement from 
property owner.  

Construction 85% 
complete.  

Pavement Management 
Program  

Pavement Assessment and 
Management Program  

Began working on Phase 2.  Phase 2 – 10% complete  

I&I Program  Phase 1 and Phase 2 
Inflow and Infiltration 
Program  

Final report presented to 
Council on April 6 meeting. 
Summary of results 
submitted to PW  
Executive Summary 
provided to PW.  

Phase 1 – complete  
Phase 2 –complete  

Cottonwood Creek Phase 
2 Wastewater Line 
Extension  

Northern extension of 
gravity wastewater line in 
Cottonwood Creek Basin  

Due to issues with 
benchmarks, the start of 
construction will be 
delayed until Thursday.  
E&S controls have been 
installed.  

Construction Phase  

75

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 4 of 10 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Manor Commercial Park 
WW Collection System  

Phased wastewater 
collection system 
improvements for Beltex 
area  

Pauline reached out to 
Veronica about contacting 
landowners. Veronica 
needed to touch base with 
Scott about how the City 
wants to proceed.  
Surveying coming up soon 
in Queue  

Construction Documents  

Gregg Manor Road GST 
and Pressurization 
Facilities  

Ground storage tank and 
water pressurization 
facilities for the EPCOR 
water delivery point  

Waiting on ROE from golf 
course. Surveyor will 
conduct survey on site but 
not on golf course site. No 
set date from surveyor yet.  

Working on Construction 
documents.  

FM 973 and US 290 Water 
Lines, CIP W-15 & W-16  

Water line extensions 
along FM973 and US 290  

Working on ROEs and 
preliminary engineering  

Preliminary Engineering  

Bell Farms and Presidential 
Glen LS Imp, CIP-2 & CIP-3  

Upgrades to the Bell Farms 
and Presidential Glen lift 
stations to provide 
capacity for new growth  

Preliminary Engineering 
under way, submittals 
under City Review  

Preliminary Engineering  

FY 2021 Paving 
Improvements Project  

Capital Metro BGA and 
City-Funded paving 
improvements  

Construction began on 
May 5.  

Under construction.  

Cottonwood Creek West 
Tributary WW 
Improvements  

Wastewater CIP Line in 
Cottonwood Creek West 
Tributary Basin  

Internal review  Preliminary Engineering  

Cottonwood Creek Grant 
Project  

Grant funded expansion of 
the Cottonwood 
Wastewater Treatment 
Plant  

Follow up with Gandolf  Preliminary Engineering  

76

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 5 of 10 
 
 
 

Streets and Parks Monthly Report May 2022 
 
 
Daily Duties and Projects 5-1-2022 / 5-31-2022 
 
 
Street Maintenance- Removed asphalt and replaced base on Browning St. for paving. 
 
Street Maintenance – Repaired stop sign on E. Carrie Manor & Jessie St. 
 
Street Maintenance – Placed “No Truck” parking signs on Genome Dr.  
 
Streets Maintenance – Placed barricades, spools, spreader and hauled rock for Manor Palooza.  
 
Streets Maintenance – Pothole repairs on Lexington St.by Seven Eleven store. 
 
Street Maintenance- Placed banners around town for Manor Palooza. 
 
Parks/Streets Maintenance – Worked the Manor Palooza event. 
 
Parks Maintenance – Trimmed trees near Art Park in City ROW. 
 
Parks/Streets Maintenance – Weekly table setups and take downs at city hall as requested.  
 
Parks Maintenance – Mowed cemetery for Mother’s Day.  
 
Parks Maintenance- Planted and replaced two trees at Hamilton Point Park. 
 
Parks Maintenance- Cut and removed fallen trees from storm in Timmermann Park.  
 
Weekly irrigation checks. 
 
Playground and play scape monthly safety checks. 
 
Scheduled weekly park mowing maintenance completed. 
 
Friday afternoons bulk drop off for city residence.  
 
Scheduled weekly Park rounds at park facilities completed. 
 
Scheduled weekly (ROW) Right of Way mowing completed. 
 
Weekly vehicle & equipment checks and maintenance.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

77

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 6 of 10 
 
 
 

MS4 Storm drain inspections monitored New/Construction under warranty 
 
-36 locations inspected once a day. 
-3 MS4 reports summited this month as required by TCEQ.  
 
 
Concerte Pre pour Inspection  
  
Logos Phase 4 & 5 – 0 inspections 
Shadowview Sec 3 Hill Ln. – 1 inspection 
Manor Heights Phase 2 – 16 inspections  
Manor Heights Phase 3 – 0 inspections  
Manor Heights Phase 6 – 0 inspections 
Logos Village Clusters – 0 inspections  
Presidential Heights Phase 6 – 0 inspections 
Stonewater Phase-3 – 0 inspections 
Village of Manor Commons Phase 2 – 6 inspections  
Village of Manor Commons Phase 4 – 5 inspections  
 
Density Test  
 
Lagos Phase 4 & 5 - 0 inspections 
Manor Heights Phase 3 – 1 inspection  
Manor Heights Phase 2 Sec 2 – 0 inspection  
Presidential Heights Phase 6 – 0 inspection 
Shadowview Sec 3 Hill Ln. – 0 inspections  
Stonewater Phase-3 – 0 inspections 
Manor Commands Phase 2- 0 inspections 
Manor Commands Phase 3- 0 inspections 
Manor Commands Phase 4 & 5- 0 inspections 
Palomino – 2 inspections   
Lagos Phase 3 - 2 inspections 
Village of Manor Commons Phase 4 -1 inspection  
Village of Manor Commons Phase 2 – 1 inspection  
 
Proof Rolls 
 
Lagos Phase 4 & 5 – 0 inspections  
Manor Heights Phase 6 – 0 inspections  
Manor Heights Phase 2 sec 2 – 0 inspections 
Manor Heights Phase 3 – 3 inspections 
Shadowview Sec 3 Hill Ln. – 0 inspections  
Village of Manor Commons Phase 2 – 2 inspections  
Village of Manor Commons Phase 4 -2 inspections  
Stonewater Phase-3 – 0 inspections 
Palomino – 5 inspections   
Logos Phase 3 – 4 inspections 
Street paving project - 2 
 

78

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 7 of 10 
 
 
 

Pre-Pave Inspections 
 
Logos Phase 3 – 0 inspections 
Manor Heights Phase 2 Sec 1 – 1 inspection  
Manor Heights Phase 6 – 0 inspection 
Presidential Heights Phase 6 – 0 inspection 
Manor Heights Phase 3 Sec 1 – 1 inspection  
 
 
Storm Sewer Inspections 
 
Manor Heights Phase 3 – 0 inspections 
Gregg Manor Rd – 0 inspections 
Shadowview Sec 3 Hill Ln. – 5 inspections 
Village of Manor Commons Phase 2 – 0 inspections  
Manor Commands Phase 2- 0 inspections 
 
 

Inspections/Warranties/New subdivision Walkthroughs and Pre-Construction meetings. 

 

Presidential Heights Phase 3 – Homes are still being built. 

Presidential Heights Phase 6 – Homes are being built. 

Presidential Heights Phase 3- 2-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 
October 2021 still waiting. 

Presidential Heights Phase 5 – 1 year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 
September 2021 still waiting. 

Presidential Heights Phase 4 – 2-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 
November 2021 still waiting.  

Stonewater North Phase 2- 2-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repair. April 
2021 still waiting.  

Stonewater North Phase 3-2-year Walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 
Completed. 

Manor Commons – Phase 1- homes are still being built.  

Manor Heights – Phase I Sec. 1 – homes are being built. 

Manor Heights – Phase I Sec. 2 – homes are being built. 

Manor Heights Phase 1 Sec 1 – 1-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 
November 2021 still waiting.  

Manor Heights – Phase I Sec. 2 – Contractor in building process. 

Manor Heights – Phase II Sec. 1- Contractor in building process. 
79

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 8 of 10 
 
 
 

Manor Heights – Phase II Sec. 1B & 2B Contractor in building process.  

Manor Heights – Phase III Sec. 1- development process. 

Manor Heights Phase III Sec. 2 – development process. 

Manor Commons wastewater and water improvements in process.  

Logos Phase 4 and 5 in development process. 

Logos Phase 4 and 5 walkthrough punch list prebuilding February 2022  

Lagos Phase 2- homes are being built.  

Logos Village clusters in building process.  

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 22 & 23A walkthrough punch list. September 2021 still waiting. 

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 25 & 26 walkthrough punch list. September 2021 still waiting. 

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 27A & 27B walkthrough punch list September 2021 still waiting. 

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 17 2-year walkthrough has been done, contractor in process of repairs. 
November 2021 still waiting.  

Shadowglen Phase 2 Sec 21A & 21B walkthrough punch list. January 2022 still waiting. 

Palomino Subdivision - Development process. 

 

 

 

. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 9 of 10 
 
 
 

Water Monthly Report May 2022 
 
 
 
For the month of May, the Water Department had 24 service calls, 5 repair jobs, and 12 inspections. 
 
 
Service calls include Low water pressure calls, meter leaks, line locates, brown water calls, disconnect 
water services, and connected water services. 
 
 
Repairs 
 
309 W. Brenham St.- Water tap has been done. 5/2/22 
5413 Gilbert Rd.- Cleared well. Pump Solution has installed pump number 2 after repairs had been 
made. 
308 E. Browning St.- Water leak ¾ service has been repaired 5/10/22. 
North Lampasas and Wheeler St.- Fire hydrant has been repaired 5/11/22.  
Paso De Presidente- Fire hydrant coupling has been replaced 5/23/22. 

  
 
Inspections 
 
M&L water pressure test set at 200 psi for 15 min to 150 psi set for 1hr. 5/2/22 
Black Rock Construction layed new wastewater mains. 5/2/22 to 5/6/22 
Flow test at Compass Rose. 5/4/22 
Water tie in Shadowview section 3 has been installed. 5/7/22 
Bacti samples at 11504 Burton, 501 North Caldwell, 12304 Waterford, and 18212 Canopy. 5/11/22 
Bacti samples at 510 E Wheeler, 16613 Trevin 12414 Timber Arch and 18212 Canopy. 5/16/22  
Lagos pulled mandrels. 5/24/22 
Buddhist Temple layed 6-inch sewer pipe across road. 5/24/22 
Black Rock Construction coding manholes. 5/24/22 
Lagos digging up damaged sewer line. 5/25/22 
Cottonwood plant start up meeting. 5/25/22 
Black Rock Construction flow test. 5/26/22 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81

Item 5.



 
 
 

Page 10 of 10 
 
 
 

Wastewater Monthly Report May 2022 
 
 
For the month of May, the Wastewater Department had 6 service calls, 3 repair jobs, 6 maintenance 
jobs and 11 inspections. 
 
 
Service calls 
 
12808 St.- Resident called to report sewer back up. City side was clear on arrival. Back up is on 
customer side. Customer has been notified. 5/4/22  
12219 US. HWY 290- Resident called to report sewer backup. City side was clear upon arrival. 
Customer was notified that backup is on customer side. 5/5/22 
201 E Parson- Customer called to report a sewer back up.  City side was clear upon arrival. Customer 
was notified that backup is on customer side. 5/6/22 
13609 John F. Kennedy- Resident called to report he is having problems with sewer line. Customer has 
been notified that city of manor does not serve waste wastewater in that location. 5/18/22   
11600 Herford- Resident called to report sewer backing up in her house. Back up is cleared. Customer 
has been notified. 5/23/22 
16829 Jaron Dr.- Resident called after hours to report sewer back up. City side cleared with jet 
machine. Customer has been notified. 5/30/22 

 
Maintenance  
 
A load of Alum has been delivered to Wilbarger Plant. 5/3/22 
A load of sodium bisulfite has been delivered to Wilbarger Plant. 5/6/22 
A load of Alum has been delivered to Wilbarger Plant. 5/18/22 
A load of sodium hypochlorite has been delivered. 5/19/22 
ADS meter hanger has been repaired.  
11209 US-290 manhole has been installed. 5/23/22 
 
Repairs 
 
Blower number 3 motor has been repaired. 5/12/22 
Repaired manhole on 973 heading north of 290. 5/19/22 
11209 US-290 repaired city clean out. 
 
Inspections  
 
Black Rock Construction layed new wastewater mains. 5/2/22 to 5/6/22 
Black Rock Construction layed new wastewater mains. 5/2/22 to 5/6/22 
Lagos had vacuum and pressure test on manhole and lines. 5/3/22 
Lagos Lift Station start up meeting. 5/4/22 
Black Rock Construction laying new wastewater mains. 5/2/22 to 5/6/22 
Lagos pulled mandrels. 5/24/22 
Buddhist Temple laying 6-inch sewer pipe across road. 5/24/22 
Black Rock Construction coding manholes. 5/24/22 
Lagos digging up damaged sewer line. 5/25/22 
Cottonwood Plant start up meeting. 5/25/22 

82

Item 5.



CASH AND INVESTMENTS

 GENERAL 

FUND 

UTILITY 

FUND

DEBT 

SERVICE 

FUND

SPECIAL 

REVENUE 

FUNDS

CAPITAL 

PROJECTS 

FUND TOTAL

Unrestricted:

Cash for operations 20,303,040$   10,078,850$ -$                 30,381,890$    

Restricted:

Tourism 768,633           768,633           

Court security and technology 1,013              1,013               

Rose Hill PID 719,163           719,163           

Customer Deposits 786,253        786,253           

Park 8,944              8,944               

Debt service 1,723,297      1,723,297        

Capital Projects

Water and sewer improvements -                6,498,332        6,498,332        

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 20,312,997$   10,865,103$ 1,723,297$     7,986,128$      -$                 40,887,524$    

CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As Of May, 2022

Unrestricted Cash 
74%

Other Restricted 
Cash
6%

Debt Service
4%

Water and Sewer 
improvements

16%

Overview of funds:
$236,012.90 sales tax collected
GF is in a favorable status. 
UF is in a favorable status
DSF is in a favorable status
CIP Fund is in a favorable status

83

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 1 of 2 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Tracey Vasquez, Human Resources Manager 

Date:  June 15, 2022 

 RE:  May 2022 

 
Meetings and Events: 
 
Manor Sesquicentennial Committee Meetings 
May 10, 2022 
 
Manorpalooza Logistics Meeting 
May 3, 2022 
 
Manorpalooza 
May 6-7, 2022 
 
City Council Meetings 
May 4, 2022 
May 18, 2022 
 
Executive Session 
May 4,2022 
Personnel Matters -to discuss duties of the City Manager. 
May 18, 2022 
Personnel Matters- to discuss the duties of the City Manager. 
 
City Council Workshop 
Charter Amendment Review 
May 4, 2022 
 
HR Workshop Roundtable Meeting 
May 12, 2022 
May 26, 2022 
 
 

84

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 2 of 2 
 

Local GovU 
May 10, 2022 
 
Chamber of Commerce Luncheon 
May 12, 2022 
 
Small Business Coffee 
May 18, 2022 
 
Leadership Manor Graduation 
May 11, 2022 
 
Welcome Aboard 
City Manager Meet and Greet 
May 20, 2022 
 
 
May 2022 
 

• New hire packet and onboarding of the new City Manager. 
• Held interviews with qualified candidates for the open position of for Street Crewman. 
• New hire packet and on boarding for new Planning Coordinator 
• Assisted the Mayor, City Council, and City Manager on process for goals and expectations 

regarding the City Manager evaluation. 
• Design and purchase merchandise for Sesquicentennial events. 
• New hire and on-boarding of one Parks Crewman. 
• Policy and Procedure reviews with outside Human Resources attorney regarding 

revamping current layout and updating policies. 
• Research and present Compensation Benefits firms for budget committee review and 

Council approval. 
• Exit Interviews with exiting employees (1- Police Cadet; 1- Permit Technician; 1- Assistant 

Building Inspector). 
• Day to day operations of the Human Resources department regarding property, liability, 

and worker’s comp insurance. Assisted employees with specific needs regarding benefits 
claims, FMLA, and training schedules. 
 

 

85

Item 5.



    MEMO 
To: Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Phil Green, IT Director 

Date:  June 15, 2022 

 RE:  May Monthly Report  

 
This month we: 
 

1. Finished the roll out Anti-Malware protection on desktops, laptops, portables and servers. 
2. Implemented filtering of inappropriate internet and network use. 
3. Continued to implement Multi-Factor Authentication and will continue to evaluate. 
4. Started research on migrating networks. 
5. Started to address the PD body and in-dash camera footage storage.  This is at a critical juncture 

and needs to be addressed. – will move to WatchGuard in the cloud.  Waiting on Watchguard. 
6. Started documenting all processes in IT. 

 

 

86

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 1 of 2 
 

To:  Mayor and City Council Members 

From:  Lluvia T. Almaraz, City Secretary 

Date:   June 15, 2022 

 Re:     January - May 2022 

 
City Records Obtained:  
 

ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION TOTAL  
City Council Agendas City Council meetings & workshop agendas prepared & 

posted in accordance with Local Government Code.   18 
Council Minutes Minutes recorded, prepared, approved, archived 18 
Ordinances Ordinances written, processed, &/or published and forward to 

Municode for Code Supplement 18 
Resolutions Resolutions written & processed 8 
Proclamations/Recognitions Proclamations & Recognitions, written & presented 17 
Boards & Commissions 
appointments 

Board appointments implemented & completed; 
appointments recorded 3 

Contracts & Agreements Contracts & Agreements approved & executed 25 
Elections Administration 
 

Elections ordered and coordinated 
May 7, 2022, Special Election and June 11, 2022, Runoff 
Election 

2 

Deeds / Easements Deeds / Easements, executed & recorded 3 
Annexations prepared & recorded 5 
Public Improvement 
Districts 

Petitions received, approved, and executed 
 1 

Alcohol Permits Alcohol permits processed new, certificate or renewed 33 
Bids Bids advertised, received, tabulated, awarded, recorded 3 
Records Management 
Program 

Boxes of documents destroyed in accordance with records 
retention schedule  
(Destruction Date scheduled for July 29, 2022) 

0 

Records Management 
Committee 

Responsible to administer the RMC meetings to discuss 
certain topics related to records management.   
First meeting for the year held on March 23, 2022 
 

1 

Open Records Requests Number of Open Records Requests processed (within 10 
days as required) 316 

87

Item 5.



    MEMO 

Page 2 of 2 
 

ATTENDED COMMUNITY & COMMITTEE MEETINGS  
 
Chamber of Commerce Monthly Meetings  
Small Business Coffee Meetings 
Council Meetings and Workshops 
Park and Tree Advisory Committee Meetings 
2022 Sesquicentennial Committee Meetings 
 
ATTENDED CITY EVENTS 
 
Leadership Manor Class #2 Graduation Ceremony (Graduate)  
Manor Palooza  
Golf Tournament Engagement 
Manor Police Banquet 
City Manager Meet & Greet 
*Coordinated Free Community Shred Day Event for 3rd year  
 
OTHER 
 

• Implemented Just FOIA online portal for our open records request – easy to use records 
requests software for staff and the community.  

• Received the Municipal Clerks Office Achievement of Excellence Award for 2022-2024 
for second year from the Texas Municipal Clerks Association, Inc.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88

Item 5.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 6 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 26.30 acres, 
more or less, out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 and James Manor Survey No. 40, and being located near 
the intersection of N. FM 973 and Shadowglen Trace, Manor, TX from Medium Commercial (C-2) to Multi-Family 
25 (MF-2). 

Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP 
Owner: Edward Butler 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This 26 acres is directly south of the 40 acres that MISD is constructing their K-8 School. South of this property 
remains C-2 Medium Commercial. There is a planned roadway through the commercial tract that would provide 
this MF-2 tract with access to US 290 as well as FM 973. 26 acres of MF-2 could be up to 650 units, but they have 
proposed 600 units. 

The P&Z Commission voted 4-1 to recommend approval of this item. 

First reading was approved at the May 18, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.  Second Reading was postpone at the 
June 1, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.  
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Letter of Intent 
• Ordinance No. 656 
• Map 

 

• Survey 
• Notices 
• Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the second and final reading of Ordinance No. 656 
rezoning 26.30 acres, more or less, out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 and James Manor Survey No. 40, 
and being located near the intersection of N. FM 973 and Shadowglen Trace, Manor, TX from Medium 
Commercial (C-2) to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval 

X 
 Disapproval  None 

 

89

Item 6.



 

 
  

221 W. 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2245 • www.mwswtexas.com 

 

 
TALLEY WILLIAMS 

Partner 
 

twilliams@mwswtexas.com 
512-404-2234 

 
 

 

 
March 11, 2022 

 
Mr. Scott Dunlop        Via Online Submittal 
Interim City Manager 
105 E Eggleston St., 
Manor, Texas 78653 
 

Re: Application for Rezoning; Approximately 26.30 acres (designated as Lot 1, Block 
A) within the Butler-Manor Project located at E. US 290 and 13100 N. FM 973 
(the “Property”). 

 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 

As representatives of the owner of the above stated Property we respectfully submit the 
attached Zoning Application to request a change from Medium Commercial (C-2) to Multi-family 
25 (MF-2). The Property is located within the Butler-Manor Project located at E. US 290 and 
13100 N. FM 973 and is currently undeveloped (see attached Location Map). 
 

The Property is part of the Butler-Manor Project which is a mixed-use development that 
also includes commercial and residential uses as well as publicly accessible open space. The 
Property will provide a unique and highly amenitized multifamily development in this high quality, 
pedestrian oriented development of horizontal mixed use, which is desired by the City of Manor. 

 
Attached to this application is a Microsoft Word document with the names and addresses 

of property owners within 300 feet of the Property, tax certificates and metes and bounds for the 
Property. 

 
If you have any questions about the proposed Zoning Application or need additional 

information, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your time 
and attention to this project. 

 
Very truly yours, 

 

 
 

Talley Williams

90

Item 6.



 

 
 

 
ZONING EXHIBIT 

 

91

Item 6.



 ORDINANCE NO.  656      
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
MEDIUM COMMERCIAL (C-2) TO MULTI-FAMILY 25 (MF-2); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 WHEREAS, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  

 WHEREAS, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred 
feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   WHEREAS, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 SECTION 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 SECTION 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the 
Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 SECTION 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing 
the zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A”,  (the “Property”), from 
the Medium Commercial (C-2) to zoning district Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). The Property is 
accordingly hereby rezoned to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 

 SECTION 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 
551, Texas Gov't. Code. 

92

Item 6.



  

ORDINANCE NO. 656 Page 2 
 

 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 18th day of May 2022. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the 15th day of June 2022. 

  

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
  
 
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 

93

Item 6.



  

ORDINANCE NO. 656 Page 3 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Property Description: 
 

 

94

Item 6.



  

ORDINANCE NO. 656 Page 4 
 

 

 
 

 

 

95

Item 6.



E US 290 HWY EB
E US 290 HWY WB

N F
M 

97
3 R

D

LE
XINGTO

N ST

GE
OR

GE
 BU

SH
 ST

MAXA DR

CE
DE

R 
ST

PILLION PL

MA
RIE

 LN

WEDDING DRN 
BU

RN
ET

 ST

CANOPY LN

SU
NC

RE
ST

 R
D

MI
ZZ

EN
 ST

N 
BA

ST
RO

P S
T

RA
LP

H R
ITC

HIE
 RD

N 
LE

XIN
GT

ON
 ST

N 
CA

LD
WE

LL
 ST

TERCEL TRCE

TOPSAIL DR

AR
MS

TR
ON

G 
AV

E

LY
ND

ON
 B 

JO
HN

SO
N S

T

FIELD STREAM LN

JA
ME

S B
UC

HA
NA

N S
T

SU
NN

Y C
RE

EK
 LN

CO
NS

TE
LL

AT
ION

 DR

DOOR BELL DR

GE
RA

LD
 FO

RD
 ST

GREENBURY DR

MO
NT

PE
LIE

R S
T

GR
EA

T S
OC

IET
Y S

T

Subject Property Area

¹
0 1,200 2,400600

Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family
Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family
15
MF-2 - Multi-Family
25

MH-1 - Manufactured
Home
I-1 - Institutional
Small
I-2 - Institutional
Large
GO - General Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial
C-3 - Heavy
Commercial

NB - Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit
Development
ETJ

P r o p o s e d :P r o p o s e d :
M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5  ( M F - 2 )M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5  ( M F - 2 )

C u r r e n t :C u r r e n t :
M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )

96

Item 6.



97

Item 6.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 

(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 

 

March 31, 2022 

 

City of Manor Development Services 

 

Notification for a Rezoning Application 
 

 

Case Number: 2022-P-1426-ZO 

Case Manager: Scott Dunlop 

Contact: sdunlop@cityofmanor.org - 512-215-8262 

  

 

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting regularly 

scheduled meetings for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning Application for 26.30 

acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of N. FM 973 and Shadowglen Trace, Manor, 

TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 

 

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for 26.30 acres, more or less, 

out of the Greenbury Gates Survey No. 63 and James Manor Survey No. 40, and being located near 

the intersection of N. FM 973 and Shadowglen Trace, Manor, TX from Medium Commercial (C-2) 

to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 

Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP  

Owner: Edward Butler 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on April 13, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street 

in the City Hall Council Chambers.   

 

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on April 20, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this Rezoning 

Application has been filed. Comments may also be addressed to the email address or phone number above. 

Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and Council Members during 

the discussion of this item. 
 

 

 

98

Item 6.



Wilken Walter William 
11625 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3885 

  

Ajai Akinyemi P 
11505 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

 

 

Gruza Agata & Eric Michael Daley 
13824 Long Shadow Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Waldon Charles L & Aursha R 
11621 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3885 

Phillips Todd Curtis  
11501 Sun Glass Dr. 
 Manor, TX 78653 

Gigl Michael William 
20417 Crooked Stick Dr. 

Pflugerville, TX 78660-8196 

Itnyre Stephen C & Sandra L 
11617 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3885 

Bita Aspazia  
13832 Field Spar Dr. 

Manor, TX 78653 

Haney David L & Josie U 
13825 Tercel Trce.  
Manor, TX 78653 

Spead Brent William & Shyla Anahita 
11613 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3885 

Prieto Daisy & Salvador U Flores 
13828 Field Spar Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Kendrick Willie & Carmen Maria 
13824 Tercel Trce. 
Manor, TX 78653 

Holmes Charlie  
P.O. Box 27626 

Macon, GA 31221-7626 

Benedetti Brett R 
13824 Field Spar Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Forsythe Stacia Kaye 
13816 Tercel Trce. 
Manor, TX 78653 

Vandenberg Kristin L & Scott P 
11605 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3883 

Acosta Carmen & Rodolfo  
13820 Field Spar Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Jones Michael & Lindsay 
13821 Field Spar Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Bell-Sexton Coretta  
11601 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3883 

Curtis Sean & Summer 
913 N. Inyo St. 

Ridgecrest, CA 93555-3000 

Kim Chae Kyung 
13817 Field Spar Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Lewis Gladys & Jeffrey  
11517 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653-3883 

Emamian Seyed-Amir & Priscilla 
13812 Field Spar Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Taylor Williams Wesley Jr. 
11733 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Hernandez Mayra 
11513 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

 

Wood Terrence 
25551 SE 41st Ct 

Sammamish, WA 98029-7769 

White Jennifer & Michael 
11509 Sun Glass Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Hernandez Alejandra & Carlos 
13825 Long Shadow Dr.  

Manor, TX 78653 

 99

Item 6.



 

Hayes Maura & Terrence III 
11737 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

 
 

Del La Garza Benjamin & Marisa 
11708 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

 

Suarez Humberto 
11717 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Henry Daffney A  
13745 Shady Ridge Ln.  

Manor, TX 78653 

 
Timmerman Commercial Investments LP 

501 Vale St. 
Austin, TX 78746-5732 

Mullen Thomas & Amanda 
11713 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Stiggers Gary L 
11729 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Monroe Ozie SR Family Trust 
P.O. BOX 254 

Manor, TX 78653-0254 

Hunt Anthony & Victoria 
11720 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Mcarthur Marilyn D 
11725 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

Board of Trustees of the Manor 
Independent 

P.O. BOX 9190 
% Butler Family Partnership 

Austin, TX 78766-9190 

Brown George Jr 
P.O. Box 1158 

Manor, TX 78653 

Manker Michael & Lauren 
11721 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 
 

Ambuhl Allen C & Debra K Young 
11712 Pillion Pl.  

Manor, TX 78653 

   

   

   

 

 

 

  

100

Item 6.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 7 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Second and Final Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 13.224 acres, 
more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract No. 546, and being located near the intersection of 
East Parsons Street and Bastrop Street, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 

Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP 
Owner: Dwyer Realty Companies 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is along the currently under construction Gregg Manor and will be across that road from the Lion’s 
Club. They are leaving a 1.6-acre tract as C-1 light commercial as well as extending Eggleston Street to connect to 
the new Gregg Manor Road. The property directly north is zoned MF-2, the properties west are zoned C-1 Light 
Commercial, and the properties along Parsons are zoned C-1 Light Commercial, Institutional, or SF-1 Single Family. 
Parson is considered a commercial corridor. West of the property is zoned SF-1 Single Family. The building setback 
for MF-2 to SF-1 is 80’ and of that 25’ is a bufferyard that only permits a solid wall and landscaping to provide a 
physical and visual buffer between the MF and SF. 9.8 acres of MF-2 can be up to 245 units. 

The P&Z Commission voted 5-1 to recommend approval of this item 

First reading was approved at the May 18, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.  Second Reading was postponed at the 
June 1, 2022, Regular Council Meeting.  
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Letter of Intent 
• Ordinance No. 655 
• Boundary Map 

 

• Map 
• Notice 
• Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the second and final reading of Ordinance No. 655  
rezoning 13.224 acres, more or less, out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract No. 546, and being located 
near the intersection of East Parsons Street and Bastrop Street, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-
Family 25 (MF-2). 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval 
X 

 Disapproval  None 

 101

Item 7.



 

 
  

221 W. 6th Street, Suite 1300, Austin, TX 78701 • 512.404.2200 • fax 512.404.2245 • www.mwswtexas.com 

 

 
TALLEY WILLIAMS 

Partner 
 

twilliams@mwswtexas.com 
512-404-2234 

 
 

 

 
March 11, 2022 

 
Mr. Scott Dunlop        Via Online Submittal 
Interim City Manager 
105 E Eggleston St., 
Manor, Texas 78653 
 

Re: Application for Rezoning; Approximately 13.95 acres within the Las Entradas 
South Project located along the future Gregg Manor Extension and North of Old 
Highway 20 in Manor, Texas (the “Property”). 

 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 

As representatives of the owner of the above stated Property we respectfully submit the 
attached Zoning Application to request a change from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-family 25 
(MF-2). The Property is located within the Las Entradas South Project located along the future 
Gregg Manor Extension and North of Old Highway 20 in Manor, Texas (see attached Location 
Map). 
 

The Property is part of the Las Entradas South Project which is a mixed-use development 
that also includes commercial and residential uses as well as publicly accessible open space. The 
Property will provide a unique multifamily development in this high quality, pedestrian oriented 
development of horizontal mixed use, which is desired by the City of Manor. 

 
Attached to this application is a Microsoft Word document with the names and addresses 

of property owners within 300 feet of the Property, tax certificates and metes and bounds for the 
Property. 

 
If you have any questions about the proposed Zoning Application or need additional 

information, please do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your time 
and attention to this project. 

 
Sincerely, 

 
 

Talley Williams

102

Item 7.



 

 
 

 
ZONING EXHIBIT 

 

103

Item 7.



 ORDINANCE NO.   655      
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND FROM 
LIGHT COMMERCIAL (C-1) TO MULTI-FAMILY 25 (MF-2); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 WHEREAS, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  

 WHEREAS, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred 
feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   WHEREAS, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 SECTION 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 SECTION 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the 
Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 SECTION 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing 
the zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibit “A”,  (the “Property”), from 
the Light Commercial (C-1) to zoning district Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). The Property is accordingly 
hereby rezoned to Multi-Family 25 (MF-2). 

 SECTION 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 
551, Texas Gov't. Code. 

104

Item 7.



  

ORDINANCE NO. 655 Page 2 
 

 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the 18th day of May 2022. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the 1st day of June 2022. 

  

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
  
 
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 

105

Item 7.



  

ORDINANCE NO. 655 Page 3 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

Property Description: 
 

 
 

106

Item 7.



MULTI-FAMILY

DEVELOPEMENT

MANOR, TX

SITE PLAN

"EXHIBIT A"

DEVELOPER:

DD&B

CONSTRUCTION

17B FIRSTFIELD RD.

GAITHERSBURG,

MD 20878

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H

E

O

H
E

OPRTC

B

O

Y

C

E

 
S

T

.

E

G

G

L

E

S

T

O

N

 

S

T

.

W

H

E

E

L

E

R

 
S

T

.

G

R

E

G

G

 
M

A

N

O

R

 
R

O

A

D

(
9
0
'
 
W

I
D

E

 
P

U

B

L
I
C

 
R

.
O

.
W

.
)

O

H

E

O

H

E

X

X

X

X

X

X

107

Item 7.



E US 290 HWY EB

E US 290 HWY WB

N 
BU

RN
ET

 ST

OLD HWY 20 E PARSONS ST

N 
BA

ST
RO

P S
T

N 
LE

XIN
GT

ON
 ST

N 
CA

LD
WE

LL
 ST

N 
LA

 G
RA

NG
E S

T

W PARSONS ST

E WHEELER ST

E EGGLESTON ST
E BOYCE ST

BL
UE

 B
LU

FF
 R

D

BURTON ST
S B

AS
TR

OP
 ST

E TOWNES ST

E LANE AVE

S B
UR

NE
T S

T

E CARRIE MANOR ST

TUR WEG LN
E RECTOR ST

JARON DR

J F NAGLE

W BOYCE ST

BRENHAM ST

S L
EX

IN
GT

ON
 ST

W MURRAY AVE

N 
LA

MP
AS

AS
 ST

W TOWNES ST

S L
AM

PA
SA

S S
T

W WHEELER ST

W BROWNING ST

W EGGLESTON ST

AT
HE

NS
 ST W BURTON ST

E MURRAY AVE

AB
ER

NA
TH

Y

Subject Property Area

¹
0 660 1,320330

Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family
Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family
15
MF-2 - Multi-Family
25

MH-1 - Manufactured
Home
I-1 - Institutional
Small
I-2 - Institutional
Large
GO - General Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial
C-3 - Heavy
Commercial

NB - Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit
Development
ETJ

P r o p o s e d :P r o p o s e d :
M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5  ( M F - 2 )M u l t i - F a m i l y  2 5  ( M F - 2 )

C u r r e n t :C u r r e n t :
L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 1 )L i g h t  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 1 )

108

Item 7.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 

(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 

 

March 31, 2022 

 

City of Manor Development Services 

 

Notification for a Rezoning Application 
 

 

Case Number: 2022-P-1425-ZO 

Case Manager: Scott Dunlop 

Contact: sdunlop@cityofmanor.org - 512-215-8262 

  

 

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting regularly 

scheduled meetings for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning Application for 13.224 

acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of East Parsons Street and Bastrop Street, Manor, 

TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 

 

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for 13.224 acres, more or less, 

out of the James Manor Survey No. 40, Abstract No. 546, and being located near the intersection of 

East Parsons Street and Bastrop Street, Manor, TX from Light Commercial (C-1) to Multi-Family 

25 (MF-2). 

Applicant: Metcalfe, Wolff, Stuart & Williams, LLP  

Owner: Dwyer Realty Companies 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on April 13, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street 

in the City Hall Council Chambers.   

 

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on April 20, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this Rezoning 

Application has been filed. Comments may also be addressed to the email address or phone number above. 

Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and Council Members during 

the discussion of this item. 
 

 

 

109

Item 7.



Newsome Florence Et Al. 
P.O. BOX 133 

Manor, TX 78653 

 
Field Mary R Et. Al. 

P.O. BOX 184 
Manor, TX 78653 

 
Duvall Novella P 

P.O. BOX 654 
Manor, TX 78653 

Newsome Florence Et Al. 
P.O. BOX 133 

Manor, TX 78653 

Taylor Floyd Roy Et. Al. 
7010 Blessing 

Austin, TX 78752 

Herrera Juan Carlos & Maria D 
107 N Bastrop St. 
Manor, TX 78653 

Garcia Epifanio Delgado 
5503 Hibiscus 

Austin, TX 78724 

Cabello Pedro & Erica Cabello 
209 N Bastrop St.  
Manor, TX 78653 

Desh Jr. LLC 
4419 Ramsey Ave. 
Austin, TX 78756 

Wheeler Street Partnership 
P.O. BOX 170309 
Austin, TX 78717 

Easley Lenora 
P.O. BOX 734 

Manor, TX 78653 

Riojas Santiago & Irasema 
P.O. BOX 885 

Manor, TX 78653 

Loggins Raydell 
P.O. BOX 47 

Manor, TX 78653 

Easley Lenora 
307 W Boyce St. 
Manor, TX 78653 

Crumbley Gilbert & Essie 
P.O. BOX 170309 
Austin, TX 78717 

Bowen Bradley & Paula 
18109 Whitewater Cv. 
Round Rock, TX 78681 

Bush Kaitanya L 
P.O. BOX 218 

Manor, TX 78653 

Travis County Emergency 
P.O. BOX 846 

Manor, TX 78653 

Bowen Bradley & Paula 
18109 Whitewater Cv. 
Round Rock, TX 78681 

Guerrero Julio & Cynthia 
P.O. BOX 142265 
Austin, TX 78714 

Travis County Emergency 
P.O. BOX 846 

Manor, TX 78653 

Sepco 
P.O. BOX 170309 
Austin, TX 78717 

Bowen Bradley & Paula 
18109 Whitewater Cv. 
Round Rock, TX 78681 

Milligan Finish 
3811 Liberty Square Trail 

Fresno, TX 77545 

Sepco 
P.O. BOX 170309 
Austin, TX 78717 

Mims Michael L & Beverly R 
P.O. BOX 447 

Manor, TX 78653 

Chavez Marcos A 
12555 Kimbro Rd 
Manor, TX 78653 

AAA Fire & Safety Equipment Co. Inc. 
P.O. BOX 16401 
Austin, TX 78761 

Davis Hattie Mae 
P.O. BOX 229 

Manor, TX 78653 

Wilson Joetta 
411 W Parsons St.  
Manor, TX 78653 

 110

Item 7.



Burns Memorial Temple 
P.O. BOX 1061 

Manor, TX 78653 

 

City of Manor 
105 E. Eggleston St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

  
Al Noor Muslim Community Center of 

Manor 
900 Low Brim Cv 

Pflugerville, TX 78660 

Li Julie 
P.O. BOX 203731 
Austin, TX 78720 

City of Manor 
105 E. Eggleston St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

Carbajol Felipe H & Isabel Ortuno 
P.O. BOX 214 

Manor, TX 78653 

Lions Club of Manor Inc. 
P.O. BOX 68 

Manor, TX 78653 

Burns Elbert R Et. Al. 
P.O. BOX 413 

Manor, TX 78653 

Jones Samuel Dell Jr & Rachel 
P.O. BOX 416 

Manor, TX 78653 

Manor Apartments LLC 
4600 Triangle Ave. #6102 

Austin, TX 78751 

Smith Audrey B 
10304 Ivy Jade 

Schertz, TX 78154 

Miramontes Manuel Torres & J 
19337 W T Gallaway St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

Samudio Faustino 
P.O. BOX 28 

Manor, TX 78653 

Okoro Chiamo 
3101 E. 12th St. Unit D-4 

Austin, TX 78702 

Esparza Antonio 
16709 Hamilton Point Cir 

Manor, TX 78653 

Salazar Jose Cipriano & Uganda 
P.O. BOX 164 

Manor, TX 78653 

Okoro Chiamo 
3101 E. 12th St. Unit C4 

Austin, TX 78702 

Habbit Ambus & Purinea 
432 W Parsons St. 
Manor, TX 78653 

De Leon Carmen P 
P.O. BOX 81 

Manor, TX 78653 

Casimiro Mildred 
412 W. Parsons St. 
Manor, TX 78653 

Manor ISD 
P.O. BOX 359 

Manor, TX 78653 

Reyes Mary A & Robert H 
P.O. BOX 344 

Manor, TX 78653 

Montero Roberto 
709 Busleigh Cattle Way 

Pflugerville, TX 78660 

Riojas Oralia Garza 
P.O. BOX 89 

Manor, TX 78653 

City of Manor 
105 E. Eggleston St. 

Manor, TX 78653 

 
Al Noor Muslim Community Center of 

Manor 
900 Low Brim Cv 

Pflugerville, TX 78660 

 

   

 111

Item 7.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 8 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Lydia Collins, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Finance 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on accepting the Fiscal Year 2020-2021 Financial Audit 
Report. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY:   
 

 

LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  No 

• City of Manor, Texas Annual Financial Report and Independent Auditor’s Report Year Ended September 
30, 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council accept the City of Manor, Texas Annual Financial Report 
and Independent Auditor’s Report Year Ended September 30, 2021 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

112

Item 8.



113

Item 8.



114

Item 8.



115

Item 8.



GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

116

Item 8.



Government Auditing Standards,

117

Item 8.



Government Auditing Standards

Government Auditing Standards,

Government Auditing Standards

118

Item 8.



119

Item 8.



120

Item 8.



121

Item 8.



122

Item 8.



Type of Statements

Scope

Required financial statements

Accounting basis and 
measurement focus

Type of asset/liability 
information

Type of inflow/outflow 
information

123

Item 8.



124

Item 8.



125

Item 8.



126

Item 8.



127

Item 8.



128

Item 8.



129

Item 8.



130

Item 8.



131

Item 8.



132

Item 8.



133

Item 8.



134

Item 8.



135

Item 8.



136

Item 8.



137

Item 8.



138

Item 8.



139

Item 8.



140

Item 8.



141

Item 8.



142

Item 8.



143

Item 8.



144

Item 8.



145

Item 8.



146

Item 8.



147

Item 8.



148

Item 8.



Fiduciary Activities

Majority Equity Interests – An Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 and No. 61

The Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report.

149

Item 8.



Special Revenue Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Water and Sewer Fund

General Fund

Debt Service Fund

ad valorem ad valorem

150

Item 8.



Inventories and Prepaid Items

Capital Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents

151

Item 8.



Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

Long-Term Debt

Fund Balance/Net Position

Committed

Non-spendable

Restricted

Assigned

152

Item 8.



Inter-Fund Activity

Compensated Absences

Use of Estimates

Investments

Unassigned

Cash Deposits

153

Item 8.



Fair Value Hierarchy

Analysis of Specific Deposit and Investment Risks

Credit Risk

Custodial Credit Risk

Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants

154

Item 8.



Concentration of Credit Risk

Foreign Currency Risk

Interest Rate Risk

155

Item 8.



Property Taxes Receivable and Deferred Revenue

Sales Tax Receivable

156

Item 8.



Business-Type Activities Receivables

157

Item 8.



158

Item 8.



Notes Payable

159

Item 8.



Notes Payable - Continued

Bonds Payable

160

Item 8.



Bonds Payable - Continued

161

Item 8.



162

Item 8.



163

Item 8.



164

Item 8.



165

Item 8.



166

Item 8.



167

Item 8.



168

Item 8.



169

Item 8.



170

Item 8.



171

Item 8.



172

Item 8.



173

Item 8.



174

Item 8.



175

Item 8.



176

Item 8.



177

Item 8.



178

Item 8.



179

Item 8.



180

Item 8.



deficiency in internal control

material weakness

significant deficiency

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Government Auditing Standards

181

Item 8.



Government
Auditing Standards.

Government Auditing
Standards

182

Item 8.



183

Item 8.



184

Item 8.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 9 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Development Agreement (Butler/ East Hwy 290 & 13100 N. 
FM 973). 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Developer is requesting a development agreement for the Butler/ East Hwy 290 & 13100 N. FM 973 project. 

LEGAL REVIEW: Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Development Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Development Agreement (Butler/ East Hwy 290 
& 13100 N. FM 973). 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

185

Item 9.



 
 

1 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Butler/ East Hwy 290 & 13100 N. FM 973) 

 
THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Agreement”) is made and entered into as of 

the _____ day of ____________________, 2022 (the “Effective Date”), by and between 13100 
FM 973, INC., a Texas corporation (including its  successors and assigns, the “Owner”), 
BUTLER FAMILY PARTNERSHIP, a Texas limited partnership (“Butler”), and the CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, a home rule municipality located in Travis County, Texas (the “City”).  The 
City, Butler and Owner are herein sometimes referred to as a “Party” and collectively as the 
“Parties.”   

RECITALS: 
 

A. Parcel A (hereinafter defined) is owned by Butler. The remainder of the Property 
(hereinafter defined) is owned by Owner.  

B. Owner intends to develop and improve, in one or more phases, those certain 
parcels of land, all of which are located within the municipal boundaries of the City and consist 
of approximately 95.16 acres (the “Property”) legally described on Exhibit “A” attached hereto, 
as a mixed-used project, as provided in this Agreement.  

C. Owner has previously obtained the City’s approval of the Concept Plan attached 
hereto as Exhibit “B” (the “Existing Concept Plan”)   

D. The Existing Concept Plan is being amended to reflect the proposed multifamily 
development on Parcel A as generally depicted on Exhibit “B-1” attached hereto (the “Revised 
Concept Plan”). The Existing Concept Plan and the Revised Concept Plan, as may be amended 
from time to time shall be referred to herein as the “Concept Plan”.  

E. The City, after due and careful consideration, has concluded that the development 
of the Property, as provided for herein, will further the growth of the City, increase the assessed 
valuation of the real estate situated within the City, foster increased economic activity within the 
City, upgrade public infrastructure within the City, and otherwise be in the best interests of the 
City by furthering the health, safety, morals and welfare of its residents and taxpayers.  

F. This Agreement is entered pursuant to the laws of the State of Texas, the City 
Charter, and the City Code of Ordinances.  

G. The Parties desire to establish certain standards, restrictions and commitments to 
be imposed and made in connection with the development of the Property; to provide increased 
certainty to the City and Owner concerning development rights, entitlements, arrangements, and 
commitments, including the obligations and duties of the Owner and the City, for a period of years; 
and to identify planned land uses and permitted intensity of development of the Property as 
provided in this Agreement.  The Parties acknowledge that they are proceeding in reliance upon 
the purposes, intent, effectiveness, and enforceability of this Agreement.  
 
 

186

Item 9.



 
 

2 

AGREEMENT: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, City and Owner hereby agree as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS; INCORPORATION OF RECITALS; TERM  

 
1.1 Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and 

made a part of this Amendment to the same extent as if set forth herein in full. 
 

1.2 Capitalized Terms.  Capitalized terms used in this Agreement shall have the 
meanings set forth in this Section, unless otherwise defined, or unless the context clearly requires 
another definition. 

 
“Agreement” is defined in the preamble hereof and includes any subsequent written 

amendments or modifications made pursuant to Section 7.6.  

“Applicable Rules” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.  

“Ch. 380 Agreement” means that certain Chapter 380 Grant Agreement – Butler 
Commercial Project by and between 13100 FM 973 Inc., and the City dated of even date herewith. 

“Ch. 380 Incentives” means sales tax rebates and any other economic incentives covered 
by the Ch. 380 Agreement. 

“City Charter” means the Charter of the City of Manor, Texas. 

“City Development Rules” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1. 

“City Rules” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.  

“Code Modifications” means modifications to the City Development Rules approved for 
the Project as set forth on Exhibit “C” attached hereto.    

“Code of Ordinances” means the applicable code or ordinances adopted by the City which 
regulate development or subdivision of real property within the City in effect as of the Effective 
Date.  

“Effective Date” means the date on which this Agreement is entered into by both Parties, 
as provided above.  

“Existing Concept Plan” is the Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B”. 

“Grocery Store Parcel” means the approximately 20-acre parcel designated as “Lot 1, 
Block B” on the Existing Concept Plan. 

187

Item 9.



 
 

3 

“Owner” means 13100 FM 973, Inc., a Texas corporation, and includes any subsequent 
Owner, whether one or more and whether or not related to the Owner or otherwise a related party 
of the Owner or a partnership or other entity in which the Owner is a partner or participant, of all 
or any portion of the Property that specifically acquires by whole or partial assignment, by 
operation of law or otherwise, the rights and obligations of the Owner under this Agreement.  

“Parcel A” means the approximately 26.47 acre parcel designated as “Lot 1, Block A” on 
the Existing Concept Plan. 

“Party” or “Parties” is defined in the preamble hereof and includes any respective 
successors and/or permitted assigns.  

“Person” means any individual, partnership, association, firm, trust, estate, public or 
private corporation, or any other legal entity whatsoever.  

“Project” means the mixed-use real estate development planned for the Property. 

“Project Approvals” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1.  

“Property” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 

“Revised Concept Plan” is the amended Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B-1”. 
 
“Subdivision Ordinance” means Exhibit A, Chapter 10 of the City’s Code of Ordinances.  

1.3 Term.  The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and 
continue until twenty-five (25) years from the Effective Date. 
 

ARTICLE II 
BENEFITS; SEQUENCE OF EVENTS; COOPERATION 

 
2.1. Plan.  The Property is proposed for development as a mixed-use project, including 

multifamily and commercial uses as shown on the Revised Concept Plan.  Owner will subdivide 
and develop the Property at the Owner’s initial expense in accordance with this Agreement (subject 
to Ch. 380 Incentives as provided in the Ch. 380 Agreement), the plans and specifications approved 
by the City, good engineering practices, and the Applicable Rules. 

 
2.2. General Benefits.  Owner will benefit from the certainty and assurance of the 

development regulations applicable to the development of the Property and by virtue of the 
services that will be made available to the Property pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.  
Subject to the satisfaction of the conditions provided in Section 5.1 below, the City will provide 
water and wastewater service to the Property on the same terms and conditions as such services 
are provided to similarly situated properties within the City.  Owner has voluntarily elected to enter 
into and accept the benefits of this Agreement and will benefit from: (a) the certainty and assurance 
of the development and use of the Property in accordance with this Agreement; (b) the 
establishment of regulations applicable to the development of the Property; (c) the water and 
wastewater services that will be made available to the Property; and (iv) the reimbursements  
granted in the Ch. 380 Agreement.  The City will benefit from this Agreement by virtue of its 

188

Item 9.



 
 

4 

control over the development standards for the Property, by virtue of construction of roadways, by 
virtue of expanding its property and sales tax base, and by virtue of extension of its water and 
wastewater systems, by Owner as herein provided.  The Parties expressly confirm and agree that 
development of the Property will be best accomplished through this Agreement and will 
substantially advance the legitimate interests of the City.  The City, by approval of this Agreement, 
further finds the execution and implementation of this Agreement is not inconsistent or in conflict 
with any of the policies, plans, or ordinances of the City.  

 
2.3. Contemplated Sequence of Events.  The sequence of events contemplated by this 

Agreement is as follows:  
 
(a) Approval of this Agreement, the Ch. 380 Agreement, and the Revised Concept Plan 
by the City, and the Owner; and 
(b) Submittal and concurrent review of any necessary Concept Plan amendment(s), Re-

zoning applications, preliminary plat, TIA, final plat and subdivision construction plans (streets, 
drainage, water, wastewater and dry utilities) for the Property.  

(c)  Notwithstanding the above, the City hereby acknowledges and agrees that the 
Owner may perform mass grading of the Property and construction of onsite infrastructure to 
convey offsite stormwater drainage prior to the approval of the preliminary plat.  

 
2.4. Necessary and Appropriate Actions.  The Parties agree to take such actions, 

including the execution and delivery of such documents, instruments, petitions and certifications 
(and, in the City’s case, the adoption of such ordinances and resolutions), as may be necessary or 
appropriate, from time to time, to carry out the terms, provisions and intent of this Agreement and 
to aid and assist each other in carrying out said terms, provisions and intent, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement and subject to applicable processes, procedures, and findings 
that are required by state law, City ordinances, or the City Charter related to actions taken by the 
City Council.  

 
ARTICLE III 

OBLIGATIONS AND CONDITIONS 
 

3.1. City’s Obligations.  The City will reasonably cooperate with Owner and use its best 
efforts, in good faith, to:  

 
(a) Complete City staff review and schedule for approval of the Revised Concept Plan 

(if not approved on even date of this Agreement), any other Concept Plan amendments, preliminary 
plats, final plats, zoning applications, TIA, utility plans, and construction plans for the Project, 
subject to the Owner timely submitting applications and responding to comments, as further 
described and agreed to in Section 4.9;   

(b) Enter into the Ch. 380 Agreement to assist in the reimbursement of various 
infrastructure costs to be incurred by Owner in its development of the Project; and 

 
(c) Complete the City’s review of the TIA and provide approval of the TIA, as further 

described and agreed to in Section 4.11.  

189

Item 9.



 
 

5 

 
3.2. Owner’s Obligations.  The Owner shall: 
 
(a) Use its best efforts, in good faith, to submit any Concept Plan amendments, 

preliminary plats, final plats, zoning applications, TIA, utility plans, and construction plan 
applications, as may be required, to the City and respond to City comments, subject to the City 
timely commenting on such applications;  

(b) Enter into the Ch. 380 Agreement and provide the City with information needed to 
evaluate the proposed Ch. 380 Incentives;   

(c) Develop the Property and construct all infrastructure required for the proposed uses 
in compliance with the Applicable Rules;  

(d) Pay to the City such fees and charges for or with respect to the development of the 
Property, including, but not limited to, subdivision application fees, building permit fees, and water 
and wastewater impact, tap and use fees, with the Owner, its grantees, successors and assigns 
agreeing that the City’s fees and charges currently provided for in the Applicable Rules may be 
amended by the City from time to time; and  

(e) Pay to the City the reasonable costs and expenses incurred by the City for legal 
services in connection with the negotiation and implementation of this Agreement and the Ch. 380 
Agreement in an amount not to exceed $40,000. 

  
ARTICLE IV 

DEVELOPMENT OF THE PROPERTY 
 

4.1. Applicable Rules.    
 
(a) The Property shall be developed in compliance with the Applicable Rules and this 

Agreement, as it may be amended from time to time, and good engineering practices.    
(b) If there is any conflict between the Project Approvals (as defined herein) and the 

City Development Rules (as defined herein), the Project Approvals shall prevail.  If there is a 
conflict between this Agreement and the City Rules, this Agreement shall prevail, except that this 
Agreement does not supersede any City Charter provisions.  

(c) For the purpose of establishing development standards for the Property, the 
following definitions, shall apply:  

(i) “Applicable Rules” means the City Rules and other local, state, and federal 
laws and regulations that apply to the Property and the development thereof, 
as they exist on the Effective Date.     

(ii) “City Rules” means the City’s Charter, ordinances, rules, and regulations 
(including the City Development Rules).  

(iii) “City Development Rules” means ordinances, rules and regulations 
governing subdivision, land use, site development, and building and utility 
construction that apply to the Property, and that are in effect on the Effective 
Date, as modified by the Code Modifications attached hereto as Exhibit “C”, 

190

Item 9.



 
 

6 

with amendments to such regulations applicable to the Property as provided 
herein.   

(iv) “Project Approvals” means all variances, waivers, and exceptions to the 
City Development Rules and the City Rules approved by the City, and all 
properly granted approvals required under the City Rules for the Property, 
including the plat approval, site development plans, and building permits.  

 
4.2. Phased Development.  The Project may be developed in phases over time. Owner 

may change the phase of development from time to time in response to market conditions or other 
factors. Phases may be developed concurrently. 

  
4.3 Concept Plan. The Revised Concept Plan (attached as Exhibit “B-1”) complies with 

the City's goals and objectives and the City shall process for approval the land uses, densities, 
exceptions, utility and roadway cross sections and alignments and sizes, and other matters shown 
on the Revised Concept Plan. This Agreement, in accordance with the Revised Concept Plan, 
allows for the construction of up to 600 multifamily units on Parcel A and up to 425,000 square 
feet of commercial space on the remainder of the Project. Final Plats that comply in all material 
aspects with the Revised Concept Plan, this Agreement, the preliminary plat, and Applicable 
Requirements shall be approved by the City.  

 
4.4. Zoning.  Zoning of the Property, if any, shall be subject to the process, notices, 

hearings and procedures applicable to all other properties within the City.  It is hereby 
acknowledged that any re-zoning that is subsequently approved for the Property shall allow the 
Property (or such applicable portion thereof) to be developed in accordance with terms and 
conditions of this Agreement.  

 
4.5. Vested Rights.  The City acknowledges that the Owner shall be deemed vested from 

the Effective Date to develop the Property in accordance with this Agreement and the City Rules 
to the extent and for such matters as vesting is applicable pursuant to Chapter 245 of the Texas 
Local Government Code.  The Owner’s vesting shall expire (1) on the fifth anniversary from the 
Effective Date if no progress has been made towards completion of the Property; or (2) if this 
Agreement is terminated by reason of Owner’s default beyond any applicable notice and cure 
periods (the “Vested Rights”).  Progress toward completion of the Property shall be defined as set 
forth in Section 245.005(c), Texas Local Government Code. To the extent any criteria specified in 
this Agreement which are in conflict with any other current or future City Rules, then this 
Agreement shall prevail unless otherwise agreed to by the Owner in writing.  For the avoidance of 
doubt, the Parties acknowledges and agree that this paragraph shall not apply to fees imposed in 
conjunction with development permits.  

 
4.6. Owner’s Rights to Continue Development.  In consideration of Owner’s 

agreements, the City agrees that it will not, during the term of this Agreement, impose or attempt 
to impose: (a) any moratorium on building or development within the Property or (b) any land use 
or development regulation that limits the rate or timing of land use approvals, whether affecting 
subdivision plats, site development permits or other necessary approvals, within the Property 
except for moratoria imposed pursuant to Texas Local Government Code Subchapter E, Section 
212.131 et. seq.  This Agreement on the part of the City will not apply to temporary moratoriums 

191

Item 9.



 
 

7 

uniformly imposed throughout the City due to an emergency constituting an imminent threat to 
the public health or safety, provided that the temporary moratorium continues only during the 
duration of the emergency. 

 
4.7. Masonry and Design Requirements.  “Architectural Standards,” Chapter 14, Article 

14.02, Division 6, Code of Ordinances, including masonry requirements, shall apply to the 
structures located on the Property, as may be modified by this Agreement.   

 
4.8 Land Use/Regulations.  All development within the Property shall generally 

comply with: (a) the Revised Concept Plan attached hereto as Exhibit “B-1”; (b) the City Code, 
unless otherwise stipulated or modified herein or listed on Exhibit “C” attached hereto; and (c) the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement, including any Exhibits attached hereto. 
 

4.9 Timing of Platting.  The Owner agrees to waive the submission requirements of the 
City's Subdivision Ordinance and the City agrees to allow concurrent review of the Concept 
Plan(s), preliminary plat(s), construction plan(s), and final plat(s). Upon each submittal the City 
shall have thirty (30) days to respond to the Owner and/or its authorized representative with 
comments citing the deficiencies of the plats and plans. After the City has determined the plats and 
plans meet the minimum requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance, and any other applicable 
code or regulation, the plats and plans will be heard before the applicable governing body for 
approval. Reviews of the plats and plans may occur concurrently, but approvals with the applicable 
governing body must follow the sequence set forth in the Subdivision Ordinance.  Payment 
amounts under the TIA shall be made pursuant to the provisions above and shall not be required at 
the time of plat review.   

4.10 Outdoor Lighting. Article 15.05, Code of Ordinances shall apply to the 
Property, as may be modified by this Agreement.  

 
4.11 Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA). The TIA has previously been submitted for review 

and approval to the City, Texas Department of Transportation and the Owner has received 
comments on the TIA from the City. The Owner and City agree to continue working together 
diligently and in good faith to address any issues and/or comments to the TIA. The Owner shall 
obtain approval of the TIA by all reviewing jurisdictions. The Parties agree that the preliminary 
plat shall not be approved until the TIA is approved by all reviewing jurisdictions. 

  
ARTICLE V 

UTILITY COMMITMENT (WATER) 
 
5.1 Owner will negotiate and finalize a transfer agreement between Manville Water 

Supply Corporation (“Manville”) and the City to transfer the Property from Manville’s Certificate 
of Convenience and Necessity (CCN) to the City’s CCN pursuant to and in accordance with Texas 
Water Code Section 13.248 in a form acceptable to and approved by the City. The Owner shall 
thereafter submit to the Public Utility Commission (“PUC”) of Texas and diligently pursue 
obtaining approval of the CCN transfer agreement for the Property. The Owner shall be responsible 
for any and all costs of obtaining the transfer agreement between Manville and the City and the 
PUC approval of the CCN transfer. If the Owner and Manville settle on an amount to be paid to 

192

Item 9.



 
 

8 

Manville in order to obtain approval of the CCN transfer in accordance with a CCN transfer 
agreement in a form mutually acceptable to Manville and the City, the Owner shall be responsible 
for all amounts due and payable to Manville required to obtain Manville’s approval of the CCN 
transfer agreement.  

 
 

ARTICLE VI 
AUTHORITY; COVENANTS; PROPERTY RIGHTS 

 
6.1 Powers. 
 
(a) The City hereby represents and warrants to Owner that the City has full 

constitutional and lawful right, power and authority, under currently applicable law, to execute and 
deliver and perform the terms and obligations of this Agreement, subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and subject to applicable processes, procedures, and findings that are 
required by state law, City ordinances, or the City Charter related to actions taken by the City 
Council, and all of the foregoing have been authorized and approved by all necessary City 
proceedings, findings and actions. Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and 
binding obligation of the City, is enforceable in accordance with its terms and provisions and does 
not require the consent of any other governmental authority.  

(b) The Owner hereby represents and warrants to the City that Owner has full lawful 
right, power and authority to execute and deliver and perform the terms and obligations of this 
Agreement and all of the foregoing have been or will be duly and validly authorized and approved 
by all necessary actions of Owner. Concurrently with Owner’s execution of this Agreement, Owner 
has delivered to the City copies of the resolutions or other corporate actions authorizing the 
execution of this Agreement and evidencing the authority of the persons signing this Agreement 
on behalf of Owner to do so. Accordingly, this Agreement constitutes the legal, valid and binding 
obligation of Owner, and is enforceable in accordance with its terms and provisions.  

6.2. Authorized Parties.  Whenever under the provisions of this Agreement and other 
related documents and instruments or any supplemental agreements, any request, demand, 
approval, notice or consent of the City or Owner is required, or the City or Owner is required to 
agree or to take some action at the request of the other, such request, demand, approval, notice or 
consent, or agreement shall be given for the City, unless otherwise provided herein or inconsistent 
with applicable law or City Rules, by the City Manager and for Owner by any officer of Owner so 
authorized (and, in any event, the officers executing this Agreement are so authorized); and any 
party shall be authorized to act on any such request, demand, approval, notice or consent, or 
agreement.  
 

ARTICLE VII 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 
7.1. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence in all things pertaining to the 

performance of this Agreement. The Parties will make every reasonable effort to expedite the 
subject matters hereof and acknowledge that the successful performance of this Agreement 
requires their continued cooperation.  
 

193

Item 9.



 
 

9 

7.2. Default.  
 
(a) A Party shall be deemed in default under this Agreement (which shall be deemed a 

breach hereunder) if such Party fails to materially perform, observe or comply with any of its 
covenants, agreements or obligations hereunder or breaches or violates any of its representations 
contained in this Agreement.  

 
(b) Before any failure of any Party to perform its obligations under this Agreement 

shall be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement, the Party claiming such failure shall notify, in 
writing, the Party alleged to have failed to perform of the alleged failure and shall demand 
performance. No breach of this Agreement may be found to have occurred if performance has 
commenced to the reasonable satisfaction of the complaining party within thirty (30) days of the 
receipt of such notice. Upon a breach of this Agreement for which cure has not commenced as 
provided above, the non-defaulting Party, in any court of competent jurisdiction, by an action or 
proceeding at law or in equity, may secure the specific performance of the covenants and 
agreements herein contained, may be awarded damages for failure of performance, or both. Except 
as otherwise set forth herein, no action taken by a Party pursuant to the provisions of this Section 
or pursuant to the provisions of any other Section of this Agreement shall be deemed to constitute 
an election of remedies and all remedies set forth in this Agreement shall be cumulative and non-
exclusive of any other remedy either set forth herein or available to any Party at law or in equity. 
Each of the Parties shall have the affirmative obligation to mitigate its damages in the event of a 
default by the other Party.  
 

7.3. Personal Liability of Public Officials. To the extent permitted by State law, no 
public official or employee shall be personally responsible for any liability arising under or 
growing out of this Agreement.  

 
7.4. Liability of the Owner, its successors and assignees. Any obligation or liability of 

the Owner whatsoever that may arise at any time under this Agreement or any obligation or liability 
which may be incurred by the Owner pursuant to any other instrument, transaction or undertaking 
contemplated hereby shall be satisfied, if at all, out of the assets of the Owner and any fiscal surety 
posted with the City related to the Property only. No obligation or liability shall be personally 
binding upon, nor shall resort for the enforcement thereof be had to, the property of any of partners, 
officers, employees, shareholders or agents of the Owner, regardless of whether such obligation or 
liability is in the nature of contract, tort or otherwise.   

 
7.5. Notices. Any notice sent under this Agreement (except as otherwise expressly 

required) shall be written and mailed by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, or 
personally delivered to an officer of the receiving party at the following addresses:  
 
If to the City:    City of Manor  

Attn: City Manager  
105 E. Eggleston Street  
Manor, Texas 78653 

 
with a copy to:   The Knight Law Firm, LLP  

194

Item 9.



 
 

10 

Attn:  Paige H. Saenz/Veronica Rivera  
223 West Anderson Lane, Suite A-105  
Austin, Texas 78752  

 
If to the Owner:    13100 FM 973, Inc. 

Attn: Matt Harriss  
10095 Hwy 290 
Manor, Texas 78653 

 
with a copy to:   Metcalfe Wolff Stuart & Williams, LLP 

221 W. 6th Street, Suite 1300 
Austin, Texas 78701 
Attn: Talley Williams 
twilliams@mwswtexas.com 
 

with a copy to:   William D. Brown  
Sneed, Vine & Perry, P. C.  
2705 Bee Caves Road, Suite 160  
Austin, Texas 78746  
bbrown@sneedvine.com 

 
Each Party may change its address by written notice in accordance with this Section. Any 
communication addressed and mailed in accordance with this Section shall be deemed to be given 
when deposited with the United States Postal Service, and any communication so delivered in 
person shall be deemed to be given when receipted for by, or actually received by, an authorized 
officer of the City or the Owner, as the case may be.  
  

7.6. Amendments and Waivers.   
(a) Any provision of this Agreement may be amended or waived if such 

amendment or waiver is in writing and is approved by the City Council and the Owner. No 
course of dealing on the part of the City or the Owner nor any failure or delay by the City 
or the Owner with respect to exercising any right, power or privilege pursuant to this 
Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof, except as otherwise provided in this Section. 
The Project comprises a significant land area and its development will occur in phases over 
a number of years. Owner may make major or minor amendments to the Concept Plan upon 
notification to the City. “Major Amendments” shall be those that (i) change the general 
alignment of any collector roadway identified on the Concept Plan, (ii) increase the number 
of multifamily units by twenty percent (20%), or (iii) change the Concept Plan to convert 
more than twenty percent (20%) of the land area in the Project to another use than is shown 
on the Concept Plan. Major amendments to the Concept Plan shall require approval by the 
City Council, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. “Minor 
Amendments” are all amendments that do not meet the definition of Major Amendments. 
Minor amendments may be administratively approved by the City Manager. If the City 
Manager and Owner dispute the classification of an amendment as major or minor, the 
issue shall be referred to the City Council for final determination. Amendments to the 
Concept Plan shall not be considered a waiver of Owner’s vested rights as described in 

195

Item 9.

mailto:twilliams@mwswtexas.com
mailto:bbrown@sneedvine.com


 
 

11 

Section 3.03 as long as the Project is not dormant pursuant to Chapter 245 of the Texas 
Local Government Code and has not changed to the point it would not be the same 
“project” pursuant to Chapter 245 of the Texas Local Government Code or case law 
interpreting Chapter 245. 

 
(b) The Parties hereby agree that, to the extent that a Party requests that the 

Agreement be further amended and such amendment pertains to less than all of the current 
landowners of the Property and does not modify the obligations in the Agreement as to the 
remaining landowners of the Property, then this Agreement may be modified or amended 
by joint action of only (a) the City, and (b) the landowners expressly subject to the 
modification or amendment at the time of such modification or amendment. 
 
7.7. Invalidity.  In the event that any of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall 

be held unenforceable in any respect, such unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions 
of this Agreement, and, to that end, all provisions, covenants, agreements or portions of this 
Agreement are declared to be severable.  

 
7.8. Beneficiaries. This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties and 

their successors and permitted assigns.  
 
7.9. Agreement Binds Succession and Runs with the Land. This Agreement shall bind 

and inure to the benefit of the Parties, their successors and assigns. The terms of this Agreement 
shall constitute   covenants running with the land comprising the Property and shall be binding on 
all future developers and owners of land within the Property. Nothing in this Agreement is intended 
to impose obligations on individual owners of platted lots, except the design and land use 
regulations contained in Article IV and as otherwise expressly set forth in this Agreement. 

  
7.10. Assignment. 

 
(a) This Agreement and the rights and obligations of Owner hereunder may be assigned 

by Owner   to an affiliate of Owner or to a development single purpose entity without the consent of 
the City, provided that the assignee assumes all of the obligations of Owner hereunder.   

 
(b) For assignments to other than an affiliate or a development single purpose entity as 

provided above, Owner may, from time to time, effectuate a transfer of its rights under this Agree-
ment, in whole or in part, with the consent of City Council, which shall not be unreasonably with-
held, conditioned, delayed, or denied, to any party, provided such party agrees in writing to assume 
all of Owner's duties, obligations, and liabilities so assigned hereunder, and provided further that 
any such assignment shall not become effective until the City receives notice of the assignment 
and a copy of the assignment instrument. Owner will not be released from its obligations under 
this Agreement if the City objects to the assignment as described above and such objections are 
not resolved by and between Owner and the City; provided, however, the City shall not unreason-
ably withhold Owner’s release from its obligations under this Agreement. 

 
Upon such assignment, Owner shall be deemed to be automatically released of any 

obligations under this Agreement, as to the portion of the Property assigned. 

196

Item 9.



 
 

12 

 
Any assignment must be in writing, set forth the assigned rights and obligations and be 

executed by the proposed assignee. A copy of the assignment document must be delivered to the 
City. 

(c) The mere conveyance or sale of a lot or any portion of the Property without a written 
assignment of the rights of the Owner shall not constitute an assignment or transfer of the rights 
or obligations of Owner hereunder that would necessitate obtaining the consent of the City 
Council, as provided above. For example, the sale of a lot within the Property to a commercial user 
and/or the sale of Parcel A shall not require the consent of the City Council. 

 
7.11 Exhibits, titles of articles, sections and subsections.  The exhibits attached to this 

Agreement are incorporated herein and shall be considered a part of this Agreement for the 
purposes stated herein, except that in the event of any conflict between any of the provisions of 
such exhibits and the provisions of this Agreement, the provisions of this Agreement shall prevail. 
All titles or headings are only for the convenience of the Parties and shall not be construed to have 
any effect or meaning as to the agreement between the Parties hereto. Any reference herein to a 
section or subsection shall be considered a reference to such section or subsection of this 
Agreement unless otherwise stated. Any reference herein to an exhibit shall be considered a 
reference to the applicable exhibit attached hereto unless otherwise stated.  

 
7.12. Applicable Law.  This Agreement is a contract made under and shall, be construed 

in accordance with and governed by the laws of the United States of America and the State of 
Texas, and any actions concerning this Agreement shall be brought in either the Texas State District 
Courts of Travis County, Texas or the United States District Court for the Western District of Texas.  

 
7.13. Entire Agreement.  This written agreement represents the final agreement between 

the Parties and may not be contradicted by evidence of prior, contemporaneous, or subsequent oral 
agreements of the Parties. There are no unwritten oral agreements between the Parties.  

 
7.14. No Waiver of City Standards.  Except as may be specifically provided in this 

Agreement, the City does not waive or grant any exemption to the Property or the Owner with 
respect to City Rules.  

 
7.15. Approval by the Parties.  Whenever this Agreement requires or permits approval or 

consent to be hereafter given by any of the Parties, the Parties agree that such approval or consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. Approvals and consents shall be 
effective without regard to whether given before or after the time required for giving such 
approvals or consents.  

 
7.16. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of 

which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same agreement.  
 
7.17. Interpretation.  This Agreement has been jointly negotiated by the Parties and shall 

not be construed against a party because that Party may have primarily assumed responsibility for 
the drafting of this Agreement.  

 

197

Item 9.



 
 

13 

7.18. Anti-Boycott Verification.  To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for 
goods or services within the meaning of Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government Code, as 
amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government Code, 
and subject to applicable Federal law, Owner represents that neither Owner nor any wholly owned 
subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Owner (i) boycotts Israel or 
(ii) will boycott Israel through the term of this Agreement. The terms “boycotts Israel” and 
“boycott Israel” as used in this paragraph have the meanings assigned to the term “boycott Israel” 
in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
7.19. Verification under Chapter 2252, Texas Government Code.  To the extent this 

Agreement constitute a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 2252.151 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2252 of the 
Texas Government Code, and except to the extent otherwise required by applicable federal law, 
Owner represents that Owner nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent 
company or affiliate of Owner is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. 
 

7.20 Compliance with HB 89, SB 252, SB 13, and SB 19. 
 

(a) In accordance with Section 2270.002, Texas Government Code, the Owner hereby 
verifies that neither the Owner nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, 
parent company or affiliate of the Owner: (i) Boycotts Israel (as such term is defined in Section 
2270.001, Texas Government Code) and (ii) subject to or as otherwise required by applicable 
Federal law, including, without limitation, 50 U.S.C. Section 4607, will Boycott Israel during the 
term of this Agreement. 

 
(b) Pursuant to Section 2252.152, Texas Government Code, neither the Owner nor any 

wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of the Owner is 
a company currently listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts under Sections 806.051, 
807.051, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
(c) To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which 

a written verification is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 13 in the 87th 
Texas Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government Code, as amended, the Owner hereby 
verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, 
if any, do not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the term of 
this Acquisition and Reimbursement Agreement. The foregoing verification is made solely to 
enable the County to comply with such Section and to the extent such Section does not contravene 
applicable Texas or federal law. As used in the foregoing verification, “boycott energy companies” 
shall mean, without an ordinary business purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business 
activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm 
on, or limit commercial relations with a company because the company (A) engages in the 
exploration, production, utilization, transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based 
energy and does not commit or pledge to meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal 
and state law; or (B) does business with a company described by (A) above. 
 

198

Item 9.



 
 

14 

(d) To the extent this Agreement constitutes a contract for goods or services for which 
a written verification is required under Section 2274.002 (as added by Senate Bill 19 in the 87th 
Texas Legislature, Regular Session), Texas Government Code, as amended, the Owner hereby 
verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, 
if any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm 
entity or firearm trade association and will not discriminate during the term of this Acquisition and 
Reimbursement Agreement against a firearm entity or firearm trade association. The foregoing 
verification is made solely to enable the County to comply with such Section and to the extent 
such Section does not contravene applicable Texas or federal law. As used in the foregoing 
verification, ‘discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association’ (A) means, with 
respect to the firearm entity or firearm trade association, to (i) refuse to engage in the trade of any 
goods or services with the firearm entity or firearm trade association based solely on its status as 
a firearm entity or firearm trade association, (ii) refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship with the firearm entity or firearm trade association based solely on its status as a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association, or (iii) terminate an existing business relationship with 
the firearm entity or firearm trade association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or 
firearm trade association and (B) does not include (i) the established policies of a merchant, retail 
seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm 
accessories and (ii) a company’s refusal to engage in the trade of any goods or services, decision 
to refrain from continuing an existing business relationship, or decision to terminate an existing 
business relationship (aa) to comply with federal, state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a 
directive by a regulatory agency or (bb) for any traditional business reason that is specific to the 
customer or potential customer and not based solely on an entity’s or association’s status as a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association.  As used in the foregoing verification, (b) ‘firearm 
entity’ means a manufacturer, distributor, wholesaler, supplier, or retailer of firearms (i.e., weapons 
that expel projectiles by the action of explosive or expanding gases), firearm accessories (i.e., 
devices specifically designed or adapted to enable an individual to wear, carry, store, or mount a 
firearm on the individual or on a conveyance and items used in conjunction with or mounted on a 
firearm that are not essential to the basic function of the firearm, including detachable firearm 
magazines), or ammunition (i.e., a loaded cartridge case, primer, bullet, or propellant powder with 
or without a projectile) or a sport shooting range (as defined by Section 250.001, Texas Local 
Government Code), and (c) ‘firearm trade association’ means a person, corporation, 
unincorporated association, federation, business league, or business organization that (i) is not 
organized or operated for profit (and none of the net earnings of which insures to the benefit of 
any private shareholder or individual), (ii) has two or more firearm entities as members, and (iii)  
is exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(a), Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
an organization described by Section 501(c) of that code. 
 

7.21. Exhibits.  The following Exhibits to this Agreement are incorporated herein by 
reference for all purposes:  
 
Exhibit A – Description of Property 
Exhibit B – Existing Concept Plan 
Exhibit B-1 – Revised Concept Plan 
Exhibit C – Code Modifications 
  

199

Item 9.



 
 

15 

[Signature pages follow]

200

Item 9.



 
 

 

EXECUTED in multiple originals, and in full force and effect as of the Effective Date. 
 
      CITY: 
 
      CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, 

a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
 
 

By: ___________________________ 
      Name: Dr. Christopher Harvey   
      Title: Mayor 
 
Attest: 
 
 
By:  _________________________ 
Name: Lluvia T. Almaraz 
Title: City Secretary  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By: _________________________ 
Name: Veronica Rivera 
Title: Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2022, 
by Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
  

201

Item 9.



 
 

 

OWNER: 
 
      13100 FM 973, INC., 
      a Texas corporation 
     

 
By:       

Edward S. Butler, President 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2022, 
by Edward S. Butler, President of 13100 FM 973, Inc., a Texas corporation, on behalf of said 
corporation. 

 
             
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 

202

Item 9.



 
 

 

      BUTLER: 
 

Butler Family Partnership, a Texas limited 
partnership 
 
By: BCP GP, LLC 
Its: General Partner 
 
By: ______________________________ 

 Edward S. Butler, Sole Member

203

Item 9.



 
 

Exhibit “A” – Page 1 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
 
 

Approximately 95.054 acres of land described as follows: 
 
Tract 1:  Approximately 116.45 acres of land out of and a part of the GREENBURY GATES 

SURVEY NO. 63, in Travis County, Texas, and being that certain 116.45 acre tract of 
land described as Tract 1 in Warranty Deed dated September 1, 1994, to the Butler 
Family Partnership, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, recorded in Volume 12271, 
Page 872, Real Property Records, Travis County, Texas; and 

 
Tract 2:  Approximately 26.136 acres of land out of and a part of the GREENBURY GATES 

SURVEY NO. 63, in Travis County, Texas, and being that certain 26.136 acre tract of 
land described as Tract 2 in Warranty Deed dated September 1, 1994, to the Butler 
Family Partnership, Ltd., a Texas limited partnership, recorded in Volume 12271, 
Page 872, Real Property Records, Travis County, Texas; 

 
LESS, SAVE AND EXCEPT: 
 
Tract 3: 7.532 acres awarded to the State of Texas by Judgement of Court in Absence of 

Objection under eminent domain proceedings in Cause No. 2430, Probate Court, 
Travis County, Texas, a certified copy of said Judgment being recorded in Document 
No. 2003035973, Official Public Records, Travis County, Texas; and 

 
Tract 4: 40 acres of land out of and a part of the GREENBURY GATES SURVEY NO. 63 in 

Travis County, Texas, and being that certain 40 acre tract of land described in Special 
Warranty Deed dated March 31, 2021, from the Butler Family Partnership, Ltd., a 
Texas limited partnership, to the Board of Trustees of the Manor Independent School 
District recorded in Document No. 2021070036 of the Official Public Records of 
Travis County, Texas. 

 
 

204

Item 9.



 
 

Exhibit “B” – Page 1 

EXHIBIT “B” 
 

EXISTING CONCEPT PLAN 
 

 

205

Item 9.



 
 

Exhibit “B-1” – Page 1 

EXHIBIT “B-1” 
 

REVISED CONCEPT PLAN 
 
 

 
 

206

Item 9.



 
 

Exhibit “C” – Page 1 

EXHIBIT “C” 
 

CODE MODIFICATIONS 
 
 

Applicable to all Property (excluding Parcel A): 
 

• Median planter strips in the customer parking fields shall not be required; however in no 
case shall a parking row exceed fifteen parking spaces without a separation of a landscape 
island or peninsula of at least 180 square feet as measured from the back of curbs  

• Fencerete fencing shall meet the masonry screen wall requirements for the loading dock 
and service areas behind commercial buildings 

• Compactors in the rear of the commercial buildings shall be considered screened by a 
perimeter masonry fence 

• No shade trees shall be required within 100’ of the front entrance of commercial buildings 
• Landscaping shall not be required on the front sidewalk of commercial buildings 
• Landscaping shall not be required adjacent to commercial buildings in locations intended 

for customer interaction on the sides of the building, or in the rear service area. 
• The front building entrance of commercial buildings shall be set back from a drive aisle a 

minimum distance of 11 feet 
• Sidewalks in parking field shall only be required along the front drive aisle adjacent to the 

front of the commercial building 
• Square footage limitations on outdoor sales shall not apply to the front sidewalk of the 

commercial building 
• Outdoor storage shall be allowed  
• Commercial buildings shall not be required to be architecturally finished on all four sides 

with the same materials, detailing, and features 
• Commercial buildings will be exempt from all horizontal articulation standards on the side 

and back walls 
• The main roof of the commercial buildings shall be allowed to be flat, single slope 

 
Applicable solely to Grocery Store Parcel: 
 

• A fuel station will be allowed directly adjacent to the intersection of Hwy 290/FM 973 
• Canopies on fuel stations shall not be required to be pitched but shall have a mansard 

surrounding the roof 
 

Applicable solely to Parcel A: 
 

• Minimum dwelling size: 550 square feet. Average dwelling size: 955 square feet  
• Minimum of 50% exterior masonry  
• Roof pitch: 4/12 minimum 

207

Item 9.



 
 

Exhibit “C” – Page 2 

• Roof overhang minimum 24 inches with minimum fascia depth of 8 inches 
• Building coverages for primary structures: 40%  
• Structured Parking:  Structural parking requirements shall be reduced to 25% 
• Tandem parking shall be allowed where available (e.g. parking behind (outside attached, 

tuck-under garages) and shall count towards the total parking requirements. Carports are 
approved structured parking. 

• Townhomes shall carry the same guest parking requirements as the balance of Parcel A.  
• A ten-foot minimum landscape buffer along the north and south borders of Parcel A. 
• 6 foot sidewalks and 4.5 foot landscape buffers on front and back of buildings.  
• 4 foot sidewalks and 1.5 foot landscape buffer surrounding buildings with no sidewalk or 

landscape buffer required at tandem parking side of building. 
 
Applicable to the Property: 
 

• Lot 2-B and Lot 2-C shall be permitted to have 50 feet of frontage on the adjacent right-
of-way. 

• For the purpose of directing traffic to the entrance of the Property, one (1) double-sided, 
lighted, multi-tenant pylon sign with digital advertising may be installed and maintained 
by Owner within the median of Butler Cove at the intersection of Highway 290 (the “Butler 
Cove Freestanding Sign”). The Butler Cove Freestanding Sign shall incorporate materials 
and colors that are complementary to the overall design of the Project.  The Butler Cove 
Freestanding Sign may be up to seventy-five feet (75’) in height, with its final design 
approved by the City’s Planning and Zoning Commission. 

• The freestanding signs for pad sites fronting Highway 290 and Butler Cove shall be 
monument signs (not pylon signs). These freestanding signs shall also incorporate 
materials and colors that are complementary to the overall design of the Project. 

 

208

Item 9.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 10 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Chapter 380 Grant Agreement Butler Commercial Project. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Developer is requesting a 380 Agreement for the Butler commercial project. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• 380 Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Chapter 380 Grant Agreement Butler 
Commercial Project. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

209

Item 10.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 11 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
Consideration, discussion and possible action on a revised Concept Plan for the Butler - Manor Subdivision, 
seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 
973, Manor, TX. 
Applicant: LJA Engineering  
Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This concept plan was originally approved on January 19th, 2022. This revision adds 5 additional pads sites, turns 1 large 
tract into 4 tracts, and modifies the land use of “Phase 2” from commercial to multi-family to be consistent with the 
zoning. 

This item was not taken up for action by the P&Z due to a lack of quorum. However, in our Subdivision Code Section 
20(a) since this Concept Plan was approved by our engineer then it is automatically approved:  
Section 20. - General Procedure 

In the event that a Municipal Authority subject to quorum requirements fails to act due to lack of a quorum at the 
meeting at which an application is posted for action, then: (i) the application will be deemed approved if the City Staff 
review letter for the application states that the application meets the requirements of this Chapter and applicable state 
law and recommends approval of the application 
LEGAL REVIEW: Not Applicable 
FISCAL IMPACT:  No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Plat 
• Engineer Conformance Letter 
• Notice  
• Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve a revised Concept Plan for the Butler - Manor 
Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 
290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

210

Item 11.



211

Item 11.



212

Item 11.



Date: Friday, May 27, 2022

Don Sansom
LJA Engineering
7500 Rialto Blvd #2-100
Austin TX 78735
dsansom@LJA.com

Permit Number 2022-P-1438-CP
Job Address: 13100 N. FM Rd 973, Manor 78653

Dear Don Sansom,

We have conducted a review of the concept plan for the above-referenced project, submitted by Don 
Sansom and received by our office on May 18, 2022, for conformance with the City of Manor Code of 
Ordinances Chapter 10, Section 10.02 Exhibit A Subdivision Ordinance 263B.  The Plans appear to 
be in general compliance with City Ordinance requirements and we therefore take no exception to 
their approval as presented. 

Please submit a hard copy of the Concept Plan to Scott Dunlop at the City of Manor for 
signatures.  A copy of the signed Concept Plan will be uploaded under project files on the my 
permit now website.

Review of this submittal does not constitute verification that all data, information and calculations 
supplied by the applicant are accurate, complete or adequate for the intended purpose. The 
engineer of record is solely responsible for the completeness, accuracy and adequacy of his/her 
submittal, whether or not City Engineers review the application for Ordinance compliance. Please 
call if you have any questions or need additional information.

Sincerely,

Pauline Gray, P.E.
Senior Engineer
Jay Engineering, a Division of GBA

213

Item 11.



5/27/2022 3:16:54 PM
Butler Manor Concept Plan Revised
2022-P-1438-CP
Page 2

214

Item 11.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 

(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 

 

May 26, 2022 

 

City of Manor Development Services 

 

Notification for a Subdivision Concept Plan 
 

 

Case Number: 2021-P-1438-CP 

Case Manager: Scott Dunlop 

Contact: sdunlop@cityofmanor.org - 512-215-8262 

  

 

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting regularly 

scheduled meetings for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Revised Subdivision Concept 

Plan for the Butler - Manor Subdivision located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, 

Manor, TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 

 

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a revised Concept Plan for the Butler - Manor 

Subdivision, seventeen (17) lots on 95.16 acres more or less, and being located near the intersection 

of US Hwy 290 and N. FM 973, Manor, TX. 

Applicant: LJA Engineering  

Owner: Butler Family Partnership, Ltd. 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on June 8, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street 

in the City Hall Council Chambers.   

 

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on June 15, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this Concept 

Plan has been filed. Comments may be addressed to the email address or phone number above. Any 

communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and Council Members during the 

discussion of this item. 
 

 

 

215

Item 11.



 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE MANOR ISD  
TCAD PID 951281 
C/O BUTLER FAMILY PARTNERSHIP 
P.O. BOX 9190 
AUSTIN, TX 78766-9190 

  
OZIE MONROE SR FAMILY TRUST  
TCAD PID 236853 
C/O MARILYN MONROE HALL 
P.O. BOX 254 
MANOR, TX 78653-0254 

  
TIMMERMAN COMMERCIAL INVESTMENTS 
LP 
TCAD PID 236854 
501 VALE ST 
AUSTIN, TX 78746-5732 

 
GREENVIEW MANOR COMMONS SW, LP 
TCAD PID 874848 & 874849 
P.O. BOX 162304  
AUSTIN, TX 78716-2304 

  
SURFVIEW MANOR, LLC  
TCAD PID 860814 
19 BAY VISTA DR 
MILL VALLEY, CA 94941-1604 

  
HAZA REALTY, LP  
TCAD PID 860813 
4415 HIGHWAY 6 
SUGAR LAND, TX 77478-4476 

 
CFT NV DEVELOPMENTS, LLC  
TCAD PID 860812 
1683 WALNUT GROVE AVE 
ROSEMOND, CA 91770-3711 

  
WAL-MART REAL ESTATE BUSINESS 
TRUST MS 0555 
TCAD PID 830450 & 830451 
P.O. BOX 8050 
BENTONVILLE, AR 72712-8055 

  
SCF RC FUNDING IV, LLC 
TCAD PID 830449 
902 CARNEGIE CENTER BLVD #520 
PRINCETON, NJ 08540-6531 

 
COTTONWOOD HOLDINGS, LTD 
TCAD PID 725370 
C/O DWYER REALTY COMPANIES 
9900 US HWY 290 E. 
MANOR, TX 78653-9720 

  
ASC MEDICAL 8 HOLDINGS, LLC 
TCAD PID 710219 
885 WOODSTOCK RD #430-330 
ROSWELL, GA 30075-2277 

  
SHADOWGLEN GOLF, LP 
TCAD PID 568065 
12801 LEXINGTON ST 
MANOR, TX 78653-3333 

 
SHERMAN & SYLVIA M WHITE JR 
TCAD PID 697020 
13720 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

  
MICKEY JONATHAN & RACHEL MOLAD 
TCAD PID 697021 
13724 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

  
SONNY & APRIL ANN WILLIS 
TCAD PID 697022 
13728 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

 
REALTRON, INC 
TCAD PID 697023 
13276 RESEARCH BLVD #105 
AUSTIN, TX 78750-3225 

  
PHILLIP P & IRMA EWING 
TCAD PID 697024 
13721 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

  
ARTURO SANCHEZ &  
SAN JUANA PEREZ SANCHEZ 
TCAD PID 697025 
13717 SHADOWGLADE PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3768 

 
TRAVIS CO MUD #2 
TCAD PID 724199 
C/O SUE BROOKS LITTLEFIELD 
100 CONGRESS AVE #1300 
AUSTIN, TX 78701-2744 

  
LAMONT & SHARLA M. RANDLE 
TCAD PID 697026 
11709 PILLOW PL 
MANOR, TX 78653 

  
THOMAS & AMANDA MULLEN 
TCAD PID 697027 
11713 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

 
HUMBERTO SUAREZ 
TCAD PID 697028 
11717 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
MICHAEL & LAUREN MANKER 
TCAD PID 697029 
11721 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
MARILYN D. MCARTHUR 
TCAD PID 697030 
11725 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

 
GARY L. STIGGERS 
TCAD PID 697031 
11729 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
WILLIAMS WESLEY TAYLOR JR & 
JERY ANN TAYLOR 
TCAD PID 697032 
11733 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
MAURA & TERRENCE HAYS III 
TCAD PID 697033 
11737 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

 
DAFFNEY A HENRY 
TCAD PID 697034 
13745 SHADY RIDGE 
MANOR, TX 78653-3770 

  
BENJAMIN & MARISA DEL LA GARZA 
TCAD PID 697054 
11708 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
ALLEN C AMBUHL & DEBRA K YOUNG 
TCAD PID 697055 
11712 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

216

Item 11.



 
GEORGE BROWN JR 
TCAD PID 697056 
P.O. BOX 1158 
MANOR, TX 78653-1158 

  
ANTHONY & VICTORIA HUNT 
TCAD PID 697057 
11720 PILLION PL 
MANOR, TX 78653-3767 

  
SEAN & SUMMER CURTIS 
TCAD PID 700577 
913 N. INYO ST 
RIDGECREST, CA 93555-3000 

  

 
CARMEN & RODOLFO ACOSTA 
TCAD PID 700578 
13820 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

  
BRETT R. BENEDETTI 
TCAD PID 700579 
13824 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

  
DAISY PRIETO & SALVADOR U FLORES 
TCAD PID 700580 
13828 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

 
ASPAZIA BITA 
TCAD PID 700581 
13832 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

  
TODD CURTIS PHILLIPS &  
SAMANTHA ANNETTE PHILLIPS 
TCAD PID 700582 
11501 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

  
AKINYEMI P. AJAI & PRISCILLA O AJAI 
TCAD PID 700616 
11505 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

 
JENNIFER & MICHAEL WHITE 
TCAD PID 700648 
11509 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

  
MAYRA HERNANDEZ 
TCAD PID 700621 
11513 GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653 

  
GLADYS & JEFFREY LEWIS 
TCAD PID 700622 
11517 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3884 

 
CORETTA BELL-SEXTON &  
JOHNNY F SEXTON JR 
TCAD PID 700623 
11601 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

  
KRISTIN L & SCOTT P VANDENBERG 
TCAD PID 700624 
11605 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

  
CHARLIE HOLMES &  
MARK BURGESSPORTER 
TCAD PID 700625 
C/O STEPHENS LAMB 
P.O. BOX 27626 
MACON, GA 31221-7626 

 
BRENT WILLIAM SPEAD &  
SHYLA ANAHITA SPEAD 
TCAD PID 700626 
11613 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

  
STEPHEN C & SANDRA L ITNYRE 
TCAD PID 700627 
11617 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

 

  
CHARLES L & AURSHA R WALDON 
TCAD PID 700628 
11621 SUN GLASS DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3885 

 
AGATA GRUZA & ERIC MICHAEL DALEY 
TCAD PID 700620 
13824 LONG SHADOW DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3883 

  
DAVID L & JOSIE U HANEY 
TCAD PID 700649 
13825 TERCEL TRACE 
MANOR, TX 78653-3879 

  
PROPERTY OWNER 
TCAD PID 700650 
13821 TERCEL TRACE 
MANOR, TX 78653 

 
TORVALD TOMAS VALENTIJ HESSEL &  
RYAN ELISABETH FLEMING 
TCAD PID 700670 
16408 CHRISTINA GARZA DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-2162 

  
WILLIE & CARMEN MARIA KENDRICK 
TCAD PID 700671 
13824 TERCEL TRACE 
MANOR, TX 78653-3879 

  
CHAE KYUNG KIM & CHOONG N CHANG 
TCAD PID 700591 
13817 FIELD SPAR DR  
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

 
MIHCAEL & LINDSAY JONES 
TCAD PID 700590 
13821 FIELD SPAR DR 
MANOR, TX 78653-3881 

    

     

 
217

Item 11.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 12 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the First Amendment to Development Agreement 
(EntradaGlen). 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Developer is requesting a first amendment to the development agreement for EntradaGlen in order to address 
the development of the LESC-2 parcel, a 13.69 acre tract for multi-family and commercial uses, including the 
extension of Eggleston Street. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• First Amendment to Development Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is city staff’s recommendation that the City Council Staff approve the First Amendment to Development 
Agreement (EntradaGlen). 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

218

Item 12.



 
 

1 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(EntradaGlen) 

 
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “First 
Amendment”) is dated effective June ___, 2022 (the “Amendment Effective Date”), and is 
entered into between the CITY OF MANOR, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (the 
“City”) and LAS ENTRADAS DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION, a Texas corporation 
(including its Designated Successors and Assigns) (collectively, the “Developer”). The City and 
the Developer are sometimes referred to as a “Party” and collectively herein as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. City and Developer previously entered into that certain Development Agreement 
(EntradaGlen) dated effective July 7, 2021, 2020 (the “Agreement”), for that certain mixed-used 
master-planned project located in the City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, as more particularly 
described in the Agreement (the “Overall Project”). 

 
B. In addition to other property within the Overall Project, the Developer owns the 

portion of the LE Property (as defined in the Agreement) consisting of approximately 13.69 acres 
and identified as LESC-2 on Exhibit E attached to the Agreement (the “LESC-2 Parcel”).  

 
C. The LESC-2 Parcel is currently zoned Light Commercial (C-1) and the Agreement 

currently contemplates that the LESC-2 Parcel will be developed for neighborhood retail.  
 
D. DD&B Construction, Inc. (“DD&B”) is under contract to purchase the LESC-2 

Parcel and intends to develop the LESC-2 Parcel partially for multifamily use and partially for 
commercial use as generally depicted on the site plan attached hereto as Schedule 1 attached hereto 
(the “LESC-2 Site Plan”). A request to re-zone approximately 9.8 acres of the LESC-2 Parcel 
from C-1 to Multi-family 25 (MF-2)(the “LESC-2 Rezoning Request”)  has been submitted to 
the City and the LESC-2 Rezoning Request is being simultaneously considered by City Council 
for its second reading on even date herewith.  

 
E. If the LESC-2 Rezoning Request is approved by City Council, (i) DD&B will 

dedicate the required right of way (approximately 1.754 acres) for the extension of Eggleston 
Street, as generally depicted on the attached LESC-2 Site Plan (the “Eggleston Street Extension”) 
and (ii) Developer will construct the Eggleston Street Extension in conjunction with DD&B’s 
development of the LESC-2 Parcel.  

 
F. The City and Developer desire to modify and amend the Agreement in certain 

respects, as more particularly set forth in this First Amendment to accommodate the development 
of the LESC-2 Parcel. 
 
  

219

Item 12.



 
 

2 

AGREEMENT: 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer hereby agree as follows: 

 
1) Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and 

made a part of this First Amendment to the same extent as if set forth herein in full. 
 

2) Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms in this First Amendment shall have the 
same meanings as in the Agreement unless expressly provided otherwise herein. 
 

3) Zoning/Land Use. (a) Pursuant to Section 4.3 of the Agreement, zoning of the LE 
Property shall be subject to the process, notices, hearings and procedures applicable to all other 
properties within the City and any re-zoning that is subsequently approved for the LE Property 
shall allow the LE Property to be developed in accordance with terms and conditions of the 
Agreement. 

 
(b)     To reflect the rezoning of the LESC-2 Parcel, the portion of the Land Use Summary 

Table attached to the Agreement as Exhibit E-1 solely applicable to the LESC-2 Parcel is hereby 
deleted and replaced with the following: 

 
Entrada Glen Land Use Sumary      
Tract Block Area (AC) Use Units SF Parking Required*  

LESC 2 2A 1.754 Right of Way n/a n/a 

 2B 1.67 Commercial tbd at site plan tbd at site plan 

 2C 9.8 Multifamily Tbd at stie plan tbd at site plan 

      
      
Subtotal 13.224     

 
*Up to 40 parking spaces on Block 2B (Commercial) may be jointly used by Block 2C 
(Multifamily) in order to meet required parking numbers.  The shared parking spaces on Block 2B 
(Commercial) will be constructed concurrently with the development of the multifamily project 
on Block 2C. 
 

(c)  The map/drawing contained on the Land Use Summary Table attached to the 
Agreement as Exhibit E-1 is hereby amended to add  “Exhibit E-1.1” attached hereto and made a 
part hereof which is solely applicable to the LESC-2 Parcel. 

 
4) Open Space/Parkland.  Open Space and Parkland dedication for all of the Property 

covered by the Agreement has (or will be) satisfied pursuant to Section 4.11 of the Agreement, 
therefore, the Parties acknowledge and agree that DD&B shall not be required to dedicate any onsite 
parkland with respect to the LESC-2 Parcel, but will require a fee-in-lieu per section 15.01.001 
(C)(8). 

 

220

Item 12.



 
 

3 

5) Eggleston Street Extension.  (a) Concurrently with the final plat for all or any 
portion of the LESC-2 Parcel, DD&B hereby agrees to dedicate to the City, fifty feet (50’) of right 
of way for the Eggleston Street Extension (approximately 1.754 acres). At the City’s election, the 
right of way shall be dedicated by plat or separate instrument.  Developer agrees to design and 
construct the Eggleston Street Extension concurrently with the development of the LESC-2 Parcel 
in accordance with the City Rules and in a good and workmanlike manner. 

 
(b) Developer and the City agree that if not already included, the Eggleston Street 

Extension shall be an Authorized Improvement and eligible for reimbursement through the PID, 
provided that estimated costs are submitted to the City Engineer for review and approval prior to 
the final plat for all or any portion of the LESC-2 Parcel. At the time of review and approval, the 
estimated costs shall be added as part of Exhibit B-1 or Exhibit B-2 of the Agreement.     

 
6) PID Finance Exhibits/PID Finance Documents.  As contemplated in the definition 

of “PID Finance Exhibits” in the Agreement, the information set forth in Section 6.1 of the 
Agreement may need to be revised by agreement of the Parties based on updated information 
received during the due diligence review of the PID Project, the proposed special assessments, and 
the proposed PID Bonds. The Parties hereby acknowledge and agree that the terms and conditions 
of this First Amendment with respect to the LESC-2 Parcel and the Eggleston Street Extension 
construction shall be included in any future revisions to the PID Finance Exhibits and PID Finance 
Documents.  

  
7) Approved Assignment.  The City hereby approves DD&B, an affiliate of DD&B or 

a newly formed entity controlled and/or managed by DD&B or Sushil Mehta (“DD&B Entity”) as 
a Designated Successor and Assign of Developer solely with respect to the LESC-2 Parcel, should 
DD&B or a DD&B Entity become the fee simple owner of the LESC-2 Parcel on or before 
December 31, 2022 (“Acquisition Deadline”). If DD&B or a DD&B Entity fails to acquire fee 
simple title to the LESC-2 Parcel on or before the Acquisition Deadline, this First Amendment shall 
terminate and be of no further force and effect. 

  
8) Modifications. The properties adjacent to the southern boundary of the LESC-2 

Parcel contain a mixture of commercial, civic and residential uses. Since the majority of the 
adjacent land is being used for commercial and civic uses, the prohibition against having surface 
parking within the setback adjacent to residential use (Section 14.02.064(b)(16)(D) shall be waived 
solely as it pertains to the southern boundary of the LESC-2 Parcel.   Therefore, Exhibit I of the 
Agreement is amended to add subsection 3. as follows:  

 
“3. The southern boundary of the LESC-2 Parcel shall not be required to 
comply with Section 14.02.064(b)(16)(D) of the Code of Ordinances and is 
permitted to contain surface parking. Bufferyard requirements shall still apply per 
Section 15.03.023.” 

 
9) Ratification of Agreement/Conflict. All terms and conditions of the Agreement are 

hereby ratified and affirmed, as modified by this First Amendment. To the extent there is any 
inconsistency between the Agreement and this First Amendment, the provisions of this First 
Amendment shall control.  

221

Item 12.



 
 

4 

 
10) No Waiver. Neither City’s nor Developer’s execution of this First Amendment shall 

(a) constitute a waiver of any of its rights and remedies under the Agreement or at law with respect 
to the other party’s obligations under the Agreement or (b) be construed as a bar to any subsequent 
enforcement of any of its rights or remedies against the other party. 
 

11) Governing Law. This First Amendment shall be construed and enforced in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 

 
12) Anti-Boycott Verification.  To the extent this First Amendment constitutes a 

contract for goods or services within the meaning of Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government 
Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government 
Code, and subject to applicable Federal law, Developer represents that neither Developer nor any 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Developer (i) 
boycotts Israel or (ii) will boycott Israel through the term of this First Amendment. The terms 
"boycotts Israel" and "boycott Israel" as used in this paragraph have the meanings assigned to the 
term "boycott Israel" in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
13) Iran, Sudan and Foreign Terrorist Organizations. To the extent this First 

Amendment constitute a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 2252.151 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2252 of the 
Texas Government Code, and except to the extent otherwise required by applicable federal law, 
Developer represents that Developer nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, 
parent company or affiliate of Contractor is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
14) Anti-Boycott Verification - Energy Companies.  The Developer hereby verifies that 

it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do 
not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the term of this First 
Amendment.  The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2274.002, Texas 
Government Code, and to the extent such Section is not inconsistent with a governmental entity's 
constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 
obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.  As used in 
the foregoing verification, "boycott energy company" means, without an ordinary business 
purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 
that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a 
company because the company: (A) engages in the exploration, production, utilization, 
transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge 
to meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business 
with a company described by the preceding statement in (A). 

 
15) Anti-Discrimination Verification - Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade 

Associations.  The Developer hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-
owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive 
that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not have a practice, 
policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association 

222

Item 12.



 
 

5 

during the term of this First Amendment.  The foregoing verification is made solely to comply 
with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code.  As used in the foregoing verification, 
"discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association" means: (i)  refuse to engage in 
the trade of any goods or services with the entity or association based solely on its status as a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association; (ii)  refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm 
trade association; or (iii)  terminate an existing business relationship with the entity or association 
based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; but does not include (a)  
the established policies of a merchant, retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing 
or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm accessories; or (b)  a company's refusal to engage in 
the trade of any goods or services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship, or decision to terminate an existing business relationship to comply with federal, 
state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency; or for any traditional 
business reason that is specific to the customer or potential customer and not based solely on an 
entity's or association's status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

 
16) Entire Agreement. The Parties hereto agree and understand that no oral agreements, 

or understandings, shall be binding, unless reduced to a writing which is signed by said Parties. 
The Parties hereto agree and understand that this First Amendment shall be binding on them, their 
personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 
 

17) Counterparts. This First Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, 
each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which will constitute one and the same 
agreement. 
 

[Signature pages follow]

223

Item 12.



 
 

6 

EXECUTED in multiple originals, and in full force and effect as of the First Amendment 
Effective Date. 

 
      CITY: 
 
      CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, 

a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
 
 

By: ___________________________ 
      Name: Dr. Christopher Harvey   
      Title: Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
By:  _________________________ 
Name: Lluvia T. Almaraz 
Title: City Secretary  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By: _________________________ 
Name: Veronica Rivera 
Title: Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2022, 
by Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 

224

Item 12.



 
 

7 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 

LAS ENTRADAS DEVELOPMENT  
CORPORATION, a Texas corporation 

     
 
      By: _______________________________ 
      Name: _______________________________ 
      Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 
 
COUNTY OF ______________ § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2022, 
by __________________, ________________ of Las Entradas Development Corporation, a Texas 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 
 
DD&B CONSTRUCTION,  
INC., a Delaware corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
  

225

Item 12.



 
 

8 
 

Schedule 1

226

Item 12.



 
 

9 
 

EXHIBIT E-1.1 
LESC-2 Parcel 

 
 

 
 

  

227

Item 12.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 13 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Third Amendment to Development Agreement (Manor 
Heights). 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Developer is requesting a third amendment to the development agreement for Manor Heights in order to address 
the placement of off-site signage; to revise the process to be followed for approval from the PUC to obtain water 
service from the City; and to include the timing of construction for a park trail. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• Third Amendment to Development Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is city staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Third Amendment to Development Agreement 
(Manor Heights). 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

228

Item 13.



 
 

 1 
   
 

THIRD AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
(Manor Heights) 

 
 

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (this “Third 
Amendment”) is dated effective June ___, 2022 (the “Third Amendment Effective Date”) and 
is entered into between the CITY OF MANOR, a Texas home-rule municipal corporation (the 
“City”) and FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a Texas corporation (the 
“Developer. The City and Developer are sometimes referred to herein as a “Party” and 
collectively as the “Parties.” 
 

RECITALS: 
 

A. Sky Village Kimbro Estates, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“Sky 
Village”) and RHOF, LLC, a Texas limited liability company (“RHOF”) (collectively, the 
“Original Developer”) and the City previously entered into that certain Development Agreement 
dated effective November 7, 2018 (the “Agreement”), as was amended by that certain First 
Amendment to Development Agreement dated November 6, 2019 (the “First Amendment”), and 
as further amended by that certain Second Amendment to Development Agreement dated October 
21, 2020 (the “Second Amendment”) for that certain Project (as defined therein) located in the 
City of Manor, Travis County, Texas, as more particularly described in the Agreement. 

 
B. Developer now owns all the Property (as defined in the Agreement), save and 

except the Commercial Parcels, herein defined, which are owned by RHOF. RHOF is executing 
and acknowledging this Third Amendment solely as the owner of the Commercial Parcels. 

 
C. The Original Developer assigned all of its rights under the Development Agreement 

to Developer. 
 
D. Developer desires to place signage related to the residential community currently 

being developed on the Property within the Commercial Parcels and RHOF has granted easements 
to Developer to allow for the placement of the signage on the Commercial Parcels which are 
recorded in Document No. 2021162643 and 2021162644 of the Official Public Records of Travis 
County, Texas (the “Private Signage Easements”) 

 
E. The City Code does not allow off-site signage (Section 15.04.019) nor does it allow 

signage to be placed on property unless that sign identifies a “building, business, product(s), or 
service(s) manufactured, sold, or offered on the premises where the sign is located” (Section 
15.04.018).  The City and Developer desire to modify and amend the Agreement to allow for off-
site signage and signage identifying an off-premises project/business within the Project, as more 
particularly set forth in this Third Amendment. 

 
F. The Parties also desire to amend the Agreement to address additional items that 

have arisen now that development of the Project is underway, including a change in the procedure 
for placing the Nagel 2 Tract (defined below) into the City’s CCN and identifying the timing for 
construction of a certain trail more particularly identified below.  

229

Item 13.



 
 

  2 
 

 
 

 
AGREEMENT: 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of 
which are hereby acknowledged, City and Developer hereby agree as follows: 

 
1) Incorporation of Recitals.  The recitals set forth above are incorporated herein and 

made a part of this Third Amendment to the same extent as if set forth herein in full. 
 

2) Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms in this Third Amendment shall have the 
same meanings as in the Agreement unless expressly provided otherwise herein. 

 
3) Signage. Notwithstanding the terms of Section 15.04.018 and Section 15.04.019 of 

the City’s Code of Ordinances, it is hereby agreed that signage advertising, identifying and/or 
pertaining to the residential community being developed on the Property (i.e. Carillon) may be 
located on the Commercial Parcels within the areas identified in the Private Signage Easements. 
Furthermore, such signage may be constructed on the Commercial Parcels prior to development 
of the Commercial Parcels (e.g. construction of the signage will occur now in connection with the 
development of the residential portion of the Project). Except as provided herein, Developer shall 
comply with Section 15.04.018 and Section 15.04.019 of the City’s Code of Ordinances for 
signage located on the Commercial Parcels within the areas identified in the Private Signage 
Easements. 

 
4) Nagle Tract. The second and third paragraphs of Section 4 of the First Amendment 

are hereby deleted and replaced with the following: 
 
“The Developer will negotiate and finalize a transfer agreement between Manville Water 
Supply Corporation (“Manville”) and the City to transfer the portion of the Property more 
particularly described on Exhibit “P” attached hereto (the “Nagle 2 Tract”) from 
Manville’s CCN to the City’s CCN pursuant to and in accordance with Texas Water Code 
Section 13.248 in a form acceptable to and approved by the City.  Developer shall thereafter 
submit to the Public Utility Commission of Texas and diligently pursue obtaining approval 
of the CCN transfer agreement for the Nagle 2 Tract. The Developer shall be responsible 
for any and all costs of obtaining the transfer agreement between Manville and the City 
and the PUC approval of the CCN transfer. If the Developer and Manville settle on an 
amount to be paid to Manville in order to obtain approval of the CCN transfer in accordance 
with a CCN transfer agreement in a form mutually acceptable to Manville and the City, the 
Developer shall be responsible for all amounts due and payable to Manville required to 
obtain Manville’s approval of the CCN transfer agreement.” 
 
5) Exhibit F (Parkland).  Developer agrees that the trail identified on Exhibit F as 

“Proposed Pedestrian Trail Across floodplain to connect to Manor Heights” will be constructed 
prior to the City’s issuance of any certificate of occupancy within Phase 5 of the Project. 

 

230

Item 13.



 
 

  3 
 

6) Ratification of Agreement/Conflict. All terms and conditions of the Agreement are 
hereby ratified and affirmed, as modified by this Third Amendment. To the extent there is any 
inconsistency between the Agreement and this Third Amendment, the provisions of this Third 
Amendment shall control. 

 
7) No Waiver. Neither City’s nor Developer’s execution of this Third Amendment 

shall (a) constitute a waiver of any of its rights and remedies under the Agreement or at law with 
respect to the other party’s obligations under the Agreement or (b) be construed as a bar to any 
subsequent enforcement of any of its rights or remedies against the other party. 

 
8) Governing Law. This Third Amendment shall be construed and enforced in 

accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. 
 
9) Anti-Boycott Verification.  To the extent this Third Amendment constitutes a 

contract for goods or services within the meaning of Section 2270.002 of the Texas Government 
Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2270 of the Texas Government 
Code, and subject to applicable Federal law, Developer represents that neither Developer nor any 
wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of Developer (i) 
boycotts Israel or (ii) will boycott Israel through the term of this Third Amendment. The terms 
“boycotts Israel” and “boycott Israel” as used in this paragraph have the meanings assigned to the 
term “boycott Israel” in Section 808.001 of the Texas Government Code, as amended. 

 
10) Iran, Sudan and Foreign Terrorist Organizations. To the extent this Third 

Amendment constitute a governmental contract within the meaning of Section 2252.151 of the 
Texas Government Code, as amended, solely for purposes of compliance with Chapter 2252 of the 
Texas Government Code, and except to the extent otherwise required by applicable federal law, 
Developer represents that Developer nor any wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, 
parent company or affiliate of Contractor is a company listed by the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts under Sections 2270.0201, or 2252.153 of the Texas Government Code. 

 
11) Anti-Boycott Verification – Energy Companies.  The Developer hereby verifies that 

it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do 
not boycott energy companies and will not boycott energy companies during the term of this Third 
Amendment.  The foregoing verification is made solely to comply with Section 2274.002, Texas 
Government Code, and to the extent such Section is not inconsistent with a governmental entity’s 
constitutional or statutory duties related to the issuance, incurrence, or management of debt 
obligations or the deposit, custody, management, borrowing, or investment of funds.  As used in 
the foregoing verification, “boycott energy company” means, without an ordinary business 
purpose, refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action 
that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations with a 
company because the company: (A) engages in the exploration, production, utilization, 
transportation, sale, or manufacturing of fossil fuel-based energy and does not commit or pledge 
to meet environmental standards beyond applicable federal and state law; or (B) does business 
with a company described by the preceding statement in (A). 

 

231

Item 13.



 
 

  4 
 

12) Anti-Discrimination Verification – Firearm Entities and Firearm Trade 
Associations.  The Developer hereby verifies that it and its parent company, wholly- or majority-
owned subsidiaries, and other affiliates, if any, do not have a practice, policy, guidance, or directive 
that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association and will not have a practice, 
policy, guidance, or directive that discriminates against a firearm entity or firearm trade association 
during the term of this Third Amendment.  The foregoing verification is made solely to comply 
with Section 2274.002, Texas Government Code.  As used in the foregoing verification, 
“discriminate against a firearm entity or firearm trade association” means: (i)  refuse to engage in 
the trade of any goods or services with the entity or association based solely on its status as a 
firearm entity or firearm trade association; (ii)  refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship with the entity or association based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm 
trade association; or (iii)  terminate an existing business relationship with the entity or association 
based solely on its status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association; but does not include (a)  
the established policies of a merchant, retail seller, or platform that restrict or prohibit the listing 
or selling of ammunition, firearms, or firearm accessories; or (b)  a company's refusal to engage in 
the trade of any goods or services, decision to refrain from continuing an existing business 
relationship, or decision to terminate an existing business relationship to comply with federal, 
state, or local law, policy, or regulations or a directive by a regulatory agency; or for any traditional 
business reason that is specific to the customer or potential customer and not based solely on an 
entity's or association's status as a firearm entity or firearm trade association. 

 
13) Entire Agreement. The Parties hereto agree and understand that no oral agreements, 

or understandings, shall be binding, unless reduced to a writing which is signed by said Parties. 
The Parties hereto agree and understand that this Third Amendment shall be binding on them, their 
personal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns. 

 
14) Counterparts. This Third Amendment may be executed in multiple counterparts, 

each of which will be deemed an original, and all of which will constitute one and the same 
agreement. 
 
 
 

[Signature pages follow]

232

Item 13.



 
 

 5 
   
 

EXECUTED in multiple originals, and in full force and effect as of the Third Amendment 
Effective Date. 
 
      CITY: 
 
      CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, 

a Texas home-rule municipal corporation 
 

 
By: ___________________________ 

       Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor  
Attest: 
 
 
By:  _________________________ 
Name: Lluvia T. Almaraz 
Title: City Secretary  
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
By: _________________________ 
Name: Veronica Rivera 
Title: Assistant City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2022, 
by Dr. Christopher Harvey, Mayor of the City of Manor, Texas, a Texas home-rule municipal 
corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 

[Signatures Continue on next page]

233

Item 13.



 
 

6 
 

DEVELOPER: 
 
      

FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP,  
INC., a Delaware corporation 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 

 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 
 
COUNTY OF TRAVIS § 
 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of _____________, 2022, by 
______________, ___________ of the FORESTAR (USA) REAL ESTATE GROUP, INC., a 
Delaware corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 
 
      _________________________ 
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of Texas 
 
 
 

[Signatures Continue on next page]

234

Item 13.



 
 

7 
 

ACKNOWLEDGED AND AGREED TO: 
 
RHOF, LLC, a Texas limited liability company 
 
By: _______________________________ 
Name: _______________________________ 
Title: _______________________________ 
 
 
 
 
THE STATE OF   § 
 
COUNTY OF    § 
 

 
This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ____________, 2022, 

by __________________, ________________ of RHOF LLC, a Texas limited liability company, 
on behalf of said company. 

 
            
(SEAL)     Notary Public, State of ___________ 
 
 
 
  

235

Item 13.



 
 

8 
 

Exhibit “P” 
Nagle 2 Tract 

  

236

Item 13.



237

Item 13.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 14 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director of Development Services 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on Amendment One to the Interlocal Agreement by and Between 
Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority and City of Manor, Texas for Build Central Texas. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Capital Metro is requesting an amendment to the interlocal agreement with the City for Build Central Texas.   

This item was postponed at the June 1, 2022, Regular Council Meeting 

LEGAL REVIEW:  Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• Amendment One to the Interlocal Agreement 
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

City staff recommends approval as to form of Amendment One to the Interlocal Agreement by and Between 
Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority and City of Manor, Texas for Build Central Texas and direct the 
Mayor to execute the agreement once finalized. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

238

Item 14.



Page 1 of 11 
 

AMENDMENT ONE 
TO THE 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BY AND BETWEEN  

CAPITAL METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AND 

__________________________________ 
FOR BUILD CENTRAL TEXAS 

 

This Amendment One to the Interlocal Agreement for Build Central Texas (“Amendment One”) is made 
by and between Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority, a transportation authority organized under 
Chapter 451 of the Texas Transportation Code (“Capital Metro”) and _________________, a 
____________________ (the “Suburban Community”).  Capital Metro and ____________ are referred 
to in this Amendment One individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

1. Capital Metro and Suburban Community are parties to that certain Interlocal Agreement for Build 
Central Texas, dated effective __________________ (the “Agreement”), under which the parties set 
forth the terms and conditions for Suburban Community’s participation in the Build Central Texas 
Program – Suburban Communities Program (“BCT Program”). 
 

2. The Parties wish to revise and expand on the process for administering and participating in the BCT 
Program each fiscal year (September 30 through October 1) (a “Fiscal Year”). 

 

3. In addition, the Parties wish to set forth the process, guidelines and responsibilities for each Party 
related to a transit supportive infrastructure fund created by Capital Metro to fund certain transit 
supportive infrastructure projects proposed by the Suburban Community. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
 

1. BCT Program Funding, Guidelines and Procedures.  Article II of the Agreement is deleted and 
replaced in its entirety with the following: 
 

“II. BCT Program Funding, Guidelines and Procedures 
 

A. Funding for Suburban Community in the BCT Program will be allocated annually in an 
amount equal to the difference between the sales tax contributions attributed to Suburban 
Community and the Total Cost of Service attributed to Suburban Community for the prior 
fiscal year (the “BCT Allocation”). For the purposes of this Agreement, Total Cost of 
Service shall be defined as operations and maintenance costs for transit service provided 
to Suburban Community plus capital depreciation (the “Total Cost of Service”).  
 

B. For Fiscal Year 2022, the BCT Allocation is shown on the attached Appendix A.  The 
Parties agree that $800,000 of the Fiscal Year 2022 BCT Allocation will be set aside for 
future expenses related to the Project Connect Green Line project, as shown on the attached 

239

Item 14.



Page 2 of 11 
 

Appendix A. 
 

C. For future fiscal years, Capital Metro staff will notify Suburban Community of the BCT 
Allocation for Suburban Community by March 31 of the applicable fiscal year, and the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement will apply (the “BCT Allocation Notification”).   
The City may elect to allocate portions of the BCT Allocation towards the Project Connect 
Green Line project in future fiscal years.  A report showing a detailed calculation of the 
Total Cost of Service in a form substantially similar to that set forth in Exhibit ___ will 
accompany the BCT Allocation reported to Suburban City each year.  

 
D. Capital Metro shall provide audited annual financial statements to Suburban Community 

upon request. All cost information and service metrics are available monthly on the Capital 
Metro website dashboard. Any additional data valuable to Suburban Community will be 
reasonably provided upon request.  Suburban Community may audit documentation 
related to the Total Cost of Service and the BCT Allocation to ensure compliance with 
the terms of this Agreement.  Capital Metro shall make available to Suburban 
Community’s designated auditor during regular business hours and upon reasonable 
notice, applicable records related to the calculation of the Total Cost of Service and 
the BCT Allocation.  If the event that such audit demonstrates that the Total Cost of 
Service or BCT Allocation was calculated incorrectly and resulted in an underpayment 
of the BCT Allocation, the correct amount shall be paid by Capital Metro within thirty 
(30) days of notification by Suburban Community.  In the event that such audit 
demonstrates that the Total Cost of Service or BCT Allocation was calculated 
incorrectly and resulted in an overpayment of the BCT Allocation, the overpayment 
amount will be refunded to Capital Metro within thirty (30) days of the determination.  
Suburban Community must exercise its right to audit a particular Total Cost of Service 
and/or BCT Allocation within twelve (12) months of their corresponding BCT 
Allocation Notification.   

E. Once Capital Metro staff notifies Suburban Community of a BCT Allocation under this 
Agreement, Suburban Community shall submit to Capital Metro a proposed project list for 
the applicable fiscal year in accordance with the Suburban Communities Program 
Procedures and Guidelines attached to this Agreement as Appendix B (the “BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures”). The project list may include a proposal to rollover a BCT 
Allocation for use in a later fiscal year.  If a project list for any fiscal year is not submitted 
to Capital Metro by the end of the fiscal year in which funds are allocated, then such fiscal 
year funds are forfeited.  Suburban Community may, during the applicable fiscal year, 
submit for Capital Metro’s approval, a revised project list to allocate unattached funds to 
prior-approved projects. 

 

F. For projects approved for Fiscal Year 2022, Capital Metro shall make payments to 
Suburban Community as follows:  

a. a check for fifty percent (50%) of the BCT Allocation will be available by June 
1, 2022.   

b. For projects funded with less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) 
of the applicable BCT Allocation, payment for outstanding project costs will be 
made out of the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the BCT Allocation by check 
upon submission of an invoice from Suburban Community evidencing 
completion or substantial completion of the project, together with satisfactory 

Commented [PS1]: My understanding is that this is 
something the City can choose not to allocate, so this 
sentence is subject to Council approval. 

240

Item 14.



Page 3 of 11 
 

documentation for payment, and otherwise in accordance with the BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures. 

c. For projects funded with Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more of 
the applicable BCT Allocation, payment for outstanding project costs will be 
made out of the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the BCT Allocation by check 
upon submission of an invoice from Suburban Community evidencing 
completion or substantial completion of the project, together with satisfactory 
documentation for payment, in accordance with an established project milestone 
schedule agreed upon by the Parties prior to commencement of the project and 
otherwise in accordance with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

G. For projects approved for Fiscal Year 2023 and subsequent fiscal years, Capital Metro 
shall make payments to Suburban Community as follows:  

a. For projects funded with less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) 
of the applicable BCT Allocation, fifty percent (50%) of the budgeted costs for 
each such project shall be mailed to Suburban Community upon submittal of an 
invoice on Suburban Community letterhead. Payment for the remaining project 
costs will be made to Suburban Community by check upon  submission of an 
invoice from Suburban Community evidencing completion or substantial 
completion of the project, together with satisfactory documentation for payment, 
and otherwise in accordance with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

b. For projects funded with Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more of 
the applicable BCT Allocation, twenty percent (20%) of the budgeted costs for 
each such project shall be mailed to Suburban Community upon submittal of an 
invoice on Suburban Community letterhead, provided that such payment will not 
exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). Payment for the remaining project 
costs will be paid by check upon submission of an invoice from Suburban 
Community evidencing completion or substantial completion of the project, 
together with satisfactory documentation for payment, in accordance with an 
established project milestone schedule agreed upon by the Parties prior to 
commencement of the project and otherwise in accordance with the BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures. 

H. Capital Metro shall provide Suburban Community requested technical or project assistance 
in pursuing federal grant funds to complement the funding available under the Program 
that supports transit supportive infrastructure and joint Suburban Community and Capital 
Metro goals.   
 

2. BCT Guidelines and Procedures.  The BCT Guidelines and Procedures attached to the 
Agreement as Exhibit A are deleted and replaced in their entirety by the revised BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures attached to this Amendment One as Appendix A.  Suburban 
Community will comply with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures, which set out the rules 
and regulations governing participation in the BCT Program and payments to be made to 
Suburban Community under this Agreement.  Capital Metro reserves the right, in its sole 
discretion to make amendments to the BCT Program Guidelines and Procedures from time 
to time, provided that such amendments shall not reduce the funding for prior-approved 
projects, shorten the deadlines for Suburban Community to submit proposed projects to 
Capital Metro (unless Capital Metro provides the City with sixty days' written notice of the 

241

Item 14.



Page 4 of 11 
 

amendments), change the Total Service Cost, cause the BCT Allocation to become 
unavailable, or change a material term of this Agreement.    

 
3. Transit Supported Infrastructure Fund 

 
A. By action of the Capital Metro Board of Directors on March 28, 2022, Capital Metro approved a 

Transit Supportive Infrastructure Fund to fund transit supportive infrastructure projects for 
Suburban Communities with the amount shown on the attached Appendix A being apportioned for 
use by Suburban Community (“Transit Infrastructure Fund Allocation”).  Unless otherwise 
provided in this Section 3, the projects funded with Transit Infrastructure Fund Allocation (the 
“Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects”) will be subject to the BCT Guidelines and 
Procedures, with references to the BCT Program and BCT projects deemed to mean the Transit 
Supportive Infrastructure Fund and the Transit Infrastructure Fund Allocation.  

  

B. Suburban Community will submit to Capital Metro for approval a list of proposed Suburban 
Community Infrastructure Projects by May 31June 30, 2022.  The project list may include a 
proposal to use Transit Infrastructure Funds beyond Fiscal Year 2022.  If the project list is not 
submitted to Capital Metro by September 30, 2022 then the Transit Infrastructure Funds are 
forfeited.  Suburban Community may submit for Capital Metro’s approval, a revised project list to 
allocate unattached funds to prior-approved projects. Capital Metro will review and approve 
Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects in accordance with the BCT Guidelines and 
Procedures. 

C. Capital Metro shall make payments to Suburban Community for approved Suburban 
Community Infrastructure Projects as follows:  

a. For Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects funded with less than Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000) of the Suburban Community Transit Infrastructure 
Funds, fifty percent (50%) of the budgeted costs for the Suburban Community 
Infrastructure Funds shall be mailed to Suburban Community on or after June 1, 2022, 
upon submittal of an invoice on Suburban Community letterhead.  Payment for the 
remaining costs for such Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects will be made 
to Suburban Community by check upon submission of an invoice from Suburban 
Community evidencing completion or substantial completion of the project, together 
with satisfactory documentation for payment, and otherwise in accordance with the 
BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

b. For Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects funded with Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more of the Suburban Community Transit 
Infrastructure Funds, twenty percent (20%) of the budgeted costs for each such 
project shall be mailed to Suburban Community on or after June 1, 2022, upon 
submittal of an invoice on Suburban Community letterhead, provided that such 
payment will not exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).  Payment for the 
remaining costs will be made to Suburban Community by check upon submission of 
an invoice from Suburban Community evidencing completion or substantial 
completion of the applicable Suburban Community Infrastructure Project, together 
with satisfactory documentation for payment, in accordance with an established 
project milestone schedule agreed upon by the Parties prior to commencement of the 
applicable Suburban Community Infrastructure Project and otherwise in accordance 
with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

D. Capital Metro shall pay all invoices in accordance with the Texas Prompt Payment Act, 

242

Item 14.



Page 5 of 11 
 

Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code. Capital Metro shall have the right to audit project 
documentation to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement and the BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures. 

 

4. Invoicing and Payment.  Capital Metro shall pay all invoices in accordance with the Texas 
Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code. Capital Metro shall have the right 
to audit project documentation to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement and the 
BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

 
5. Term and Termination.  Article III of the Agreement is deleted and replaced in its entirety with the 

following: 
 

“III. Term and Termination 

A. The initial term of this Agreement is from the date of the last Party to sign 
(“Effective Date”) through September 30, 2032, unless terminated earlier in 
accordance with this Agreement. After the initial term, the Agreement will 
automatically renew annually on the anniversary of the Effective Date unless either 
Party provides written notice ninety (90) days in advance of the end date of its 
intent not to renew. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Parties may 
mutually agree to terminate this Agreement at any time. 

B. If, at any time during the term of the Agreement, Suburban Community is no 
longer included in Capital Metro’s service area, this Agreement will automatically 
terminate and be null and void as of the date on which Suburban Community is 
removed from Capital Metro’s service area.  As of such date, neither party will 
have any obligations under this Agreement, including any obligation by Capital 
Metro to make any payments to Suburban Community under this Agreement.  

C. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in the event of 
termination of the Agreement, the funding for any projects approved prior to the 
termination of the Agreement shall remain available and payable to Suburban 
Community under the terms set forth in this Agreement, and the obligation to pay 
the BCT Allocation to Suburban Community for such approved projects shall 
survive termination of this Agreement.  

D. If Capital Metro becomes subject to a legislative change, revocation of statutory 
authority, or lack of funds which would render Capital Metro’s performance under 
this Agreement impossible or unnecessary, this Agreement will be terminated or 
cancelled and be deemed null and void. In the event of such termination or 
cancellation, Capital Metro will not be liable to Suburban Community for any 
damages, which are caused or associated with such termination, or cancellation.  
In such event, Capital Metro shall cooperate with Suburban Community to 
determine whether there is an alternative source of funding for the BCT Allocation 
or an alternative structure that can be used to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement.” 

 
6. Entire Agreement. The terms of this Amendment One are in addition to, and construed together 

with, the terms of the Agreement.  In the event of conflict in any language in the Agreement and 
this Amendment One, the language in this Amendment One will control. 

 

243

Item 14.



Page 6 of 11 
 

7. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized items used in this Amendment One and not otherwise defined 
have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment One has been signed by an authorized representative of 
each Party, to be effective as of the last signature date below. 

 

CAPITAL METROPOLITAN  
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 
______________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 
Signature Date _________________________ 

_____________________ 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 
Signature Date _________________________ 

 

244

Item 14.



Page 7 of 11 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

BCT ALLOCATION AMOUNT   
AND  

TRANSIT INFRASTRUCTURE FUND ALLOCATION 

245

Item 14.



Page 8 of 11 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

THE BUILD CENTRAL TEXAS - SUBURBAN COMMUNITIES 
PROGRAM PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES 

The Build Central Texas - Suburban Communities Program was established by Capital Metro to finance 
transportation projects that are of mutual benefit to Capital Metro and the respective communities in the 
Capital Metro service area. The Capital Metro Board of Directors created the Suburban Communities 
Program to ensure that the suburban cities and portions of counties in the Capital Metro service area 
(collectively, the “Suburban Communities”) benefit from the Build Central Texas Program. 

 

The following procedures and guidelines are provided to assist the Suburban Communities in Capital 
Metro's service area with developing and administering their annual Build Central Texas Program - 
Suburban Communities Program project proposals. Capital Metro staff will be available to assist with any 
questions that may arise regarding the program. 
 
Project Criteria 

 

1. The purpose of a project must be for transit related capital improvements and generally will fall into 
one of the following categories, unless otherwise agreed to by Capital Metro: 

 
a. Transit Capital Improvements: 

  
i. Includes sidewalks, sidewalk curb ramps, safety signage, electronic pedestrian signals, 

walkway lighting and hike and bike facilities, passenger amenities such as shelters, 
benches, landscaping, bus stop lighting, concrete bus pads, and roadway improvements 
that improve traffic safety or traffic flows.  

 
ii. Must be along a transit route or directly leading to a transit route or transit facility, unless 

otherwise approved by Capital Metro.  A statement from the Suburban Community that the 
project is along or directly leading to a transit route must be included in the proposed 
project list when submitted to Capital Metro. 

 
b. Street Resurfacing and Improvements:  

 
i. Includes asphalt and concrete resurfacing of streets, street reconstruction, and construction 

of new streets which will serve as transit corridors. Street repair and maintenance should 
focus on current and future transit routes. Street projects may only include non-transit 
related roadways when all transit roadways are in an improved condition.   
 

ii. Transit street projects are given priority for resurfacing over non-transit streets. Funding 
may be applied to the repair of non-transit streets provided all of a Suburban Community's 
transit streets have been resurfaced in the last five years and are in good condition, as 
determined by Capital Metro staff. Written verification of such resurfacing must be 
submitted. 

 

246

Item 14.



Page 9 of 11 
 

c. Mobility Improvements:  
 

i. Includes planning, review, and implementation of programs and projects which have a 
benefit to transit service and include the planning for, review of, and implementation of 
intersection improvements, signal timing changes, widening of roadways, signage, 
lighting, transit-related bicycle and pedestrian improvements, and other mobility 
enhancement projects and programs. Transit-related bicycle and pedestrian improvements 
are defined as those projects which use various transportation methods to providing multi- 
modal access to homes, business, public facilities and which provide improved access to 
transit facilities or service. 

 

2. Strong preference is given to projects that are directly on a transit route. 
 

3. Strong preference is given to projects that directly improve transit service, traffic safety, or passenger 
convenience. 

 

4. Joint funding of projects between Capital Metro, the Suburban Community, and other financing 
sources is encouraged. 
 

Project Submittal  
 

1. When Capital Metro staff notifies the Suburban Community of a fiscal year allocation, the Suburban 
Community shall submit to Capital Metro a proposed project list for that fiscal year (October 1- 
September 30). The proposed project list must be submitted on or before May 31 of each fiscal year 
that funds are allocated provided the project list does not exceed the fiscal year allocation. The project 
list shall define the scope of work for the services to be provided by Suburban Community. 

 

2. Upon request, Suburban Community may be required to submit to Capital Metro additional project 
details and timelines. Capital Metro has the right to reject any submitted project that does not meet the 
established Project Criteria. Any project not rejected by Capital Metro shall be deemed approved. 

 

3. The Suburban Community's projects list must include all new projects as well as any previously 
approved unfinished projects and their status. Capital Metro will review the proposed projects and 
provide guidance to the respective Suburban Communities as applicable. Proposed projects will be 
reviewed by Capital Metro Planning and Development Department and Capital Projects staff to ensure 
that projects do not conflict with other regional projects. When the projects are approved, the Suburban 
Community will be notified.  

 

Final project proposals should be in letter form and directed to Capital Metro at the following address or 
via electronic email address: 

 
Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority 

Attn: Finance 

247

Item 14.



Page 10 of 11 
 

2910 East Fifth Street 
Austin, Texas 78702 

Melanie.Capesius@capmetro.org 
 

Capital Metro will notify the Suburban Community in writing of any changes to the above address. 
 

4. Projects that are not competitively contracted will only be reimbursed for directly related costs. No 
indirect costs will be covered. It is a requirement under this Agreement that the Suburban Community 
will so state in their submitted projects list that all projects will be competitively bid noting any 
exceptions for emergency projects. Direct costs that are covered include the categories of project 
development, project design, and project construction. A letter or agreement detailing eligible costs 
will be required for projects that are not competitively contracted before final payment is released.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, emergency projects deemed by the Suburban Community to be of 
grave public necessity and necessary to meet unusual and unforeseen conditions are exempt from the 
competitive contracting requirement. 

5. In order to advance efforts by Capital Metro and the Suburban Community to increase the participation 
of small businesses in publicly funded projects, Small Business Enterprise (“SBE”) participation is 
strongly encouraged. Each Suburban Community may set SBE goals on procurements using its own 
“Small Business Program” or the Suburban Community may follow Capital Metro’s SBE program. 
 

6. If a project list for any fiscal year that funds are allocated is not submitted to Capital Metro by the end 
of the fiscal year in which funds are allocated, then such fiscal year funds are forfeited; Suburban 
Community may, during the applicable fiscal year, submit for Capital Metro’s approval, a revised 
project list to allocate unattached funds to prior-approved projects. 

 

7. For projects with costs of $500,000 or more, the Suburban Community and Capital Metro, through its 
Planning and Development Department staff, will develop milestones specific to the project prior to 
commencement of the project. 

 

8. Requests for modifications to project lists or any substitution of the projects previously approved must 
be submitted in writing to Capital Metro. Written approval by Capital Metro of proposed changes is 
required.  

 

Project Administration 
 
Throughout the term of any project, Suburban Community will: 

1. Maintain regular communication with Capital Metro. 

2. If requested, provide Capital Metro with all requested documentation needed to conduct a 
project audit. In the event Capital Metro determines that fiscal year funds were not spent on 
an approved project, then upon demand, the Suburban Community shall reimburse Capital 
Metro for any funds identified by in such audit as not spent on an approved project. 

3. Ensure all pedestrian projects and policies developed through the BCT Program are developed 
in accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

4. Notify Capital Metro or its representative when the project is complete or substantially 

248

Item 14.

mailto:Melanie.Capesius@capmetro.org


Page 11 of 11 
 

completed. 

5. Upon request, arrange a site visit to allow Capital Metro or its representative an opportunity 
to inspect a project. 

 
Invoicing and Payment  

 

1. The Suburban Community is responsible for invoicing Capital Metro based on milestones, as 
applicable, and/or completion or substantial completion of the project in accordance with the terms 
of the Agreement. The invoices should be in letter form to Capital Metro and have attached 
photocopies of any documentation pertaining to the cost of the project such as construction 
contracts, supply invoices, timesheets, change orders, contractor pay vouchers, etc.  
 

2. The Suburban Community shall provide Capital Metro with any documentation pertaining to any 
approved project, including pre-construction or construction meeting minutes, copies of pay 
applications, change orders, progress reports, photographs, payment vouchers, and project close-
out documents if requested by Capital Metro. 

 

3. The Suburban Community is responsible for informing Capital Metro in a timely manner of any 
substantial delays or alterations in the project scope of work. 

4. Capital Metro shall pay all invoices from revenue that is currently available to Capital Metro. 

5. Payments to Suburban Community are expressly contingent upon Suburban Community’s strict 
compliance with this Agreement, including the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

 
6. All interest that may accrue to program funding held by the Suburban Community must be allocated 

toward program projects. The local Suburban Community administrator will propose the projects 
to which the funding will be allocated and submit in writing a project modification request to 
Capital Metro. 

 

 
 

 

249

Item 14.



Page 1 of 11 
 

AMENDMENT ONE 
TO THE 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT  
BY AND BETWEEN  

CAPITAL METROPOLITAN TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
AND 

__________________________________ 
FOR BUILD CENTRAL TEXAS 

 

This Amendment One to the Interlocal Agreement for Build Central Texas (“Amendment One”) is made 
by and between Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority, a transportation authority organized under 
Chapter 451 of the Texas Transportation Code (“Capital Metro”) and _________________, a 
____________________ (the “Suburban Community”).  Capital Metro and ____________ are referred 
to in this Amendment One individually as a “Party” and collectively as the “Parties”. 

RECITALS 

1. Capital Metro and Suburban Community are parties to that certain Interlocal Agreement for Build 
Central Texas, dated effective __________________ (the “Agreement”), under which the parties set 
forth the terms and conditions for Suburban Community’s participation in the Build Central Texas 
Program – Suburban Communities Program (“BCT Program”). 
 

2. The Parties wish to revise and expand on the process for administering and participating in the BCT 
Program each fiscal year (September 30 through October 1) (a “Fiscal Year”). 

 

3. In addition, the Parties wish to set forth the process, guidelines and responsibilities for each Party 
related to a transit supportive infrastructure fund created by Capital Metro to fund certain transit 
supportive infrastructure projects proposed by the Suburban Community. 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
 

1. BCT Program Funding, Guidelines and Procedures.  Article II of the Agreement is deleted and 
replaced in its entirety with the following: 
 

“II. BCT Program Funding, Guidelines and Procedures 
 

A. Funding for Suburban Community in the BCT Program will be allocated annually in an 
amount equal to the difference between the sales tax contributions attributed to Suburban 
Community and the Total Cost of Service attributed to Suburban Community for the prior 
fiscal year (the “BCT Allocation”). For the purposes of this Agreement, Total Cost of 
Service shall be defined as operations and maintenance costs for transit service provided 
to Suburban Community plus capital depreciation (the “Total Cost of Service”).  
 

B. For Fiscal Year 2022, the BCT Allocation is shown on the attached Appendix A.  The 
Parties agree that $800,000 of the Fiscal Year 2022 BCT Allocation will be set aside for 
future expenses related to the Project Connect Green Line project, as shown on the attached 

250

Item 14.



Page 2 of 11 
 

Appendix A. 
 

C. For future fiscal years, Capital Metro staff will notify Suburban Community of the BCT 
Allocation for Suburban Community by March 31 of the applicable fiscal year, and the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement will apply (the “BCT Allocation Notification”).  
The City may elect to allocate portions of the BCT Allocation towards the Project Connect 
Green Line project in future fiscal years.  A report showing a detailed calculation of the 
Total Cost of Service in a form substantially similar to that set forth in Exhibit ___ will 
accompany the BCT Allocation reported to Suburban City each year.  

 
D. Capital Metro shall provide audited annual financial statements to Suburban Community 

upon request. All cost information and service metrics are available monthly on the Capital 
Metro website dashboard. Any additional data valuable to Suburban Community will be 
reasonably provided upon request.  Suburban Community may audit documentation 
related to the Total Cost of Service and the BCT Allocation to ensure compliance with 
the terms of this Agreement.  Capital Metro shall make available to Suburban 
Community’s designated auditor during regular business hours and upon reasonable 
notice, applicable records related to the calculation of the Total Cost of Service and 
the BCT Allocation.  If the event that such audit demonstrates that the Total Cost of 
Service or BCT Allocation was calculated incorrectly and resulted in an underpayment 
of the BCT Allocation, the correct amount shall be paid by Capital Metro within thirty 
(30) days of notification by Suburban Community.  In the event that such audit 
demonstrates that the Total Cost of Service or BCT Allocation was calculated 
incorrectly and resulted in an overpayment of the BCT Allocation, the overpayment 
amount will be refunded to Capital Metro within thirty (30) days of the determination.  
Suburban Community must exercise its right to audit a particular Total Cost of Service 
and/or BCT Allocation within twelve (12) months of their corresponding BCT 
Allocation Notification.   

E. Once Capital Metro staff notifies Suburban Community of a BCT Allocation under this 
Agreement, Suburban Community shall submit to Capital Metro a proposed project list for 
the applicable fiscal year in accordance with the Suburban Communities Program 
Procedures and Guidelines attached to this Agreement as Appendix B (the “BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures”). The project list may include a proposal to rollover a BCT 
Allocation for use in a later fiscal year.  If a project list for any fiscal year is not submitted 
to Capital Metro by the end of the fiscal year in which funds are allocated, then such fiscal 
year funds are forfeited.  Suburban Community may, during the applicable fiscal year, 
submit for Capital Metro’s approval, a revised project list to allocate unattached funds to 
prior-approved projects. 

 

F. For projects approved for Fiscal Year 2022, Capital Metro shall make payments to 
Suburban Community as follows:  

a. a check for fifty percent (50%) of the BCT Allocation will be available by June 
1, 2022.   

b. For projects funded with less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) 
of the applicable BCT Allocation, payment for outstanding project costs will be 
made out of the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the BCT Allocation by check 
upon submission of an invoice from Suburban Community evidencing 
completion or substantial completion of the project, together with satisfactory 

Commented [PS1]: Council to confirm agreement with 
this term. 

251

Item 14.



Page 3 of 11 
 

documentation for payment, and otherwise in accordance with the BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures. 

c. For projects funded with Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more of 
the applicable BCT Allocation, payment for outstanding project costs will be 
made out of the remaining fifty percent (50%) of the BCT Allocation by check 
upon submission of an invoice from Suburban Community evidencing 
completion or substantial completion of the project, together with satisfactory 
documentation for payment, in accordance with an established project milestone 
schedule agreed upon by the Parties prior to commencement of the project and 
otherwise in accordance with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

G. For projects approved for Fiscal Year 2023 and subsequent fiscal years, Capital Metro 
shall make payments to Suburban Community as follows:  

a. For projects funded with less than Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) 
of the applicable BCT Allocation, fifty percent (50%) of the budgeted costs for 
each such project shall be mailed to Suburban Community upon submittal of an 
invoice on Suburban Community letterhead. Payment for the remaining project 
costs will be made to Suburban Community by check upon  submission of an 
invoice from Suburban Community evidencing completion or substantial 
completion of the project, together with satisfactory documentation for payment, 
and otherwise in accordance with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

b. For projects funded with Five Hundred Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more of 
the applicable BCT Allocation, twenty percent (20%) of the budgeted costs for 
each such project shall be mailed to Suburban Community upon submittal of an 
invoice on Suburban Community letterhead, provided that such payment will not 
exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). Payment for the remaining project 
costs will be paid by check upon submission of an invoice from Suburban 
Community evidencing completion or substantial completion of the project, 
together with satisfactory documentation for payment, in accordance with an 
established project milestone schedule agreed upon by the Parties prior to 
commencement of the project and otherwise in accordance with the BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures. 

H. Capital Metro shall provide Suburban Community requested technical or project assistance 
in pursuing federal grant funds to complement the funding available under the Program 
that supports transit supportive infrastructure and joint Suburban Community and Capital 
Metro goals.   
 

2. BCT Guidelines and Procedures.  The BCT Guidelines and Procedures attached to the 
Agreement as Exhibit A are deleted and replaced in their entirety by the revised BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures attached to this Amendment One as Appendix A.  Suburban 
Community will comply with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures, which set out the rules 
and regulations governing participation in the BCT Program and payments to be made to 
Suburban Community under this Agreement.  Capital Metro reserves the right, in its sole 
discretion to make amendments to the BCT Program Guidelines and Procedures from time 
to time, provided that such amendments shall not reduce the funding for prior-approved 
projects, shorten the deadlines for Suburban Community to submit proposed projects to 
Capital Metro (unless Capital Metro provides the City with sixty days' written notice of the 

252

Item 14.



Page 4 of 11 
 

amendments), change the Total Service Cost, cause the BCT Allocation to become 
unavailable, or change a material term of this Agreement.    

 
3. Transit Supported Infrastructure Fund 

 
A. By action of the Capital Metro Board of Directors on March 28, 2022, Capital Metro approved a 

Transit Supportive Infrastructure Fund to fund transit supportive infrastructure projects for 
Suburban Communities with the amount shown on the attached Appendix A being apportioned for 
use by Suburban Community (“Transit Infrastructure Fund Allocation”).  Unless otherwise 
provided in this Section 3, the projects funded with Transit Infrastructure Fund Allocation (the 
“Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects”) will be subject to the BCT Guidelines and 
Procedures, with references to the BCT Program and BCT projects deemed to mean the Transit 
Supportive Infrastructure Fund and the Transit Infrastructure Fund Allocation.  

  

B. Suburban Community will submit to Capital Metro for approval a list of proposed Suburban 
Community Infrastructure Projects by June 30, 2022.  The project list may include a proposal to 
use Transit Infrastructure Funds beyond Fiscal Year 2022.  If the project list is not submitted to 
Capital Metro by September 30, 2022 then the Transit Infrastructure Funds are forfeited.  Suburban 
Community may submit for Capital Metro’s approval, a revised project list to allocate unattached 
funds to prior-approved projects. Capital Metro will review and approve Suburban Community 
Infrastructure Projects in accordance with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

C. Capital Metro shall make payments to Suburban Community for approved Suburban 
Community Infrastructure Projects as follows:  

a. For Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects funded with less than Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000) of the Suburban Community Transit Infrastructure 
Funds, fifty percent (50%) of the budgeted costs for the Suburban Community 
Infrastructure Funds shall be mailed to Suburban Community on or after June 1, 2022, 
upon submittal of an invoice on Suburban Community letterhead.  Payment for the 
remaining costs for such Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects will be made 
to Suburban Community by check upon submission of an invoice from Suburban 
Community evidencing completion or substantial completion of the project, together 
with satisfactory documentation for payment, and otherwise in accordance with the 
BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

b. For Suburban Community Infrastructure Projects funded with Five Hundred 
Thousand Dollars ($500,000) or more of the Suburban Community Transit 
Infrastructure Funds, twenty percent (20%) of the budgeted costs for each such 
project shall be mailed to Suburban Community on or after June 1, 2022, upon 
submittal of an invoice on Suburban Community letterhead, provided that such 
payment will not exceed One Million Dollars ($1,000,000).  Payment for the 
remaining costs will be made to Suburban Community by check upon submission of 
an invoice from Suburban Community evidencing completion or substantial 
completion of the applicable Suburban Community Infrastructure Project, together 
with satisfactory documentation for payment, in accordance with an established 
project milestone schedule agreed upon by the Parties prior to commencement of the 
applicable Suburban Community Infrastructure Project and otherwise in accordance 
with the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

D. Capital Metro shall pay all invoices in accordance with the Texas Prompt Payment Act, 
Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code. Capital Metro shall have the right to audit project 

253

Item 14.



Page 5 of 11 
 

documentation to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement and the BCT 
Guidelines and Procedures. 

 

4. Invoicing and Payment.  Capital Metro shall pay all invoices in accordance with the Texas 
Prompt Payment Act, Chapter 2251, Texas Government Code. Capital Metro shall have the right 
to audit project documentation to ensure compliance with the terms of this Agreement and the 
BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

 
5. Term and Termination.  Article III of the Agreement is deleted and replaced in its entirety with the 

following: 
 

“III. Term and Termination 

A. The initial term of this Agreement is from the date of the last Party to sign 
(“Effective Date”) through September 30, 2032, unless terminated earlier in 
accordance with this Agreement. After the initial term, the Agreement will 
automatically renew annually on the anniversary of the Effective Date unless either 
Party provides written notice ninety (90) days in advance of the end date of its 
intent not to renew. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Parties may 
mutually agree to terminate this Agreement at any time. 

B. If, at any time during the term of the Agreement, Suburban Community is no 
longer included in Capital Metro’s service area, this Agreement will automatically 
terminate and be null and void as of the date on which Suburban Community is 
removed from Capital Metro’s service area.  As of such date, neither party will 
have any obligations under this Agreement, including any obligation by Capital 
Metro to make any payments to Suburban Community under this Agreement.  

C. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, in the event of 
termination of the Agreement, the funding for any projects approved prior to the 
termination of the Agreement shall remain available and payable to Suburban 
Community under the terms set forth in this Agreement, and the obligation to pay 
the BCT Allocation to Suburban Community for such approved projects shall 
survive termination of this Agreement.  

D. If Capital Metro becomes subject to a legislative change, revocation of statutory 
authority, or lack of funds which would render Capital Metro’s performance under 
this Agreement impossible or unnecessary, this Agreement will be terminated or 
cancelled and be deemed null and void. In the event of such termination or 
cancellation, Capital Metro will not be liable to Suburban Community for any 
damages, which are caused or associated with such termination, or cancellation.  
In such event, Capital Metro shall cooperate with Suburban Community to 
determine whether there is an alternative source of funding for the BCT Allocation 
or an alternative structure that can be used to achieve the purposes of this 
Agreement.” 

 
6. Entire Agreement. The terms of this Amendment One are in addition to, and construed together 

with, the terms of the Agreement.  In the event of conflict in any language in the Agreement and 
this Amendment One, the language in this Amendment One will control. 

 

254

Item 14.



Page 6 of 11 
 

7. Capitalized Terms. Capitalized items used in this Amendment One and not otherwise defined 
have the meanings assigned to them in the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment One has been signed by an authorized representative of 
each Party, to be effective as of the last signature date below. 

 

CAPITAL METROPOLITAN  
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY 
 
______________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 
Signature Date _________________________ 

_____________________ 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Name: ________________________________ 
Title: ________________________________ 
Signature Date _________________________ 

 

255

Item 14.



Page 7 of 11 
 

APPENDIX A 
 

BCT ALLOCATION AMOUNT   
AND  

TRANSIT INFRASTRUCTURE FUND ALLOCATION 

256

Item 14.



Page 8 of 11 
 

APPENDIX B 
 

THE BUILD CENTRAL TEXAS - SUBURBAN COMMUNITIES 
PROGRAM PROCEDURES AND GUIDELINES 

The Build Central Texas - Suburban Communities Program was established by Capital Metro to finance 
transportation projects that are of mutual benefit to Capital Metro and the respective communities in the 
Capital Metro service area. The Capital Metro Board of Directors created the Suburban Communities 
Program to ensure that the suburban cities and portions of counties in the Capital Metro service area 
(collectively, the “Suburban Communities”) benefit from the Build Central Texas Program. 

 

The following procedures and guidelines are provided to assist the Suburban Communities in Capital 
Metro's service area with developing and administering their annual Build Central Texas Program - 
Suburban Communities Program project proposals. Capital Metro staff will be available to assist with any 
questions that may arise regarding the program. 
 
Project Criteria 

 

1. The purpose of a project must be for transit related capital improvements and generally will fall into 
one of the following categories, unless otherwise agreed to by Capital Metro: 

 
a. Transit Capital Improvements: 

  
i. Includes sidewalks, sidewalk curb ramps, safety signage, electronic pedestrian signals, 

walkway lighting and hike and bike facilities, passenger amenities such as shelters, 
benches, landscaping, bus stop lighting, concrete bus pads, and roadway improvements 
that improve traffic safety or traffic flows.  

 
ii. Must be along a transit route or directly leading to a transit route or transit facility, unless 

otherwise approved by Capital Metro.  A statement from the Suburban Community that the 
project is along or directly leading to a transit route must be included in the proposed 
project list when submitted to Capital Metro. 

 
b. Street Resurfacing and Improvements:  

 
i. Includes asphalt and concrete resurfacing of streets, street reconstruction, and construction 

of new streets which will serve as transit corridors. Street repair and maintenance should 
focus on current and future transit routes. Street projects may only include non-transit 
related roadways when all transit roadways are in an improved condition.   
 

ii. Transit street projects are given priority for resurfacing over non-transit streets. Funding 
may be applied to the repair of non-transit streets provided all of a Suburban Community's 
transit streets have been resurfaced in the last five years and are in good condition, as 
determined by Capital Metro staff. Written verification of such resurfacing must be 
submitted. 

 

257

Item 14.



Page 9 of 11 
 

c. Mobility Improvements:  
 

i. Includes planning, review, and implementation of programs and projects which have a 
benefit to transit service and include the planning for, review of, and implementation of 
intersection improvements, signal timing changes, widening of roadways, signage, 
lighting, transit-related bicycle and pedestrian improvements, and other mobility 
enhancement projects and programs. Transit-related bicycle and pedestrian improvements 
are defined as those projects which use various transportation methods to providing multi- 
modal access to homes, business, public facilities and which provide improved access to 
transit facilities or service. 

 

2. Strong preference is given to projects that are directly on a transit route. 
 

3. Strong preference is given to projects that directly improve transit service, traffic safety, or passenger 
convenience. 

 

4. Joint funding of projects between Capital Metro, the Suburban Community, and other financing 
sources is encouraged. 
 

Project Submittal  
 

1. When Capital Metro staff notifies the Suburban Community of a fiscal year allocation, the Suburban 
Community shall submit to Capital Metro a proposed project list for that fiscal year (October 1- 
September 30). The proposed project list must be submitted on or before May 31 of each fiscal year 
that funds are allocated provided the project list does not exceed the fiscal year allocation. The project 
list shall define the scope of work for the services to be provided by Suburban Community. 

 

2. Upon request, Suburban Community may be required to submit to Capital Metro additional project 
details and timelines. Capital Metro has the right to reject any submitted project that does not meet the 
established Project Criteria. Any project not rejected by Capital Metro shall be deemed approved. 

 

3. The Suburban Community's projects list must include all new projects as well as any previously 
approved unfinished projects and their status. Capital Metro will review the proposed projects and 
provide guidance to the respective Suburban Communities as applicable. Proposed projects will be 
reviewed by Capital Metro Planning and Development Department and Capital Projects staff to ensure 
that projects do not conflict with other regional projects. When the projects are approved, the Suburban 
Community will be notified.  

 

Final project proposals should be in letter form and directed to Capital Metro at the following address or 
via electronic email address: 

 
Capital Metropolitan Transportation Authority 

Attn: Finance 

258

Item 14.



Page 10 of 11 
 

2910 East Fifth Street 
Austin, Texas 78702 

Melanie.Capesius@capmetro.org 
 

Capital Metro will notify the Suburban Community in writing of any changes to the above address. 
 

4. Projects that are not competitively contracted will only be reimbursed for directly related costs. No 
indirect costs will be covered. It is a requirement under this Agreement that the Suburban Community 
will so state in their submitted projects list that all projects will be competitively bid noting any 
exceptions for emergency projects. Direct costs that are covered include the categories of project 
development, project design, and project construction. A letter or agreement detailing eligible costs 
will be required for projects that are not competitively contracted before final payment is released.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, emergency projects deemed by the Suburban Community to be of 
grave public necessity and necessary to meet unusual and unforeseen conditions are exempt from the 
competitive contracting requirement. 

5. In order to advance efforts by Capital Metro and the Suburban Community to increase the participation 
of small businesses in publicly funded projects, Small Business Enterprise (“SBE”) participation is 
strongly encouraged. Each Suburban Community may set SBE goals on procurements using its own 
“Small Business Program” or the Suburban Community may follow Capital Metro’s SBE program. 
 

6. If a project list for any fiscal year that funds are allocated is not submitted to Capital Metro by the end 
of the fiscal year in which funds are allocated, then such fiscal year funds are forfeited; Suburban 
Community may, during the applicable fiscal year, submit for Capital Metro’s approval, a revised 
project list to allocate unattached funds to prior-approved projects. 

 

7. For projects with costs of $500,000 or more, the Suburban Community and Capital Metro, through its 
Planning and Development Department staff, will develop milestones specific to the project prior to 
commencement of the project. 

 

8. Requests for modifications to project lists or any substitution of the projects previously approved must 
be submitted in writing to Capital Metro. Written approval by Capital Metro of proposed changes is 
required.  

 

Project Administration 
 
Throughout the term of any project, Suburban Community will: 

1. Maintain regular communication with Capital Metro. 

2. If requested, provide Capital Metro with all requested documentation needed to conduct a 
project audit. In the event Capital Metro determines that fiscal year funds were not spent on 
an approved project, then upon demand, the Suburban Community shall reimburse Capital 
Metro for any funds identified by in such audit as not spent on an approved project. 

3. Ensure all pedestrian projects and policies developed through the BCT Program are developed 
in accordance with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act. 

4. Notify Capital Metro or its representative when the project is complete or substantially 

259

Item 14.

mailto:Melanie.Capesius@capmetro.org


Page 11 of 11 
 

completed. 

5. Upon request, arrange a site visit to allow Capital Metro or its representative an opportunity 
to inspect a project. 

 
Invoicing and Payment  

 

1. The Suburban Community is responsible for invoicing Capital Metro based on milestones, as 
applicable, and/or completion or substantial completion of the project in accordance with the terms 
of the Agreement. The invoices should be in letter form to Capital Metro and have attached 
photocopies of any documentation pertaining to the cost of the project such as construction 
contracts, supply invoices, timesheets, change orders, contractor pay vouchers, etc.  
 

2. The Suburban Community shall provide Capital Metro with any documentation pertaining to any 
approved project, including pre-construction or construction meeting minutes, copies of pay 
applications, change orders, progress reports, photographs, payment vouchers, and project close-
out documents if requested by Capital Metro. 

 

3. The Suburban Community is responsible for informing Capital Metro in a timely manner of any 
substantial delays or alterations in the project scope of work. 

4. Capital Metro shall pay all invoices from revenue that is currently available to Capital Metro. 

5. Payments to Suburban Community are expressly contingent upon Suburban Community’s strict 
compliance with this Agreement, including the BCT Guidelines and Procedures. 

 
6. All interest that may accrue to program funding held by the Suburban Community must be allocated 

toward program projects. The local Suburban Community administrator will propose the projects 
to which the funding will be allocated and submit in writing a project modification request to 
Capital Metro. 

 

 
 

 

260

Item 14.



 

APPENDIX A 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Suburban City Updated BCT FY2022 Capital Fund FY2021 Sales Tax FY2021 Service Cost 

Manor $1,065,048 $1,585,190 $2,051,587 $986,539 

261

Item 14.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 15 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Development Services Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 
First Reading: Consideration, discussion and possible action on an ordinance annexing 62.84 acres, , more or less, 
located in Travis County, including the abutting streets, roadways, and rights-of-way into the corporate limits of 
the City, at the request of the property owner; approving an Agreement for the Provision of Services for the 
annexed area; making findings of fact; providing a severability clause and an effective date; and providing for 
open meetings and other related matters. 
 
BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is at the SE corner of US 290 and Old Kimbro Road. A non-annexation development agreement was 
approved for it in 2017. Since the property has filed for a rezoning application and intends to change the current 
use, they are required to annex into the city limits per that non-annexation development agreement. The property 
owner also worked with the City to locate a lift station on the property as part of the Cottonwood WWTP 
development to provide wastewater service to the tract when it develops.  

This Public Hearing is requested to be postponed until July 20th. Notices will be resent out. Since the zoning is also 
requested to be postponed due to P&Z lack of quorum/action, the applicant would like the annexation to coincide 
with the zoning request. The new dates for this annexation would be:  

Public Hearing and First Reading – 7/20, Second Reading 8/3 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION: No 
ATTACHMENTS: Yes 

• Ordinance  
• Post Annexation Provision of Services 

Agreement 

 

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council postpone first reading to the July 20, 2022, Regular 
Council Meeting.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 
POSTPONED 

 

262

Item 15.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 16 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

First Reading: Consideration, discussion, and possible action on an ordinance rezoning 62.84 acres, more or less, 
out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey No. 52, Abstract No. 154, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 
and Old Kimbro Road, Manor, TX to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2). 

Applicant: Kimley-Horn and Associates 
Owner: Millcreek Residential 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

This property is currently being annexed at the request of the property owner. They are proposing approximately 
52 acres of Townhome and 10 acres of Medium Commercial at the intersection. The current proposal is for 331 
townhome units. 

This item is requested to be postponed until July 20th. P&Z did not take up this item at the June 8th meeting due 
to a lack of quorum so it has been moved to P&Z’s July 13th meeting for consideration, then it will come before 
the Council on July 20th. Second reading will be on August 3rd. 
LEGAL REVIEW: No 
FISCAL IMPACT: No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:  Yes 

• Ordinance 
• Letter of Intent  
• Zoning Map  

• Area Map 
• Notice  
• Labels 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the city staff’s recommendation that the City Council postpone first reading to the July 20, 2022, Regular 
Council Meeting.  

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

263

Item 16.



 

 ORDINANCE NO.         
 
 AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS, AMENDING THE 

ZONING ORDINANCE BY REZONING A PARCEL OF LAND TO 
TOWNHOME (TH) AND MEDIUM COMMERCIAL (C-2); MAKING 
FINDINGS OF FACT; AND PROVIDING FOR RELATED MATTERS.  

 WHEREAS, the owner of the property described hereinafter (the "Property") has requested 
that the Property be rezoned;  

 WHEREAS, after giving ten days written notice to the owners of land within three hundred 
feet of the Property, the Planning & Zoning Commission held a public hearing on the proposed 
rezoning and forwarded its recommendation on the rezoning to the City Council; 

   WHEREAS, after publishing notice of the public at least fifteen days prior to the date of such 
hearing, the City Council at a public hearing has reviewed the request and the circumstances of the 
Property and finds that a substantial change in circumstances of the Property, sufficient to warrant a 
change in the zoning of the Property, has transpired; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
MANOR, TEXAS, THAT: 

 SECTION 1. Findings.  The foregoing recitals are hereby found to be true and correct and 
are hereby adopted by the City Council and made a part hereof for all purposes as findings of fact. 

 SECTION 2. Amendment of Ordinance.  City of Manor Code of Ordinances Chapter 14 
Zoning Ordinance ("Zoning Ordinance" or "Code"), is hereby modified and amended by rezoning the 
Property as set forth in Section 3. 

 SECTION 3. Rezoned Property.  The Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended by changing 
the zoning district for the land and parcel of property described in Exhibits “A-1” and “A-2”  (the 
“Property”), to zoning district Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2).  The Property is 
accordingly hereby rezoned to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-2). 

 SECTION 4. Open Meetings.  That it is hereby officially found and determined that the 
meeting at which this ordinance is passed was open to the public as required and that public notice of 
the time, place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapt. 
551, Texas Gov't. Code. 

264

Item 16.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 2 
 

 

 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED FIRST READING on this the ___ day of June 2022. 

PASSED AND APPROVED SECOND AND FINAL READING on this the ___ day of ___2022. 

  

THE CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS  
 
 
       ____________________________  
       Dr. Christopher Harvey,  

Mayor  
ATTEST: 
  
 
____________________________ 
Lluvia T. Almaraz, TRMC 
City Secretary  

 
 

265

Item 16.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 3 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A-1” 
 

 
Property Legal Description Townhome (TH): 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

266

Item 16.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 4 
 

 

 
 

 

 

267

Item 16.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 5 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

268

Item 16.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 6 
 

 

 
 

EXHIBIT “A-2” 
 

 
Property Legal Description Medium Commercial (C-2): 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

269

Item 16.



  

ORDINANCE NO.  Page 7 
 

 

 
 

 

270

Item 16.



 

 

10814 Jollyville Road, Avallon IV, Suite 200Austin, TX 78759 
Contact: Amanda Brown. 214-695-9219  

Amanda.Brown@Kimley-Horn.com 

 
March 24, 2022 

 
 
 
Mr. Scott Dunlop  
City of Manor           Via Electronic Submittal 
Planning Department 
105 E. Eggleston St. 
Manor, TX 78653  
 

Re: Application for Rezoning; ±62 acres located east of Old Kimbro Rd, south of US Hwy 290, 
Manor, TX 78653 (the “Property”) 

 
Dear Mr. Dunlop: 
 

As representatives of the owner of the above stated Property we respectfully submit the attached 
application for rezoning.  The Property is located east of Old Kimbro Rd, south of US Hwy 290, Manor, TX 
78653 (see Location Map attached) and is currently unzoned and in the City of Manor Extra Territorial 
Jurisdiction (ETJ). The proposed zoning is a combination of Townhome (TH) on the ±53 acre tract 
(description attached) and Medium Commercial (C-2) zoning on the ±9 acre tract (description attached).  
The purpose of the rezoning is to allow for a townhome development with associated commercial zoning to 
allow for a future, neighborhood serving commercial development along the Hwy 290 corridor that will 
meet the needs of Manor’s growing population.  An annexation application is being submitting concurrently 
with the zoning application.     

Surrounding zoning is commercial to the north, agriculture to the west, and no zoning to the south and 
east. Surrounding land uses include agriculture and single family residential to east, south, and west, and 
commercial to the north.  
 

If you have any questions about this application for rezoning or need additional information, please 
do not hesitate to contact me at your convenience. Thank you for your time and attention to this project. 
 

 
 
Amanda Couch Brown 
 
 

 
 

271

Item 16.



 
10090 W Highway 29  |  Liberty Hill, Texas 78642 

TBPELS Firm No. 10001800  |  512-238-7901 office 
 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 9.38ac ALTA.docx Page 1 of 2 

 

EXHIBIT "      " 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
 

BEING 9.38 ACRES OF LAND, SURVEYED BY LANDESIGN SERVICES, 
INC., SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52, ABSTRACT 
154 IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 
62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN GENERAL WARRANTY 
DEED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 
2008096315 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS (O.P.R.T.C.T.), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

BEGINNING at a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “4WARD BOUDARY” found for the Northwest 
corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common West corner of a called 4.382 acre tract of land 
described in a Warranty Deed With Vendor’s Lien to Auspro Enterprises, L.P., recorded in 
Document No. 2019013915 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also at the intersection of the existing Easterly 
right-of-way line of Kimbro Road (Old State Hwy 20 - 80’ R.O.W.) and the existing Southerly 
right-of-way line of U.S. 290 (R.O.W. Varies); 
 
THENCE South 62°55’16” East with the North line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
South line of said 4.382 acre tract, a distance of 600.03 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set, from which a 1/2” rebar found for the Southeast corner of a called 1.00 acre tract 
of land described in a Warranty Deed to Francisco Ruiz and Sindy Silva, recorded in Document 
No. 2018008520 of said O.P.R.T.C.T. and the common Southwest corner of a called 5.565 acre 
tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Tani Investments, LLC, recorded in 
Document No. 2021257244 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also being the common Northwest corner of a 
called 0.112 acre tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to City of Manor, recorded in 
Document No. 2021052804 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., bears South 62°55’16” East a distance of  280.09 
feet; 
 
THENCE over and across said 62.8431 acre tract, the following two (2) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 27°21’49” West a distance of 638.36 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 

 
  

272

Item 16.



 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 9.38ac ALTA.docx Page 2 of 2 

 

2. North 72°21’49” West a distance of 597.01 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set in the West line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common existing Easterly 
right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, from which a 1/2” rebar found for the Southwest 
corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common Northwest corner of a called 56.652 acre 
tract described in a General Warranty Deed to Horsefeathers Farm, Inc., recorded in 
Document No. 2002187747 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also being in the common existing 
Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, bears South 26°27’38” West a distance of 
667.27 feet; 

 
THENCE North 26°27’38” East with the West line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
existing Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, a distance of 736.34 feet to the POINT 
OF BEGINNING and containing 9.38 acres of land, more or less. 
 
This project is referenced for all bearing and coordinate basis to the Texas State Plane Coordinate 
System, North American Datum of 1983 (NAD83 – 2011 Adjustment), Central Zone (4203). All 
distances shown hereon are surface values represented in U.S. Survey Feet based on a grid-to-
surface combined adjustment factor of 1.00005359. 
 
This property description was prepared from an on-the-ground survey performed under my 
supervision and is accompanied by a separate plat of even date. The field work was completed on 
May 19, 2021. 
 
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED 
FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR 
RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT. 
 

______________________________________ 
Frank. W. Funk 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6803 
 
Job Number: 21-021 
Attachments: K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\CAD\DWGs\Old Kimbro Road 9.38ac ALTA.dwg 
 

273

Item 16.



 
10090 W Highway 29  |  Liberty Hill, Texas 78642 

TBPELS Firm No. 10001800  |  512-238-7901 office 
 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.docx Page 1 of 3 

 

EXHIBIT "      " 

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION 
 

BEING 53.42 ACRES OF LAND, SURVEYED BY LANDESIGN SERVICES, 
INC., SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52, ABSTRACT 
154 IN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AND BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 
62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN GENERAL WARRANTY 
DEED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 
2008096315 OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, 
TEXAS (O.P.R.T.C.T.), AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED 
BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

BEGINNING at a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI SURVEY” set in the North line of said 
62.8431 acre tract and the common South line of a called 4.382 acre tract of land described in a 
Warranty Deed With Vendor’s Lien to Auspro Enterprises, L.P., recorded in Document No. 
2019013915 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., from which a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “4WARD 
BOUNDARY” found for the Northwest corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common West 
corner of said  4.382 acre tract, also at the intersection of the existing Easterly right-of-way line of 
Kimbro Road (Old State Hwy 20 - 80’ R.O.W.) and the existing Southerly right-of-way line of 
U.S. 290 (R.O.W. Varies), bears North 62°55’16” West a distance of 600.03 feet; 
 
THENCE South 62°55’16” East with the North line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
South line of said 4.382 acre tract, and continuing with the common South line of a called 1.00 
acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Francisco Ruiz and Sindy Silva, recorded in 
Document No. 2018008520 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., a distance of 280.09 feet to a 1/2” rebar found 
for the Southeast corner of said 1.00 acre tract and the common Southwest corner of a called 5.565 
acre tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed to Tani Investments, LLC, recorded in 
Document No. 2021257244 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., also being the Northwest corner of a called 0.112 
acre tract of land described in a Special Warranty Deed to City of Manor, recorded in Document 
No. 2021052804 of said O.P.R.T.C.T. and a common corner of said 62.8431 acre tract; 
 
THENCE with a Northerly line of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common line of said 0.112 acre 
tract, the following three (3) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 27°04’44” West a distance of 65.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; 

 
  

274

Item 16.



 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.docx Page 2 of 3 

 

2. South 62°55’16” East a distance of 75.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 
 

3. North 27°04’44” East a distance of 65.00 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set for the Northeast corner of said 0.112 acre tract and a common corner of 
said 62.8431 acre tract, also being in the South line of said 5.565 acre tract; 
 

THENCE South 62°55’16” East with the North line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
South line of said 5.565 acre tract, and continuing with the common South line of a called 15.71 
acre tract of land described in a Warranty Deed to Klatt Properties, LP, recorded in Document No. 
2008204941 of said O.P.R.T.C.T., a distance of 998.89 feet to a 1/2” rebar found for the Northeast 
corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common Southeast corner of said 15.71 acre tract, also 
being in the West line of a called 20.235 acre tract of land described as Tract 1 in a General 
Warranty Deed to Austin 21 LLC, recorded in Document No. 2021136691 of said O.P.R.T.C.T.; 
 
THENCE with the East line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common West line of said 20.235 
acre tract, the following two (2) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 29°25’27” West a distance of 12.49 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 
 

2. South 26°40’55” West a distance of 304.61 feet to a 60d Nail found in a Mesquite tree for 
the Southwest corner of said 20.235 acre tract and the Northwest corner of a called 45.838 
acre tract of land described in a General Warranty Deed With Vendor’s Lien to Austin 21 
LLC, recorded in Document No. 2021248160 of said O.P.R.T.C.T.; 

 
THENCE with the East line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common West line of said 45.838 
acre tract, the following four (4) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 27°38’12” West a distance of 377.29 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped 
“BURRIS&ASSOC” found; 

 
2. South 26°43’45” West a distance of 143.94 feet to a 1/2” rebar found; 

 
3. South 26°58’00” West a distance of 243.98 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped 

“BURRIS&ASSOC” found; and 
 

4. South 26°59’10” West a distance of 330.89 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped 
“CHAPARRAL BOUNDARY” found for the Southeast corner of said 62.8431 acre tract 
and the common Southwest corner of said 45.838 acre tract, also being in the North line of 
a called 56.652 acre tract described in a General Warranty Deed to Horsefeathers Farm, 
Inc., recorded in Document No. 2002187747 of said O.P.R.T.C.T.; 
 

THENCE North 62°38’11” West with the South line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
North line of said 56.652 acre tract, a distance of 1,938.72 feet to a 1/2” rebar found for the 
Southwest corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common Northwest corner of said 56.652 acre 
tract, and being in the existing Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road; 
 

275

Item 16.



 

 
K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\Descriptions\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.docx Page 3 of 3 

 

THENCE North 26°27’38” East with the West line of said 62.8431 acre tract and the common 
existing Easterly right-of-way line of said Kimbro Road, a distance of 667.27 feet to a 1/2” rebar 
with cap stamped “LSI SURVEY” set, from which a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “4WARD 
BOUDARY” found for the Northwest corner of said 62.8431 acre tract and a common West corner 
of said 4.382 acre tract, also at the intersection of the existing Easterly right-of-way line of Kimbro 
Road (Old State Hwy 20 - 80’ R.O.W.) and the existing Southerly right-of-way line of U.S. 290 
(R.O.W. Varies), bears North 26°27’38” East a distance of 736.34 feet; 
 
THENCE over and across said 62.8431 acre tract, the following two (2) courses and distances: 
 

1. South 72°21’49” East a distance of 597.01 feet to a 1/2” rebar with cap stamped “LSI 
SURVEY” set; and 
 

2. North 27°21’49” East a distance of 638.36 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and 
containing 53.42 acres of land, more or less. 

 
This project is referenced for all bearing and coordinate basis to the Texas State Plane Coordinate 
System, North American Datum of 1983 (NAD83 – 2011 Adjustment), Central Zone (4203). All 
distances shown hereon are surface values represented in U.S. Survey Feet based on a grid-to-
surface combined adjustment factor of 1.00005359. 
 
This property description was prepared from an on-the-ground survey performed under my 
supervision and is accompanied by a separate plat of even date. The field work was completed on 
May 19, 2021. 
 
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR 
ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR 
RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT. 
______________________________________ 
Frank. W. Funk 
Registered Professional Land Surveyor 
State of Texas No. 6803 
 
Job Number: 21-021 
Attachments: K:\21021 - JTM Old Kimbro Rd\CAD\DWGs\Old Kimbro Road 53.42ac ALTA.dwg 
 

276

Item 16.



JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P.,

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

62.805 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2008096315

O.P.R.T.C.T.

U

.

S

.

 

2

9

0

(

R

.

O

.

W

.

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

)

K
I
M

B
R
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
O

L
D

 
S
T
A
T
E
 
H

W
Y
 
2
0
)

(
8
0
'
 
R
.
O

.
W

.
)

(
V
O

L
.
 
4
8
2
,
 
P
G

.
 
4
1
9
)

HORSEFEATHERS FARM, INC

(56.652 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2002187747

O.P.R.T.C.T.

FRANCISCO RUIZ AND

SINDY SILVA

(1.00 ACRE)

DOC. NO. 2018009520

O.P.R.T.C.T.

DAVIS RICE

(5.565 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2013207877

O.P.R.T.C.T.

KLATT PROPERTIES, LP

(15.71 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2008204941

O.P.R.T.C.T.

ROBERTO M. MONROY,

GONZALO C. MONROY AND

FIDEL M. TINAJERO

(45.838 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2011066143

O.P.R.T.C.T.

MATHEN MATHEN AND

ANNAMMA MATHEN

(20.235 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2012006009

O.P.R.T.C.T.

REAL PEOPLE HOMES, INC

(4.382 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2003038912

O.P.R.T.C.T.

CITY OF MANOR

(0.112 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 202105204

O.P.R.T.C.T.

S62°55'16"E  880.13'
S62°55'16"E  880.13'

L
1

L2

L
3

S62°55'16"E  998.89'

S29°25'27"W

12.49'

S
2
6
°
4
0
'
5
5
"
W

 
 
3
0
4
.
6
1
'

S
2
7
°
3
8
'
1
2
"
W

 
 
3
7
7
.
2
9
'

S
2
6
°
4
3
'
4
5
"
W

1
4
3
.
9
4
'

S
2
6
°
5
8
'
0
0
"
W

 
 
2
4
3
.
9
8
'

S
2
6
°
5
9
'
1
0
"
W

 
 
3
3
0
.
8
9
'

N62°38'11"W  1938.72'

N
2
6
°
2
7
'
3
8
"
E
 
 
1
4
0
3
.
6
1
'

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
P

A
T

H
:
 
K

:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

D
\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
2
0
-
0
2
1
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
.
D

W
G

 
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
P

L
O

T
 
S

I
Z

E
:
 
A

R
C

H
 
F

U
L
L
 
B

L
E

E
D

 
D

 
(
2
4
.
0
0
 
X

 
3
6
.
0
0
 
I
N

C
H

E
S

)
 
 
L
A

S
T

 
S

A
V

E
D

:
 
6
/
2
/
2
0
2
1
 
9
:
2
0
 
A

M
 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
:
 
6
/
2
/
2
0
2
1
 
9
:
2
2
 
A

M

10
09

0 
W

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 2
9,

  L
IB

ER
TY

 H
IL

L,
 T

EX
A

S 
78

64
2

TB
PE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
O

. 1
00

01
80

0
51

2-
23

8-
79

01

K
:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O

R
D

\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
2
0
-
0
2
1
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
.
D

W
G

277

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP FL=482.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
30" RCP FL=483.17'

AutoCAD SHX Text
2" CONDUIT

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.67'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.12'

AutoCAD SHX Text
24" CMP FL=492.07'

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN POST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE JUNCTION BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARB WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSES FROM RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP SET (STAMPED "LSI SURVEY")

AutoCAD SHX Text
60D NAIL FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE CORNER POST FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED POINT NOT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S11°22'30"E 34.56')

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
4WARD BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.E.GARON RPLS 4303

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURRIS& ASSOC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BURRIS& ASSOC

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHAPARRAL BOUNDARY

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIRT TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE PAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUBBLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
YELLOW PAINT STRIPE

Chris DEZEVALLOS
GENERAL NOTES: THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE SYSTEM,  SYSTEM, SYSTEM, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83 - 2011 ADJUSTMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203).  DISTANCES AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  SURVEY FEET BASED ON A SURVEY FEET BASED ON A  FEET BASED ON A FEET BASED ON A  BASED ON A BASED ON A  ON A ON A  A A GRID-TO-SURFACE COMBINED ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 1.00005359 ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON GPS OBSERVATIONS (GEOID 12B).  SOME FEATURES SHOWN HEREON MAY BE OUT OF SCALE FOR CLARITY. DIMENSIONS AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND LEVEL. UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  OF UNDERGROUND OF UNDERGROUND  UNDERGROUND UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UTILITIES UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  811 PRIOR TO 811 PRIOR TO  PRIOR TO PRIOR TO  TO TO EXCAVATION. EXISTING TREES WERE NOT LOCATED ON THE PROPERTY OR SHOWN FOR THIS DESIGN SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD NOTE: THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  "X" AND ZONE "A" NO "X" AND ZONE "A" NO  AND ZONE "A" NO AND ZONE "A" NO  ZONE "A" NO ZONE "A" NO  "A" NO "A" NO  NO NO BASE ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY  FEDERAL EMERGENCY FEDERAL EMERGENCY  EMERGENCY EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. FEDERAL INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. AS SHOWN ON MAP NO.  SHOWN ON MAP NO. SHOWN ON MAP NO.  ON MAP NO. ON MAP NO.  MAP NO. MAP NO.  NO. NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED 2008 AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED AND MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED MAP NO. 48453C0485J DATED  NO. 48453C0485J DATED NO. 48453C0485J DATED  48453C0485J DATED 48453C0485J DATED  DATED DATED AUGUST 18, 2014 FOR TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS. THIS FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES  AND/OR STRUCTURES AND/OR STRUCTURES  STRUCTURES STRUCTURES THEREON WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  THIS FLOOD STATEMENT THIS FLOOD STATEMENT  FLOOD STATEMENT FLOOD STATEMENT  STATEMENT STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON THE PART OF THE SURVEYOR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOPO CERTIFICATION THIS MAP WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  MAP WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY MAP WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY WAS PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY PREPARED FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY FROM AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY AN ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY ON-THE-GROUND SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY PERFORMED UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK UNDER MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK MY DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK DIRECT SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK SUPERVISION. THE FIELD WORK  THE FIELD WORK THE FIELD WORK  FIELD WORK FIELD WORK  WORK WORK WAS COMPLETED ON MAY 19, 2021. ______________________________ RAY D. WEGER REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR STATE OF TEXAS NO. 4711

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
POND

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION  EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2018009520 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION   EASEMENT DOC. NO. 202105198 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.R.A. EASEMENT VOL. 634, PG. 286 CITED IN TITLE COMMITMENT IS INCORRECT  .

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESIGN AND BOUNDARY VERIFICATION SURVEY OF 62.805 ACRES (2,735,807 SQUARE FEET)  OF LAND SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52 ABSTRACT 154, TRAVIS COUNTY,  TEXAS AND BEING ALL OF CALLED 62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315  OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME: JTM Old Kimbro Rd. JTM Old Kimbro Rd.

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER: 21-021 21-021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 06/02/2021 06/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING FILE PATH: K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO  K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDNOTE FILE PATH:  XXX

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPLS: RDW RDW

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: RDW RDW

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH: JCA JCA

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTYCHIEF: JE JE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK: 362 362

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=100' 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NAME:  20-021 Old Kimbro Road

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  01 of 01of 01 01

rdweger
RPLS Seal

Michael.Lee
Cloud



JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P.,

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

62.8431 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2008096315

O.P.R.T.C.T.

U

.

S

.

 

2

9

0

(

R

.

O

.

W

.

 

V

A

R

I

E

S

)

K
I
M

B
R
O

 
R
O

A
D

(
O

L
D

 
S
T
A
T
E
 
H

W
Y
 
2
0
)

(
8
0
'
 
R
.
O

.
W

.
)

(
V
O

L
.
 
4
8
2
,
 
P
G

.
 
4
1
9
)

HORSEFEATHERS FARM, INC

(56.652 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2002187747

O.P.R.T.C.T.

FRANCISCO RUIZ AND

SINDY SILVA

(1.00 ACRE)

DOC. NO. 2018009520

O.P.R.T.C.T.

TANI INVESTMENTS, LLC

(5.565 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021257244

O.P.R.T.C.T.

KLATT PROPERTIES, LP

(15.71 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2008204941

O.P.R.T.C.T.

AUSTIN 21 LLC

(45.838 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021248160

O.P.R.T.C.T.

AUSTIN 21 LLC

TRACT 1 (20.235 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021136691

O.P.R.T.C.T.

D

I

R

T

 
T

R

A

I

L

D

I

R

T

 

T

R

A

I

L

POND

POND

POND

AUSPRO ENTERPRISES LP

(4.382 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2019013915

O.P.R.T.C.T.

CITY OF MANOR

(0.112 ACRES)

DOC. NO. 2021052804

O.P.R.T.C.T.

24" CMP

24" CMP

24" CMP

24" CMP

4WARD BOUNDARY

2" CONDUIT

30" RCP

30" RCP

J.E. GARON

RPLS 4303

CONCRETE PAD

RUBBLE

CHAPARRAL

BOUNDARY

BURRIS&

ASSOC

BURRIS&

ASSOC

JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P.,

A TEXAS LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

62.8431 ACRES

DOC. NO. 2008096315

O.P.R.T.C.T.

N

7

2

°

2

1

'
4

9

"

W

 
 
5

9

7

.
0

1

'

N
2
6
°
2
7
'
3
8
"
E
 
 
7
3
6
.
3
4
'

S62°55'16"E  600.03'

S
2
7
°
2
1
'
4
9
"
W

 
 
6
3
8
.
3
6
'

POINT OF BEGINNING

D
R

A
W

I
N

G
 
P

A
T

H
:
 
K

:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

D
\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
 
9
.
3
8
A

C
 
A

L
T

A
.
D

W
G

 
 
S

H
E

E
T

 
P

L
O

T
 
S

I
Z

E
:
 
A

R
C

H
 
F

U
L
L
 
B

L
E

E
D

 
D

 
(
2
4
.
0
0
 
X

 
3
6
.
0
0
 
I
N

C
H

E
S

)
 
 
L
A

S
T

 
S

A
V

E
D

:
 
3
/
1
4
/
2
0
2
2
 
4
:
0
9
 
P

M
 
P

L
O

T
 
D

A
T

E
:
 
3
/
1
5
/
2
0
2
2
 
2
:
4
7
 
P

M

10
09

0 
W

 H
IG

H
W

A
Y

 2
9,

  L
IB

ER
TY

 H
IL

L,
 T

EX
A

S 
78

64
2

TB
PE

LS
 F

IR
M

 N
O

. 1
00

01
80

0
51

2-
23

8-
79

01

K
:
\
2
1
0
2
1
 
-
 
J
T

M
 
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O

R
D

\
C

A
D

\
D

W
G

S
\
O

L
D

 
K

I
M

B
R

O
 
R

O
A

D
 
9
.
3
8
A

C
 
A

L
T

A
.
D

W
G

278

Item 16.

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52 ABSTRACT 154

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
0'

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
60'

AutoCAD SHX Text
80'

AutoCAD SHX Text
100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN POST SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER METER

AutoCAD SHX Text
WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
POWER POLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GUY ANCHOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
TELEPHONE JUNCTION BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERHEAD ELECTRIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BARB WIRE FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
R.O.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
O.P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAT RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
COURSES FROM RECORDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" REBAR WITH CAP SET (STAMPED "LSI SURVEY")

AutoCAD SHX Text
60D NAIL FOUND (OR AS NOTED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
FENCE CORNER POST FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALCULATED POINT NOT SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT-OF-WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PUBLIC UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGEND

AutoCAD SHX Text
(S11°22'30"E 34.56')

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.P.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EDGE OF WATER

AutoCAD SHX Text
FLOOD ZONE

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.W.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONE A

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.R.A. EASEMENT VOL. 634, PG. 286 D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2018009520 NO. 2018009520 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION   EASEMENT DOC. NO. 202105198 NO. 202105198 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
9.38 ACRES

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.C.R.A. EASEMENT VOL. 634, PG. 286 D.R.T.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE EASEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 2020071567 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOUNDARY AGREEMENT DOCUMENT NO. 2001007355 O.P.R.T.C.T. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION  EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT DOC. NO. 2021052201 NO. 2021052201 O.P.R.T.C.T

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA SURVEY OF 9.38 ACRES OF LAND  SITUATED IN THE A.C. CALDWELL SURVEY NO. 52 ABSTRACT 154, TRAVIS COUNTY,  TEXAS AND BEING A PORTION OF A CALLED 62.8431 ACRE TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315  OF THE OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS OF TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS.

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME: JTM OLD KIMBRO RD JTM OLD KIMBRO RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
JOB NUMBER: 21-021 21-021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE: 06/02/2021 06/02/2021

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING FILE PATH: K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO  K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO 

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDNOTE FILE PATH: K:\21021 - JTM OLD  K:\21021 - JTM OLD KIMBRO RD\DESCRIPTIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
RPLS: FWF FWF

AutoCAD SHX Text
CHECKED BY: HAS HAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TECH: JRM JRM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARTYCHIEF: JE JE

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIELDBOOK: 362 362

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=100' 1"=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NAME:  OLD KIMBRO ROAD 9.38AC ALTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHEET  01 of 01of 01 01

AutoCAD SHX Text
GENERAL NOTES: THIS PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, PROJECT IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, IS REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, REFERENCED FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, FOR ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, ALL BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BEARING AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, AND COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, BASIS TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TO THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, THE TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM, TEXAS COORDINATE SYSTEM,  COORDINATE SYSTEM, COORDINATE SYSTEM,  SYSTEM, SYSTEM, NORTH AMERICAN DATUM OF 1983 (NAD83 - 2011 ADJUSTMENT), CENTRAL ZONE (4203).  DISTANCES AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON AND AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON AREAS SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON SHOWN HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON HEREON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON ARE SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON SURFACE VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON VALUES REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON REPRESENTED IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON IN U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON U.S. SURVEY FEET BASED ON  SURVEY FEET BASED ON SURVEY FEET BASED ON  FEET BASED ON FEET BASED ON  BASED ON BASED ON  ON ON A GRID-TO-SURFACE COMBINED ADJUSTMENT FACTOR OF 1.00005359. SOME FEATURES SHOWN HEREON MAY BE OUT OF SCALE FOR CLARITY. DIMENSIONS AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND AND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND AREAS OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND OF STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND STRUCTURES SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND SHOWN HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND HEREON ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND ARE PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND PER THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND THE EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND EXTERIOR FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  FOOTPRINT AT GROUND FOOTPRINT AT GROUND  AT GROUND AT GROUND  GROUND GROUND LEVEL. UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND BASED ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ON ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND ABOVE GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND GROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND AND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND VISIBLE EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND EVIDENCE. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND  OF UNDERGROUND OF UNDERGROUND  UNDERGROUND UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ARE APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES APPROXIMATE. SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES SURVEYOR DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES DOES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES NOT CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES CERTIFY TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES TO THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES LOCATION OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES OF THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES THE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UNDERGROUND UTILITIES UNDERGROUND UTILITIES  UTILITIES UTILITIES SHOWN HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO HEREON. CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTRACTORS SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO SHALL CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO CONTACT APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO UTILITY COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO COMPANIES AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO AND TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO TEXAS 811 PRIOR TO  811 PRIOR TO 811 PRIOR TO  PRIOR TO PRIOR TO  TO TO EXCAVATION.

AutoCAD SHX Text
COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE PROVIDED BY: CHICAGO TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY COMMITMENT NO. 8000362100979  8000362100979 ISSUE DATE: SEPTEMBER 30, 2021 EFFECTIVE DATE: SEPTEMBER 20, 2021 ONLY THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE THOSE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE ITEMS LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE IN SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE SCHEDULE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE B OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE OF THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE ABOVE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE REFERENCED COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE COMMITMENT FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE FOR TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE TITLE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE INSURANCE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  WERE REVIEWED FOR THE WERE REVIEWED FOR THE  REVIEWED FOR THE REVIEWED FOR THE  FOR THE FOR THE  THE THE PURPOSE OF THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  OF THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, OF THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, THIS SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, SURVEY. NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, NO ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, ADDITIONAL RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, RESEARCH WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, WAS PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, PERFORMED BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, BY THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, THIS SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, SURVEYOR. THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, THERE MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, MAY BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, BE ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS, ADDITIONAL EASEMENTS,  EASEMENTS, EASEMENTS, RESTRICTIONS, OR OTHER ENCUMBRANCES WHICH AFFECT THIS SURVEY THAT ARE NOT KNOWN TO THIS SURVEYOR. SCHEDULE B EXCEPTIONS: a. RIGHTS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) RIGHTS OF PARTIES IN POSSESSION. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) b. THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE FOLLOWING EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE EXCEPTION WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE WILL APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE APPEAR IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE IN ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE ANY POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE POLICY ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE ISSUED (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE (OTHER THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE THAN THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE THE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE T-1R RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE RESIDENTIAL OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  OWNER POLICY OF TITLE OWNER POLICY OF TITLE  POLICY OF TITLE POLICY OF TITLE  OF TITLE OF TITLE  TITLE TITLE INSURANCE AND THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  AND THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE AND THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE T-2R SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE SHORT-FORM RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE RESIDENTIAL MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE MORTGAGEE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE POLICY) IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE IF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE COMPANY IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE IS NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE NOT PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE PROVIDED A SURVEY OF THE  A SURVEY OF THE A SURVEY OF THE  SURVEY OF THE SURVEY OF THE  OF THE OF THE  THE THE LAND, ACCEPTABLE TO THE COMPANY, FOR REVIEW AT OR PRIOR TO CLOSING: ANY ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE ENCROACHMENT, ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE ENCUMBRANCE, VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE VIOLATION, VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE VARIATION, OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE OR ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE ADVERSE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE CIRCUMSTANCE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE AFFECTING THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE THE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  TITLE THAT WOULD BE TITLE THAT WOULD BE  THAT WOULD BE THAT WOULD BE  WOULD BE WOULD BE  BE BE DISCLOSED BY AN ACCURATE AND COMPLETE LAND SURVEY OF THE LAND. NOTE: UPON RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  UPON RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY UPON RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY RECEIPT OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY OF A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY A SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY SURVEY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY ACCEPTABLE TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY TO THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY THE TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY TITLE COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY COMPANY, THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY THIS EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY EXCEPTION WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY WILL BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  BE DELETED. THE COMPANY BE DELETED. THE COMPANY  DELETED. THE COMPANY DELETED. THE COMPANY  THE COMPANY THE COMPANY  COMPANY COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY THE RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY RIGHT TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY TO EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY EXCEPT ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY ADDITIONAL ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY ITEMS AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY AND/OR MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY MAKE ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY REQUIREMENTS AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY AFTER REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  REVIEWING SAID SURVEY REVIEWING SAID SURVEY  SAID SURVEY SAID SURVEY  SURVEY SURVEY (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) c. THOSE LIENS CREATED AT CLOSING, IF ANY, PURSUANT TO LENDER INSTRUCTIONS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) THOSE LIENS CREATED AT CLOSING, IF ANY, PURSUANT TO LENDER INSTRUCTIONS. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) d. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT   MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT   ENTITLED:   BOUNDARY AGREEMENT BOUNDARY AGREEMENT DATED:   DECEMBER 18, 2000 DECEMBER 18, 2000 EXECUTED BY:   JUDDIE MAE JONES AND ANN WEAVER RECORDING DATE: JANUARY 16, 2001 JUDDIE MAE JONES AND ANN WEAVER RECORDING DATE: JANUARY 16, 2001 RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2001007355, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     DOCUMENT NO. 2001007355, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS. (SHOWN ON SURVEY) e. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT: EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT: : GRANTED TO:  BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC. PURPOSE:   EASEMENT EASEMENT    RECORDING NO: VOLUME 12728, PAGE 351, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS RECORDING NO: VOLUME 12728, PAGE 351, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS VOLUME 12728, PAGE 351, REAL PROPERTY RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS     (NO DESCRIPTION PROVIDED IN RECORD DOCUMENT - NOTED HEREON) f. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  GRANTED TO:  LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY LOWER COLORADO RIVER AUTHORITY PURPOSE:   ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION ELECTRIC TRANSMISSION RECORDING NO: VOLUME 634, PAGE 286, DEED RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS VOLUME 634, PAGE 286, DEED RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) g. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  ENTITLED:   DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT DATED:   SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 SEPTEMBER 20, 2017 EXECUTED BY:  JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. AND CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. AND CITY OF MANOR, TEXAS RECORDING DATE:  DECEMBER 15, 2017  DECEMBER 15, 2017  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST DOCUMENT NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST NO. 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST 2017197857, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST COUNTY, TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST TEXAS, AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  AS AFFECTED BY FIRST AS AFFECTED BY FIRST  AFFECTED BY FIRST AFFECTED BY FIRST  BY FIRST BY FIRST  FIRST FIRST AMENDMENT FILED DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  FILED DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, FILED DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, DECEMBER 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 18, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 2020, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, IN DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, DOCUMENT NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, NO. 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, 2020247239, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY,  TRAVIS COUNTY, TRAVIS COUNTY,  COUNTY, COUNTY, TEXAS REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) h. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  ENTITLED:   EASEMENT AGREEMENT EASEMENT AGREEMENT DATED:   MARCH 25, 2020 MARCH 25, 2020 EXECUTED BY:  BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC AND JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP BLUEBONNET ELECTRIC COOPERATIVE, INC AND JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP RECORDING DATE:  MAY 4, 2020  MAY 4, 2020  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2020071567, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 2020071567, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) i. MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  MATTERS CONTAINED IN THAT CERTAIN DOCUMENT  ENTITLED:   TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT DATED:   FEBRUARY 5, 2021 FEBRUARY 5, 2021 EXECUTED BY:  JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. TO CITY OF MANOR JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, L.P. TO CITY OF MANOR RECORDING DATE:  JANUARY 1, 2021  JANUARY 1, 2021  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2021052198, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 2021052198, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS REFERENCE IS HEREBY MADE TO SAID DOCUMENT FOR FULL PARTICULARS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) j. EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  EASEMENT(S) FOR THE PURPOSE(S) SHOWN BELOW AND RIGHTS INCIDENTAL THERETO, AS GRANTED IN A DOCUMENT:  GRANTED TO:  CITY OF MANOR CITY OF MANOR PURPOSE:   LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT LIMITED PUBLIC UTILITY AND ACCESS EASEMENT RECORDING DATE:  MARCH 11, 2021  MARCH 11, 2021  RECORDING NO: DOCUMENT NO. 2021052201, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS DOCUMENT NO. 2021052201, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS (SHOWN ON SURVEY) k. RIGHTS OF TENANTS IN POSSESSION, AS TENANTS ONLY, UNDER UNRECORDED LEASE AGREEMENTS (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) RIGHTS OF TENANTS IN POSSESSION, AS TENANTS ONLY, UNDER UNRECORDED LEASE AGREEMENTS (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) l. IF ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR IF ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR ANY PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR PORTION OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR OF THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR THE PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR PROPOSED LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR LOAN AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR AND/OR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR THE OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR OWNER'S TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR TITLE POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR POLICY COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR COVERAGE AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR AMOUNT INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  INCLUDES FUNDS FOR INCLUDES FUNDS FOR  FUNDS FOR FUNDS FOR  FOR FOR IMMEDIATELY CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS IMPROVEMENTS, THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS THE FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS FOLLOWING EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS EXCEPTIONS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS WILL APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS APPEAR IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS IN SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS SCHEDULE B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS B OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS OF ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  ANY POLICY ISSUED AS ANY POLICY ISSUED AS  POLICY ISSUED AS POLICY ISSUED AS  ISSUED AS ISSUED AS  AS AS INDICATED: OWNER AND LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  AND LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR AND LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR LOAN POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR POLICY(IES): ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR ANY AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR AND ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR ALL LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR LIENS ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR ARISING BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR BY REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR REASON OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR OF UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR UNPAID BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR BILLS OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR CLAIMS FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  FOR WORK PERFORMED OR FOR WORK PERFORMED OR  WORK PERFORMED OR WORK PERFORMED OR  PERFORMED OR PERFORMED OR  OR OR MATERIALS FURNISHED IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  FURNISHED IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE FURNISHED IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE IN CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE CONNECTION WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE WITH IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE IMPROVEMENTS PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE PLACED, OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE OR TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE TO BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE BE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE PLACED, UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE UPON THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE SUBJECT LAND. HOWEVER, THE  LAND. HOWEVER, THE LAND. HOWEVER, THE  HOWEVER, THE HOWEVER, THE  THE THE COMPANY DOES INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  DOES INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS DOES INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS INSURE THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS THE INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS INSURED AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS AGAINST LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS LOSS, IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS IF ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS ANY, SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS SUSTAINED BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS BY THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS THE INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS INSURED UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS UNDER THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS THIS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  POLICY IF SUCH LIENS POLICY IF SUCH LIENS  IF SUCH LIENS IF SUCH LIENS  SUCH LIENS SUCH LIENS  LIENS LIENS HAVE BEEN FILED WITH THE COUNTY CLERK OF COUNTY, TEXAS, PRIOR TO THE DATE HEREOF. OWNER POLICY(IES) ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  POLICY(IES) ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS POLICY(IES) ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS ONLY: LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS LIABILITY HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS HEREUNDER AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS AT THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS THE DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS DATE HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS HEREOF IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS IS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS LIMITED TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS TO $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS $ 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS 0.00. LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS LIABILITY SHALL INCREASE AS  SHALL INCREASE AS SHALL INCREASE AS  INCREASE AS INCREASE AS  AS AS CONTEMPLATED IMPROVEMENTS ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  IMPROVEMENTS ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE IMPROVEMENTS ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE ARE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE MADE, SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE SO THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE THAT ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE ANY LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE LOSS PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE PAYABLE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE HEREUNDER SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE SHALL BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE BE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE LIMITED TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  TO SAID SUM PLUS THE TO SAID SUM PLUS THE  SAID SUM PLUS THE SAID SUM PLUS THE  SUM PLUS THE SUM PLUS THE  PLUS THE PLUS THE  THE THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  ACTUALLY EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR ACTUALLY EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR EXPENDED BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR BY THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR THE INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR INSURED IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR IN IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR IMPROVEMENTS AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR AT THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR THE TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR TIME THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR THE LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR LOSS OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR OCCURS. ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR ANY EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  EXPENDITURES MADE FOR EXPENDITURES MADE FOR  MADE FOR MADE FOR  FOR FOR IMPROVEMENTS, SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO SUBSEQUENT TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO TO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO DATE OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO OF THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO THIS POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO POLICY, WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO WILL BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO BE DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO DEEMED MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO MADE AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO AS OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO OF THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO THE DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO DATE OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  OF THIS POLICY. IN NO OF THIS POLICY. IN NO  THIS POLICY. IN NO THIS POLICY. IN NO  POLICY. IN NO POLICY. IN NO  IN NO IN NO  NO NO EVENT SHALL THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  SHALL THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN SHALL THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN LIABILITY OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN OF THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN COMPANY HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN HEREUNDER EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN EXCEED THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THE FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN FACE AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN AMOUNT OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN OF THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN  NOTHING CONTAINED IN NOTHING CONTAINED IN  CONTAINED IN CONTAINED IN  IN IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS LIMITING ANY EXCEPTION OR ANY PRINTED PROVISION OF THIS POLICY. LOAN POLICY(IES) ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  POLICY(IES) ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET POLICY(IES) ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET ONLY: PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET PENDING DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET DISBURSEMENT OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET OF THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET THE FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET FULL PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET PROCEEDS OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET OF THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET THE LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET LOAN SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET SECURED BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET BY THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET THE LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  LIEN INSTRUMENT SET LIEN INSTRUMENT SET  INSTRUMENT SET INSTRUMENT SET  SET SET FORTH UNDER SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  UNDER SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT UNDER SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT SCHEDULE A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT A HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT HEREOF, THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT THIS POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT POLICY INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT INSURES ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT TO THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT THE EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT EXTENT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT OF THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT AMOUNT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT ACTUALLY DISBURSED, BUT  DISBURSED, BUT DISBURSED, BUT  BUT BUT INCREASE AS EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  AS EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, AS EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, EACH DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, DISBURSEMENT IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, IS MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, MADE IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, IN GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, GOOD FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, FAITH AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, AND WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, WITHOUT KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, KNOWLEDGE OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, OF ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, ANY DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, DEFECT IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO, IN, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  OR OBJECTIONS TO, OR OBJECTIONS TO,  OBJECTIONS TO, OBJECTIONS TO,  TO, TO, THE TITLE UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  TITLE UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS TITLE UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS UP TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS TO THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS THE FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS FACE AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS AMOUNT OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS OF THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS THE POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS POLICY. NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS CONTAINED IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS PARAGRAPH SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS SHALL BE CONSTRUED AS  BE CONSTRUED AS BE CONSTRUED AS  CONSTRUED AS CONSTRUED AS  AS AS LIMITING ANY EXCEPTION UNDER SCHEDULE B, OR ANY PRINTED PROVISION OF THIS POLICY. (NOT A SURVEY MATTER) m. ALL LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL ALL LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OR RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL RESERVATIONS OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OF COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL COAL, LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL LIGNITE, OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OIL, GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL GAS AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL AND OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL OTHER MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL MINERALS, TOGETHER WITH ALL  TOGETHER WITH ALL TOGETHER WITH ALL  WITH ALL WITH ALL  ALL ALL RIGHTS, PRIVILEGES, AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  PRIVILEGES, AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR PRIVILEGES, AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR AND IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR IMMUNITIES RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR RELATING THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR THERETO, APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR APPEARING IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR IN THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR THE PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR PUBLIC RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR RECORDS WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR WHETHER LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR LISTED IN SCHEDULE B OR  IN SCHEDULE B OR IN SCHEDULE B OR  SCHEDULE B OR SCHEDULE B OR  B OR B OR  OR OR NOT. THERE MAY BE LEASES, GRANTS, EXCEPTIONS OR RESERVATIONS OF MINERAL INTEREST THAT ARE NOT LISTED.  (NOT A SURVEY MATTER)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: IMPORTANT NOTE: THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  NOTE: THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOTE: THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, THIS IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, IS A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, A PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, PRELIMINARY DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, NOT TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, TO BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, BE CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, CONSTRUED AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, AS A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, A PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, PROPER DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY, DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY,  OF PROPERTY, OF PROPERTY,  PROPERTY, PROPERTY, NOR SHOULD SAME BE CONSIDERED FOR LEGAL DOCUMENTATION. (SUBJECT TO REQUIREMENT ON SCHEDULE C) BEING 26.4 ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  26.4 ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN 26.4 ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN ACRES OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN OUT OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN OF THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN THE AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN AC CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN CALDWELL SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN SURVEY 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN 52, ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN ABSTRACT NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN NO. 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN 154, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN COUNTY, TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN TEXAS, BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN BEING PART OF THAT CERTAIN  PART OF THAT CERTAIN PART OF THAT CERTAIN  OF THAT CERTAIN OF THAT CERTAIN  THAT CERTAIN THAT CERTAIN  CERTAIN CERTAIN 62.8431 ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, ACRE TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, TRACT CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, CONVEYED TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, TO JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, TRIANGLE MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, MARINE, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, LP, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, FILED JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, JUNE 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, 9, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, 2008, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, RECORDED IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, IN DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315, DOCUMENT NO. 2008096315,  NO. 2008096315, NO. 2008096315,  2008096315, 2008096315, OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS. NOTE: THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE COMPANY IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE IS PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE PROHIBITED FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE FROM INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE INSURING THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE OR QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE QUANTITY OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE OF THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE LAND DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE DESCRIBED HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE HEREIN. ANY STATEMENT IN THE  ANY STATEMENT IN THE ANY STATEMENT IN THE  STATEMENT IN THE STATEMENT IN THE  IN THE IN THE  THE THE ABOVE LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS DESCRIPTION OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS OF THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS THE AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS AREA OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS OR QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS QUANTITY OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS OF LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS LAND IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS NOT A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS A REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS REPRESENTATION THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS THAT SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS SUCH AREA OR QUANTITY IS  AREA OR QUANTITY IS AREA OR QUANTITY IS  OR QUANTITY IS OR QUANTITY IS  QUANTITY IS QUANTITY IS  IS IS CORRECT, BUT IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  BUT IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B BUT IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B IS MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B MADE ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B ONLY FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B FOR INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B INFORMATIONAL AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B AND/OR IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B IDENTIFICATION PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B PURPOSES AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B AND DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B DOES NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B NOT OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B OVERRIDE ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B ITEM 2 OF SCHEDULE B  2 OF SCHEDULE B 2 OF SCHEDULE B  OF SCHEDULE B OF SCHEDULE B  SCHEDULE B SCHEDULE B  B B HEREOF

AutoCAD SHX Text
2021 ALTA/NSPS TABLE A NOTES: ITEM 1: MONUMENTS FOUND OR SET AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY. MONUMENTS FOUND OR SET AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY. ITEM 2: NO ADDRESS DISCLOSED OR OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. NO ADDRESS DISCLOSED OR OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. ITEM 3: THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS : THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS THE TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS TRACT SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS SHOWN HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS HEREON APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS APPEARS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS TO LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS LIE WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS WITHIN ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS ZONE "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS "X" AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS AND ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS ZONE "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS "A" NO BASE ELEVATIONS  NO BASE ELEVATIONS NO BASE ELEVATIONS  BASE ELEVATIONS BASE ELEVATIONS  ELEVATIONS ELEVATIONS DETERMINED, AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE AS IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE IDENTIFIED BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE BY THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE THE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE MANAGEMENT AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE AGENCY, FEDERAL INSURANCE  FEDERAL INSURANCE FEDERAL INSURANCE  INSURANCE INSURANCE ADMINISTRATION, AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. AS SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. SHOWN ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. ON MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 4853C0505H, DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. DATED SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO. SEPTEMBER 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  26, 2008 AND MAP NO. 26, 2008 AND MAP NO.  2008 AND MAP NO. 2008 AND MAP NO.  AND MAP NO. AND MAP NO.  MAP NO. MAP NO.  NO. NO. 48453C0485J DATED AUGUST 18, 2014 FOR TRAVIS COUNTY, TEXAS AND INCORPORATED AREAS. THIS FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL FLOOD PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL PLAIN NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL NOTE DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL DOES NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL NOT IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL IMPLY THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL THAT THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL THE PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL PROPERTY AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL AND/OR STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  STRUCTURES THEREON WILL STRUCTURES THEREON WILL  THEREON WILL THEREON WILL  WILL WILL BE FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FREE FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FROM FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FLOODING OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON OR FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FLOOD DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON DAMAGE. THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON THIS FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON FLOOD STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON STATEMENT SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON SHALL NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON NOT CREATE LIABILITY ON  CREATE LIABILITY ON CREATE LIABILITY ON  LIABILITY ON LIABILITY ON  ON ON THE PART OF THE SURVEYOR. ITEM 4: THE TOTAL AREA OF THE COMMITMENT PARCEL IS 9.38 ACRES MORE OR LESS. THE TOTAL AREA OF THE COMMITMENT PARCEL IS 9.38 ACRES MORE OR LESS. ITEM 7a. NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. NO BUILDINGS WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. ITEM 8: SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON SUBSTANTIAL FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON FEATURES OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON OBSERVED IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON IN THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON THE PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON PROCESS OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON OF CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON CONDUCTING THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON SURVEY ARE AS SHOWN ON  ARE AS SHOWN ON ARE AS SHOWN ON  AS SHOWN ON AS SHOWN ON  SHOWN ON SHOWN ON  ON ON THE SURVEY. ITEM 9.  NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. NO PARKING SPACES WERE OBSERVED AT THE TIME OF THE SURVEY. ITEM 13. NAMES OF ADJOINING OWNERS ACCORDING TO PUBLIC RECORDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY.NAMES OF ADJOINING OWNERS ACCORDING TO PUBLIC RECORDS ARE AS SHOWN ON THE SURVEY.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEY CERTIFICATION: TO JCI RESIDENTIAL, LLC AND FIDELITY NATIONAL TITLE INSURANCE COMPANY: THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN IS TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN TO CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN CERTIFY THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN THAT THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN THIS MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN MAP OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN OR PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN PLAT AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN AND THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN THE SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN SURVEY ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN ON WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN WHICH IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN IT IS BASED WERE MADE IN  IS BASED WERE MADE IN IS BASED WERE MADE IN  BASED WERE MADE IN BASED WERE MADE IN  WERE MADE IN WERE MADE IN  MADE IN MADE IN  IN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, WITH THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, THE 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, 2021 MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, MINIMUM STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, STANDARD DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, DETAIL REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, REQUIREMENTS FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, FOR ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS, ALTA/NSPS LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  LAND TITLE SURVEYS, LAND TITLE SURVEYS,  TITLE SURVEYS, TITLE SURVEYS,  SURVEYS, SURVEYS, JOINTLY ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF AND ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF BY ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ALTA AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF AND NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF NSPS, AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF AND INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF INCLUDES ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF ITEMS 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 1, 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 2, 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 3, 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 4, 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF 7(a), 8, 9 & 13 OF  8, 9 & 13 OF 8, 9 & 13 OF  9 & 13 OF 9 & 13 OF  & 13 OF & 13 OF  13 OF 13 OF  OF OF TABLE A THEREOF. THE FIELDWORK WAS COMPLETED ON MAY 19, 2021. DATE OF PLAT OR MAP: MARCH 8, 2022 ______________________________ FRANK W. FUNK REGISTERED PROFESSIONAL LAND SURVEYOR STATE OF TEXAS NO. 6803

AutoCAD SHX Text
PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED FOR ANY PURPOSE AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED OR RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT.



E US 290 HWY EB
E US 290 HWY WB

KIM
BR

O 
RD

OLD KIMBRO RD

BE
LT

EX
 DR

BO
IS 

D A
RC

 RD

FM
 11

00
 RD

VOELKER LN

WT GALLAWAY ST

CL
AR

A M
AR

TIN
 RD

SMITH GIN ST

JAMES MANOR ST

GU
NN

 LN

NELSON HOUSER ST

WOODROW WILSON ST

EASY JET ST

ELLARY LN

RACIN PATTY ST

TAYSHAS ST

CA
BIN

ET
 DR

FM
 11

00
 R

D

Subject Property:
62.80 Acres ¹

0 1,300 2,600650
Feet

Zone
A - Agricultural
SF-1 - Single Family
Suburban
SF-2 - Single Family
Standard
TF - Two Family
TH - Townhome
MF-1 - Multi-Family
15
MF-2 - Multi-Family
25

MH-1 - Manufactured
Home
I-1 - Institutional
Small
I-2 - Institutional
Large
GO - General Office
C-1 - Light
Commercial
C-2 - Medium
Commercial
C-3 - Heavy
Commercial

NB - Neighborhood
Business
DB - Downtown
Business
IN-1 - Light Industrial
IN-2 - Heavy
Industrial
PUD - Planned Unit
Development
ETJ

P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :P r o p o s e d  Z o n i n g :
T o w n h o m e  ( T H )T o w n h o m e  ( T H )

M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )M e d i u m  C o m m e r c i a l  ( C - 2 )
279

Item 16.



 

 

 

280

Item 16.



105 E. EGGLESTON STREET  •  P.O. BOX 387  •  MANOR, TEXAS  78653 

(T) 512.272.5555  •  (F) 512.272.8636  •  WWW.CITYOFMANOR.ORG 

 

 

April 27, 2022 

 

City of Manor Development Services 

 

Notification for a Rezoning Application 
 

 

Case Number: 2022-P-1428-ZO 

Case Manager: Scott Dunlop 

Contact: sdunlop@cityofmanor.org - 512-215-8262 

  

 

The City of Manor Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council will be conducting regularly 

scheduled meetings for the purpose of considering and acting upon on a Rezoning Application for 62.84 

acres, more or less, and being located near the intersection of US Hwy 290 E and Old Kimbro Rd., Manor, 

TX. The request will be posted on the agenda as follows: 

 

Public Hearing: Conduct a public hearing on a Rezoning Application for 62.84 acres, more or less, 

out of the A.C. Caldwell Survey No. 52, Abstract No. 154, and being located near the intersection of 

US Hwy 290 E and Old Kimbro Rd., Manor, TX to Townhome (TH) and Medium Commercial (C-

2). 

Applicant: Kimley-Horn & Associates   

Owner: Millcreek Residential 

 
The Planning and Zoning Commission will meet at 6:30PM on May 11, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street 

in the City Hall Council Chambers.   

 

The City Council will meet at 7:00PM on May 18, 2022 at 105 East Eggleston Street in the City Hall 

Council Chambers. 

 

You are being notified because you own property within 300 feet of the property for which this Rezoning 

Application has been filed. Comments may also be addressed to the email address or phone number above. 

Any communications received will be made available to the Commissioners and Council Members during 

the discussion of this item. 
 

 

 

281

Item 16.



PHAN HOAN VAN & THU THI HUYNH  
5701 LONG CT 

AUSTIN TX 78730-5056 
 

PHAN HOAN VAN & THU THI HUYNH  
5701 LONG CT 

AUSTIN TX 78730-5056 
 

TAPIA TOMAS  
12908 OLD KIMBRO RD 
MANOR TX 78653-4519 

CYPRESS BLUFF LLC  
12822 KIMBRO RD 
MANOR TX 78653 

 
CYPRESS BLUFF LLC 
12822 KIMBRO RD 
MANOR TX 78653 

 
JEFFERSON TRIANGLE MARINE LP  

9225 KATY FRWY 
HOUSTON TX 77024-1521 

AUSTIN27 LLC  
117 Fort Hood Ln 

Georgetown TX 78628-6007 
 

AUSTIN 21 LLC  
117 FORT HOOD LN 

GEORGETOWN TX 78628-6007 
 

AUSTIN 21 LLC  
117 FORT HOOD LN 

GEORGETOWN TX 78628-6007 

KLATT PROPERTIES LP  
2001 PICADILLY DR 

ROUND ROCK TX 78664-9511 
 

TANI INVESTMENTS LLC ETAL  
7606 Brae Acres Ct 

Houston TX 77074-4123 
 

RUIZ FRANCISCO & SINDY SILVA  
13232 HIGH SIERRA ST 

MANOR TX 78653-5378 

 
CITY OF MANOR  

105 E EGGLESTON ST 
MANOR TX 78653-3463 

 
RUIZ FRANCISCO & SINDY SILVA  

13232 HIGH SIERRA ST 
MANOR TX 78653-5378 

 
AUSPRO ENTERPRISES LP  

PO BOX 13549 
AUSTIN TX 78711-3549 

TIMMERMAN COMMERCIAL 
INVESTMENTS LP (1729480) 

501 VALE ST 
AUSTIN TX 78746-5732 

    

     

     

     

     

282

Item 16.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 17 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Scott Dunlop, Director 
DEPARTMENT: Development Services 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on a Water Service Area Transfer Agreement between the City of 
Manor, Texas and Manville Water Supply Corporation for a 13.189 acre tract. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 

Building Hope is requesting water service from the City for their school campus. City Council previously approved 
a deposit agreement with IDEA, Building Hope is IDEA’s successor and assign,  to transfer water service from 
Manville Water Supply Corporation to the City of Manor. The attached Water Service Area Transfer Agreement 
has been executed by Manville and is provide to City Council for consideration, which would then go through the 
PUC process. 
LEGAL REVIEW:  Yes 
FISCAL IMPACT:   
PRESENTATION:   
ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• Water Service Area Transfer Agreement 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve the Water Service Area Transfer Agreement 
between the City of Manor, Texas and Manville Water Supply Corporation for a 13.189 acre tract and authorize 
the City Manager to execute the agreement. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION: 
 

 Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

283

Item 17.



284

Item 17.



285

Item 17.



286

Item 17.



287

Item 17.



288

Item 17.



289

Item 17.



290

Item 17.



291

Item 17.



292

Item 17.



293

Item 17.



294

Item 17.



295

Item 17.



296

Item 17.



297

Item 17.



298

Item 17.



299

Item 17.



300

Item 17.



301

Item 17.



302

Item 17.



303

Item 17.



304

Item 17.



  AGENDA ITEM NO. 18 

 

AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY FORM 

PROPOSED MEETING DATE: June 15, 2022 
PREPARED BY: Tracey Vasquez, HR Manager 
DEPARTMENT: Human Resources 

AGENDA ITEM DESCRIPTION: 

Consideration, discussion, and possible action on the Compensation Consulting Firm regarding a Pay Scale study. 

BACKGROUND/SUMMARY: 
The City of Manor will be recruiting a talented and accomplished Compensation Consulting Firm with a highly 
successful track record that specializes in public sector consulting.  

LEGAL REVIEW:   No 
FISCAL IMPACT:   No 
PRESENTATION:  No 
ATTACHMENTS:   Yes 

• McGrath Human Resources Group 
• Evergreen Solutions, LLC 
• Ray and Associates 
• Matrix for Compensation Study 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

It is the City staff’s recommendation that the City Council approve a Compensation Consulting Firm regarding  a 
Pay Scale study. 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION:  Recommend Approval  Disapproval  None 

 

305

Item 18.



306

Item 18.



307

Item 18.



308

Item 18.



309

Item 18.



310

Item 18.



311

Item 18.



312

Item 18.



313

Item 18.



314

Item 18.



315

Item 18.



316

Item 18.



317

Item 18.



318

Item 18.



319

Item 18.



320

Item 18.



321

Item 18.



322

Item 18.



323

Item 18.



324

Item 18.



325

Item 18.



326

Item 18.



327

Item 18.



328

Item 18.



329

Item 18.



330

Item 18.



331

Item 18.



332

Item 18.



333

Item 18.



334

Item 18.



335

Item 18.



336

Item 18.



337

Item 18.



338

Item 18.



339

Item 18.



340

Item 18.



341

Item 18.



342

Item 18.


	Top
	Item A.	Proclamation: Juneteenth Day 2022
	a. Juneteenth Day

	Item 1.	Public Hearing: Jefferson Triangle Annexation
	a. Summary Form

	Item 2.	Public Hearing: Jefferson Triangle 2022-P-1428-ZO
	a. Summary Form
	b. Jefferson Triangle Zoning Ordinance
	c. Letter of Intent
	d. Zoning Map
	e. Area Map
	f. Notice
	g. Labels

	Item 3.	Public Hearing: Butler Revised CP 2022-P-1438-CP
	a. Summary Form
	b. Plat
	c. Conformance Letter
	d. Notice Letter
	e. Labels

	Item 4.	Minutes: June 1, 2022, City Council Workshop - Charter Review; and June 1, 2022, City Council Regular Meeting
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2022 06 01 CC Draft Workshop Minutes -  Charter Review
	c. 2022 06 01 CC Draft Minutes

	Item 5.	Departmental Reports: May 2022
	a. Summary Form
	b. ED
	c. DS
	d. CD
	e. PD
	f. CT
	g. PW
	h. FN
	i. HR
	j. IT
	k. CS

	Item 6.	Butler 973_290 MF2 - 2022-P-1426-ZO
	a. Summary Form
	b. Letter of Intent
	c. Bulter MultiFamily Tract Rezoning Ordinance
	d. Map
	e. Survey
	f. Notice
	g. Labels

	Item 7.	Las Entradas South MF2 - 2022-P-1425-ZO
	a. Summary Form
	b. Letter of Intent
	c. Las Entradas South Tract Rezoning Ordinance
	d. Boundary Map
	e. Map
	f. Notice
	g. Labels

	Item 8.	FY2020-2021 Financial Audit Report
	a. Summary Form
	b. 2020-2021 Audit Report

	Item 9.	Butler Manor Development Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Development Agreement

	Item 10.	Butler Manor 380 Agreement
	a. Summary Form

	Item 11.	Butler Revised CP 2022-P-1438-CP
	a. Summary Form
	b. Plat
	c. Conformance Letter
	d. Notice Letter
	e. Labels

	Item 12.	Las Entradas Development Agreement Amendment
	a. Summary Form
	b. First Amendment to Las Entradas Development Agreement Final

	Item 13.	Manor Heights Development Agreement Third Amendment
	a. Summary Form
	b. Manor Heights - Third Amendment to Development Agreement Final

	Item 14.	CapMetro
	a. Summary Form
	b. .BCT ILA Amendment  - Manor - FINAL Redline 042820221
	c. BCT ILA Amendment  - Manor - FINAL 04282022
	d. BCT ILA Amendment - Manor (Appendix A)

	Item 15.	Jefferson Triangle Annexation First Reading of Ordinance
	a. Summary Form

	Item 16.	Jefferson Triangle 2022-P-1428-ZO - First Reading
	a. Summary Form
	b. Jefferson Triangle Zoning Ordinance
	c. Letter of Intent
	d. Zoning Map
	e. Area Map
	f. Notice
	g. Labels

	Item 17.	Building Hope Transfer Agreement
	a. Summary Form
	b. Building Hope Transfer Agreement Executed by Manville

	Item 18.	Compensation Consulting Firm
	a. Summary Form
	b. McGrath Human Resources Group
	c. Evergreen Solutions, LLC
	d. Ray and Associates
	e. Matrix for Compensation Study

	Bottom

